
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
JUNE 5, 2006 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The Acting City Manager 

NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

June 5, 2006 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Paul Lehman – Glen Oaks Alliance 
Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Proclamation to Honor Joseph Haddad – 2005 Police Officer of the Year ........... 1 
b) Proclamation to Honor Sherry LeVeque – 2005 Non-Sworn Police 

Department Employee of the Year ....................................................................... 1 
c) Proclamation to Honor Daryl Klinko – 2006 Fire Fighter of the Year .................... 1 
d) Presentation of Check to the City of Troy from the Historical Society’s 

Heritage Campaign for Expansion of the Troy Museum ....................................... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal Renewal – 6881 Westaway 1 

C-2 Rezoning Application (Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South Side of 
Vanderpool, West of Rochester Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to 
B-2 2 

NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

 

C-2a   Addendum Protest Petition 2 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

D-1 Adoption of City Ordinance, Chapter 28 – Tree Ordinance and the Landscape 
Design & Tree Preservation Standards 3 

CONSENT AGENDA: 4 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 4 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 4 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 4 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 5 

a) Joseph Haddad – 2005 Police Officer of the Year................................................ 5 
b) Sherry  LeVeque – 2005 Non-Sworn Police Department Employee of the 

Year...................................................................................................................... 5 
c) Daryl Klinko – 2006 Fire Fighter of the Year......................................................... 5 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 5 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Uniform 
Rental Services .................................................................................................... 5 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 06-6, 
New King, Maxwell and Stutz Paving Rehabilitation............................................. 5 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Breathing 
Apparatus Equipment for the Fire Department ..................................................... 6 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to 
Expend Funds on City Council Member Travel Expenses – Michigan 
Municipal League Board of Trustees Meetings..................................................... 6 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Proprietary Maintenance Service Contract 
– Motorola Communications ................................................................................. 6 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Infestation Control 
Services – Landscaping ....................................................................................... 6 

g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Contract #071B4200234 State of 
Michigan and Election Systems and Software, Inc. – Central Count Optical 
Scan Voting System (Model M650) – Sole Source Vendor .................................. 7 

E-5 Medi-Go Service Agreement 7 

E-6 Private Agreement for People’s State Bank – Project No. 05.931.3 7 



 

 

E-7 State of Michigan Election Equipment Grant Application Authorization 7 

E-8 Request for Acceptance of Sanitary Sewer Easement Agreement and Water Main 
Easement Agreement, Troy School District – Sidwell #88-20-23-323-001, Project 
No. 05.926.3 Baker Middle School Addition 8 

E-9 Request for Approval of Proposed Quit Claim Deed for Right-of-Way Acquisition 
and Authorization to Schedule Closing, Consumers Energy Company, Northeast 
Corner of Coolidge and Wattles – Sidwell #88-20-17-351-029, Project No. 
00.109.5 – Wattles East Bound and West Bound Right Turn Lane at Coolidge 8 

E-10 Private Agreement for TCF Bank – Project No. 05.944.3 8 

E-11 Request for Temporary Sales Trailer, Cedar Pines Estates Site Condominium 8 

E-12 Approval of Funding Agreement:  Boys and Girls Club 9 

E-13 Sale of Rochester Road Remnant Parcel #20-22-426-057, Section 22, All of Lot 
42, and Part of Lots 43 and 45 of Supervisors Plat #17 9 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 9 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 10 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Historic District 
Commission; Municipal Building Authority; and Youth Council c) Personnel Board 
Appointment Reconsideration 10 

F-2 Appointment of Representative and Alternate – Southeastern Oakland County 
Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) 13 

F-3 Amendment #2 – Concrete Pavement Repair Program 13 

F-4 Revisions to Troy City Code Chapter 18 (City Water Utility) 14 

F-5 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufacturing and 
Headquarter Companies 14 



 

 

F-6 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Adams Road Site Condominium, East 
Side of Adams Road, South of South Boulevard, Section 6 – R-1A 15 

F-7 Extension of Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Oak Forest South Site 
Condominium, East Side of Willow Grove, South of Square Lake Road, Section 11 
– R-1C 15 

F-8 Extension of Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Oak Forest Site 
Condominium, South Side of Square Lake Road between Willow Grove and John 
R Road, Section 11 – R-1C 16 

F-9 Rescind Award and Re-Award for Barn Repair 16 

F-10 Approval of Fee Revisions 17 

a) Revisions to Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Fees, Section I of the 
City of Troy Development Standards.................................................................. 17 

b) Revisions to Chapter 60 – Increase in Board of Zoning Appeals Application 
Fee ..................................................................................................................... 17 

c) Fee Increases – Museum ................................................................................... 17 

F-11 Scheduling of Special Meetings – Interview of Applicants for Employment for 
Position of City Manager 17 

F-12 Policy Adoption – Display of Signs on City Hall Site for Community Events 18 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 18 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 18 

a) Rezoning Application (Z 718) – Proposed Curves, East Side of Livernois, 
between Maple and Kirts, Section 28 – O-1 to B-3 – June 19, 2006 .................. 18 

b) Rezoning Application (Z 717) – Proposed Medical/General Office Building, 
Northwest Corner of Lovell and Rochester Road, Section 3 – R-1C to O-1 – 
June 19, 2006..................................................................................................... 18 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 18 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 18 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 18 



 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 19 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 19 

REPORTS: 19 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 19 

a) Joint Local Development Finance Authority – Troy Subcommittee/Final – 
January 30, 2006................................................................................................ 19 

b) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – April 10, 2006.............................................. 19 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – April 12, 2006 ......... 19 
d) Library Advisory Board/Final – April 13, 2006..................................................... 19 
e) Troy Daze Advisory/Festival Committee/Draft – April 25, 2006.......................... 19 
f) Troy Youth Council/Draft – April 26, 2006 .......................................................... 19 
g) Troy Youth Council/Final – April 26, 2006 .......................................................... 19 
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 2, 2006.................................. 19 
i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 2, 2006.................................. 19 
j) Joint Local Development Finance Authority – Troy Subcommittee/Draft – May 

8, 2006 ............................................................................................................... 19 
k) Planning Commission/Draft – May 9, 2006 ........................................................ 19 
l) Planning Commission/Final – May 9, 2006......................................................... 19 
m) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – May 10, 2006.......... 19 
n) Troy Youth Council/Draft – May 24, 2006........................................................... 19 

J-2 Department Reports: 19 

a) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – April 30, 2006....................................... 19 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 19 

a) Letter to Tonni Bartholomew from the Planning Commission In Appreciation 
of the Special Efforts on Election Night .............................................................. 19 

b) Letter of Thanks to Lt. Scherlinck and Sgt. Kowalski from Kim Streich 
Regarding the Support and Traffic Assistance During the March of Dimes 
WalkAmerica ...................................................................................................... 19 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 19 

a) Resolution from the City of Royal Oak – Reconstruction of I-75......................... 19 
b) Resolution from the City of Ferndale – Consideration of Constitutional 

Amendment Regarding Transit Funding............................................................. 19 
c) Resolution from the City of Ferndale – June, 2006 – Gay Pride Month.............. 19 

J-5  Calendar 19 

J-6  Communication from Michigan Municipal League Regarding the Proposed 
Changes to Local Cable Franchising 19 



 

 

J-7  Communication from City Engineer Steven Vandette Regarding Request to 
Amend Chapter 42, Flood Plain Management 19 

J-8  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 
Fee Waiver Policy for Military Personnel on Leave 20 

J-9  Communication from Assistant City Manager/Services Brian Murphy Regarding 
Request to Enter into Agreement to Place a Cell Tower at Station 6 20 

J-10  Communication from the City Engineer Steven Vandette Regarding Engineering 
Department Focus/Sustainable Stormwater Management 20 

STUDY ITEMS: 20 

K-1 Disposal/Sale of Excess Property 20 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 20 

CLOSED SESSION: 20 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 20 

ADJOURNMENT 20 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 21 

Saturday, June 10, 2006 Special City Council ...................................................... 21 
Monday, June 19, 2006 Regular City Council ....................................................... 21 
Monday, July 10, 2006 Regular City Council......................................................... 21 
Monday, July 24, 2006 Regular City Council......................................................... 21 
Monday, August 14, 2006 Regular City Council.................................................... 21 
Monday, August 28, 2006 Regular City Council.................................................... 21 
Monday, September 11, 2006 Regular City Council ............................................. 21 
Monday, September 18, 2006 Regular City Council ............................................. 21 
Monday, September 25, 2006 Regular City Council ............................................. 21 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Paul Lehman – Glen 
Oaks Alliance Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:   
a) Proclamation to Honor Joseph Haddad – 2005 Police Officer of the Year  
b) Proclamation to Honor Sherry LeVeque – 2005 Non-Sworn Police Department Employee 

of the Year  
c) Proclamation to Honor Daryl Klinko – 2006 Fire Fighter of the Year  
d) Presentation of Check to the City of Troy from the Historical Society’s Heritage 

Campaign for Expansion of the Troy Museum 
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal Renewal – 6881 Westaway   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
Proposed Resolution A (For Approval) 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:   
              
         
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Adrian Eremie, 6881 Westaway, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Chevrolet stake truck in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for   
   (not to exceed two years). 
 
Or Proposed Resolution B (For Denial) 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance pursuant to 
Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy: 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Adrian Eremie, 6881 Westaway, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Chevrolet stake truck in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Rezoning Application (Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South Side of 

Vanderpool, West of Rochester Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to 
B-2   

C-2a   Addendum Protest Petition 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1E to B-2 rezoning request, located on the south side of Vanderpool, 
west of Rochester Road and east of Ellenboro, Section 22, part of parcel 88-20-22-426-045, 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

being 0.5 acres in size, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the 
attached Certificate of Survey drawing: 

T2N, R11E, SE ¼ of Section 22 
 

Lot 41, excepting the south 125 ft., of Supervisors Plat No. 17 (Liber 28, page 36, of 
Oakland County Plats).  Containing ± 0.50 ac. more or less, and subject to easements of 
record. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Adoption of City Ordinance, Chapter 28 – Tree Ordinance and the Landscape 
Design & Tree Preservation Standards 

 
Pending Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 28 – Tree and Plant Ordinance, a copy of which shall be 
INCLUDED in the original Minutes of this meeting, is hereby ADOPTED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
Proposed Resolution to Postpone Voting on Resolution to Provide for the Repealing of 
Chapter 28 -  Tree Regulations Ordinance 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the proposed Resolution, Adoption 
of City Ordinance, Chapter 28 – Tree Ordinance and the Landscape Design & Tree 
Preservation Standards, Moved by Broomfield and Seconded by Schilling, until after 
consideration the proposed Repealing of City Ordinance, Chapter 28 – Tree Regulations 
Ordinance Resolution. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

Proposed Resolution to Repeal City Ordinance, Chapter 28 – Tree and Plant Regulations 
Ordinance 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution 2006-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 28 – Tree Regulations Ordinance, a copy of which shall be 
INCLUDED in the original Minutes of this meeting, is hereby REPEALED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of May 15, 2006 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
 
a) Joseph Haddad – 2005 Police Officer of the Year  
b) Sherry  LeVeque – 2005 Non-Sworn Police Department Employee of the Year  
c) Daryl Klinko – 2006 Fire Fighter of the Year  
  
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Uniform Rental 

Services            
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
WHEREAS, On July 19, 2004, a two-year contract with an option to renew for two additional 
years for uniform rental services was awarded to Arrow Uniform of Taylor, MI, the highest 
scoring and lowest priced bidder as a result of a best value process (Resolution #2004-07-375-
E6);  
 
WHEREAS, Arrow Uniform has agreed to exercise the two-year option to renew under the 
same prices, terms and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby EXERCISED 
with Arrow Uniform to provide uniform rental services under the same prices, terms, and 
conditions for two years expiring August 31, 2008. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 06-6, New 

King, Maxwell and Stutz Paving Rehabilitation            
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 06-6 for New King, Maxwell and Stutz paving rehabilitation, be 
AWARDED to John Carlo, Inc., 45000 River Ridge Road, Clinton Twp., MI 48035 at an 
estimated total cost of $283,754.90; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Breathing Apparatus 
Equipment for the Fire Department            

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish four (4) new self-contained breathing apparatus, and ten 
(10) upgrade kits is hereby AWARDED to the sole bidder, Douglass Safety Systems of Rhodes, 
MI, an authorized distributor of this equipment, at an estimated total cost of $22,590.00, at unit 
prices contained on the bid tabulation dated May 10, 2006.  
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds on City Council Member Travel Expenses – Michigan Municipal League 
Board of Trustees Meetings            

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That travel authorization and approval to expend funds is GRANTED for travel 
expenses associated with Council Member Robin Beltramini’s attendance of all meetings 
required as a result of her appointment to the Michigan Municipal League Board of Trustees. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Proprietary Maintenance Service Contract – 

Motorola Communications            
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That a six-month hardware and software maintenance contract for the City of 
Troy’s E911 system is hereby APPROVED with Motorola Communications, for proprietary 
hardware and software at an estimated cost of $13,565.00 expiring December 31, 2006. 
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Infestation Control 

Services – Landscaping            
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That a three-year contract to provide infestation control services for landscaping, 
with an option to renew for three (3) additional one-year periods is hereby AWARDED to the 
best value proposal submitted by Owen Tree Service, Inc. of Attica, MI, at unit prices contained 
in the bid tabulation opened May 12, 2006, with additional services as needed and prices as 
outlined in their service fee proposal and chemical listing dated May 24, 2006, to commence on 
the date of award and expire May 31, 2009; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.   
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Contract #071B4200234 State of Michigan and 
Election Systems and Software, Inc. – Central Count Optical Scan Voting System 
(Model M650) – Sole Source Vendor            

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the purchase of the Absentee Ballot 
System (ABS), M-650 tabulator with modem, ballot box and memory device from the sole 
source vendor, Election Systems and Software, Inc. (ES&S) - 11208 John Galt Blvd., Omaha, 
Nebraska 68137, at a budgeted cost of $65,000.00 from FY2006-07 budgeted funds and 
delivery of equipment to occur on or after July 1, 2006. 
 
E-5 Medi-Go Service Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request for funding in the amount of $170,000.00 or the entire municipal 
community credits (estimated at $174,581.00) transferred from SMART (whichever is greater) 
for Troy Medi-Go Plus for fiscal year 2006/2007, and the funding agreement between the City of 
Troy and Troy Medi-Go Plus commencing July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2007 is hereby 
APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreement, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Private Agreement for People’s State Bank – Project No. 05.931.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Troy Long Lake, L.L.C., is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of paving, storm sewer, water main and sidewalk on the site and in the adjacent 
right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 State of Michigan Election Equipment Grant Application Authorization 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council wishes to enter into a grant agreement with the State of 
Michigan, Michigan Department of State for the purchase of AutoMARK ballot marking devices 
and related Election Management System (EMS) programming software for use by individuals 
with disabilities pursuant to the Help America Vote Act (HAVA); 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Troy City 
Clerk to execute the grant application on behalf of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 
on this 5th day of June 2006. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

E-8 Request for Acceptance of Sanitary Sewer Easement Agreement and Water Main 
Easement Agreement, Troy School District – Sidwell #88-20-23-323-001, Project 
No. 05.926.3 Baker Middle School Addition 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That the sanitary sewer easement agreement and the water main easement 
agreement from Troy School District, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-23-326-001, are 
hereby ACCEPTED; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO SIGN said 
easement agreements on behalf of the City of Troy; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
agreements with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Request for Approval of Proposed Quit Claim Deed for Right-of-Way Acquisition 

and Authorization to Schedule Closing, Consumers Energy Company, Northeast 
Corner of Coolidge and Wattles – Sidwell #88-20-17-351-029, Project No. 00.109.5 – 
Wattles East Bound and West Bound Right Turn Lane at Coolidge 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed quit claim deed for the acquisition of right-of-way from 
Consumers Energy Company, for property having Sidwell #88-20-17-351-029, and located at 
the northeast corner of Coolidge and Wattles, is hereby APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That authorization is hereby GRANTED to purchase the 
property referenced above in the amount of $17,600.00, plus closing costs. 
 
E-10 Private Agreement for TCF Bank – Project No. 05.944.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and TCF Bank, is hereby APPROVED for the installation 
of paving, storm sewer and sidewalk on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-11 Request for Temporary Sales Trailer, Cedar Pines Estates Site Condominium 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

RESOLVED, That the request from Christopher Pratt representing Wake-Pratt Construction 
Company for the placement of a temporary office trailer on the site of the one of the parcels in 
the Cedar Pines Estates Site Condominium Development, is hereby APPROVED for a six 
month period in accordance with Chapter 47, House Trailers and Trailer Courts, Section 
6.41(3), of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
E-12 Approval of Funding Agreement:  Boys and Girls Club 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That the funding agreement between the City of Troy and Boys and Girls Club of 
Troy for July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2007 is hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
E-13 Sale of Rochester Road Remnant Parcel #20-22-426-057, Section 22, All of Lot 42, 

and Part of Lots 43 and 45 of Supervisors Plat #17 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council finds that the public interest will 
best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 85-254 Policy 
Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City owned property and APPROVE the sale of the 
remnant parcel having Sidwell #88-20-22-426-057, described in Attachment “A” attached 
hereto, to Troy-Rochester Properties L.L.C. for $200,000.00, the appraised value as outlined in 
the Offer to Purchase, with conditions, plus closing costs; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That closing will take place when all conditions have been met; 
and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Agreement to Purchase and the Warranty Deed, on behalf of the City; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents, including all attachments, at the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to and made a part of the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Historic District 
Commission; Municipal Building Authority; and Youth Council c) Personnel Board 
Appointment Reconsideration 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled   
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Alternate) Unexpired Term Expires 11/01/06 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/09 
 
Historic District Commission  One member, an architect if available 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  Two members, chosen from a list submitted by a 
  duly organized history group or groups 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
Municipal Building Authority  
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Youth Council 
Appointed by Council (13) – 1 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
 Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
 Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
 Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
 Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
 Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
 Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
 Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

 
 Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
 Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
 Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
 Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
 Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(c) Reconsideration of Personnel Board Appointment 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2006-05-226, Moved by Broomfield and Seconded by Lambert, 
as it appears below be RECONSIDERED by City Council: 
 

RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE 
CITY COUNCIL to serve on the below Board and Committee as indicated: 

 
Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Glenn Clark Term Expires 04/30/09 

 
Yes:  Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert  
No:  Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  

 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
Suggested Resolution to Amend Resolution for Personnel Board Appointment 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Resolution #2006-05-226, Moved by 
Broomfield and Seconded by Lambert, by STRIKING “Glenn Clark” and INSERTING       



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

          .   
  

Yes: 
No: 
 
Suggested Resolution to Appoint Personnel Board Member as Amended by 
Reconsideration 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-05-226 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Board and Committee as indicated: 
 
Personnel Board  
Appointed by Council  (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/09 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Appointment of Representative and Alternate – Southeastern Oakland County 

Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Brian P. Murphy be DESIGNATED as the SOCRRA Representative and 
Timothy L. Richnak be DESIGNATED as the Alternate SOCRRA Representative with terms 
expiring on June 30, 2007. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Amendment #2 – Concrete Pavement Repair Program 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On July 11, 2005, contracts to complete the City of Troy’s concrete pavement 
repair program were amended to the low bidders:  Major Cement Company – Proposal A, Hard 
Rock Concrete, Inc. – Proposal B, and Six S, Inc. – Proposal C, in an amount not to exceed 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

$750,000.00, $500,000.00, and $500,000.00 respectively, for completion by June 30, 2006, at 
unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened December 10, 2004 (Resolution #2005-07-
325-E11);  
 
WHEREAS, It is recommended that the contracts be amended to allow for additional concrete 
replacement for work to be completed by June 30, 2006, on Major Roads – Proposal A and 
Local Roads – Proposal B;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the contracts are hereby AMENDED to provide additional 
concrete pavement repair for two of the low bidders: Major Cement Company – Proposal A and 
Hard Rock Concrete, Inc. – Proposal B, not to exceed $1,250,000.00, and $750,000.00, 
respectively for completion of work by June 30, 2006, at the same unit prices, terms and conditions 
as the original contract. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Revisions to Troy City Code Chapter 18 (City Water Utility) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED,  That Section 12 of Chapter 18 of the Troy City Code be REVISED as 
recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufacturing and 

Headquarter Companies 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence of the industrial base, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) 
encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities in industrial areas, 
and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax exemptions for certain 
industrial properties which meet certain criteria established by the Act; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that the following 
criteria are to be met, applied or measured by the City Manager or his designees in the review 
of areas and locations to be considered for designation as Industrial Development Districts 
(IDD) by the City Council: 
 

1) That the tax exemption shall not apply to real property except those building 
improvements which are uniquely required to support the personal property to be 
abated; and 

 
2) That the tax exemption shall not apply to leasehold improvements or building 

improvements except those uniquely required to support personal property to be 
abated; and  

 
3) That said abatement of taxes shall cease at such time as applicant fails to prove 

by factual evidence that such personal property is being used in compliance with 
the basic guidelines established above. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the term of abatement for any and all property meeting the 
aforementioned criteria SHALL NOT exceed 12 years, it being the INTENT OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL TO APPROVE various lengths of abatements to the extent provided by laws of the 
State of Michigan. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Adams Road Site Condominium, East 

Side of Adams Road, South of South Boulevard, Section 6 – R-1A 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the preliminary site condominium plan, as submitted under Section 34.30.00 
of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) and Section 
34.70.00 (One-Family Cluster Option) for the development of a one-family residential site 
condominium known as Adams Road Site Condominium, located on the east side of Adams 
Road, south of South Boulevard, in Section 6, including 5 home sites, within the R-1A zoning 
district, being 4.98 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-7 Extension of Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Oak Forest South Site 

Condominium, East Side of Willow Grove, South of Square Lake Road, Section 11 
– R-1C 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 16 - 

Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a one-year extension to April 18, 2007 of the preliminary site condominium 
approval be GRANTED for Oak Forest Site Condominium located on the east side of Willow 
Grove and south of Square Lake Road in Section 11. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-8 Extension of Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Oak Forest Site 

Condominium, South Side of Square Lake Road between Willow Grove and John R 
Road, Section 11 – R-1C 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a one-year extension to April 18, 2007 of the preliminary site condominium 
approval be GRANTED for Oak Forest Site Condominium located on the south side of Square 
Lake Road between Willow Grove and John R Road in Section 11. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-9 Rescind Award and Re-Award for Barn Repair 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On January 9, 2006, a contract to repair the small barn at the Troy Farm was 
awarded to David L. Ingraham of St. Johns, MI, who submitted the lowest informal quotation at 
an estimated cost of $24,600.00, plus a 10% contingency (Resolution #2006-01-010); 
 
WHEREAS, David L. Ingraham has withdrawn from the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, On May 10, 2006, a subsequent quote was received from Akins Construction, Inc. 
to stabilize the small barn at the Troy Farm, but not replace the roof;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the contract be RESCINDED with prejudice from David 
L. Ingraham of St. Johns, MI and RE-AWARDED to Akins Construction, Inc. of Sterling Heights, 
MI for an estimated cost of $14,950.00, plus a 10% contingency; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s 
submission of properly executed documents including insurance certificates and any other 
specified requirements. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 17 - 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-10 Approval of Fee Revisions 
 
a) Revisions to Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Fees, Section I of the City of 

Troy Development Standards            
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That revisions to subsection I1(p), Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Fees, 
of the City of Troy Development Standards are hereby ADOPTED (effective July 1, 2006) as 
recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
b) Revisions to Chapter 60 – Increase in Board of Zoning Appeals Application Fee            
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Section 60.03 of Chapter 60 of the Troy City Code, be REVISED to include 
fees for the Board of Zoning Appeals applications in accordance with the proposal prepared by 
City Management, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
c) Fee Increases – Museum           
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That the attached proposed changes in the fee structure for facility rentals at the 
Troy Historical Museum are hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
F-11 Scheduling of Special Meetings – Interview of Applicants for Employment for 

Position of City Manager 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 18 - 

 
RESOLVED, That Special Meetings of City Council are hereby SCHEDULED for the purpose of 
interviewing applicants for employment for the position of City Manager on Friday, June 9th at 
6:30 PM and on Sunday, June 11th at ________ in the Council Board Room; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That to assure fairness in the interview process, the Special 
Meeting scheduled for Friday, June 9th will be TAPED and SHOWN on tape delay after the 
Special Meeting of Sunday, June 11th and there will be no live webcast of the meetings.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-12 Policy Adoption – Display of Signs on City Hall Site for Community Events 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the policy for the installation of signs announcing community events on City 
Hall property be ADOPTED in accordance with the proposal prepared by City Management, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Rezoning Application (Z 718) – Proposed Curves, East Side of Livernois, between Maple 

and Kirts, Section 28 – O-1 to B-3 – June 19, 2006  
b) Rezoning Application (Z 717) – Proposed Medical/General Office Building, Northwest 

Corner of Lovell and Rochester Road, Section 3 – R-1C to O-1 – June 19, 2006 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 19 - 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Joint Local Development Finance Authority – Troy Subcommittee/Final – January 30, 

2006  
b) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – April 10, 2006 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – April 12, 2006 
d) Library Advisory Board/Final – April 13, 2006 
e) Troy Daze Advisory/Festival Committee/Draft – April 25, 2006 
f) Troy Youth Council/Draft – April 26, 2006  
g) Troy Youth Council/Final – April 26, 2006  
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 2, 2006  
i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 2, 2006  
j) Joint Local Development Finance Authority – Troy Subcommittee/Draft – May 8, 2006 
k) Planning Commission/Draft – May 9, 2006  
l) Planning Commission/Final – May 9, 2006 
m)

) Troy Youth Council/Draft – May 24, 2006  
 Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – May 10, 2006  

n
  

J-2 Department Reports: 
a) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – April 30, 2006 
  
J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
a) Letter to Tonni Bartholomew from the Planning Commission In Appreciation of the 

Special Efforts on Election Night  
b) Letter of Thanks to Lt. Scherlinck and Sgt. Kowalski from Kim Streich Regarding the 

Support and Traffic Assistance During the March of Dimes WalkAmerica 
 
J-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizati  ons:   
a) Resolution from the City of Royal Oak – Reconstruction of I-75  
b) Resolution from the City of Ferndale – Consideration of Constitutional Amendment 

Regarding Transit Funding  
c) Resolution from the City of Ferndale – June, 2006 – Gay Pride Month  
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Communication from Michigan Municipal League Regarding the Proposed 

Changes to Local Cable Franchising 
 
J-7  Communication from City Engineer Steven Vandette Regarding Request to Amend 

Chapter 42, Flood Plain Management 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 20 - 

J-8  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 
Fee Waiver Policy for Military Personnel on Leave  

 
J-9  Communication from Assistant City Manager/Services Brian Murphy Regarding 

Request to Enter into Agreement to Place a Cell Tower at Station 6 

ion from the City Engineer Steven Vandette Regarding Engineering 
 
J-10  Communicat

Department Focus/Sustainable Stormwater Management 

TUDY ITEMS:  

-1 Disposal/Sale of Excess Property 

 
S
 
K
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 

henever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
 it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 

satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

LOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 

w
are encouraged to bring

 
C

 
ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 5, 2006 
 

- 21 - 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Saturday, June 10, 2006 ............................................................ Special City Council 
Monday, June 19, 2006............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, July 10, 2006 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, July 24, 2006 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, August 14, 2006 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, August 28, 2006 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 11, 2006 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 18, 2006 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 25, 2006 ................................................... Regular City Council 

 



 PROCLAMATION TO HONOR  
JOSEPH HADDAD  

2005 POLICE OFFICER OF THE YEAR 
 
WHEREAS, Officer Joseph Haddad has been a member of the Troy Police Department since 
1996, and currently serves as a field training officer, evidence technician, special response team 
member, crisis negotiator, honor guard member, and firearms instructor; and 
 
WHEREAS, His selection was based on his commitment to both the department and the 
community, as well as his superior performance, hard work and dedication to duty; and  
 
WHEREAS, Officer Haddad has used his fluency in Arabic to communicate with residents in need 
of police service, and acts as the Department’s liaison in developing action plans in English and 
Arabic for a local church to manage holiday traffic and parking; and 
 
WHEREAS, With his professional demeanor, Officer Haddad has been called upon to recruit new 
Police Officers at events held at universities throughout Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS, Achievements in Officer Haddad’s career include a Meritorious Service Medal and 
numerous commendations and letters of positive performance from citizens and businesses in 
conjunction with his service as a Police Officer; and 
 
WHEREAS, Since 1986, Officer Haddad has served in the U.S. Army, where he is currently a 
Command Sergeant Major in the U.S. Army Reserves; and  
 
WHEREAS, Officer Haddad goes above and beyond the call of duty and is a tremendous asset to 
the Troy Police Department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy, does hereby join 
with the citizens of Troy, to express sincere congratulations to Officer Joseph Haddad on the 
occasion of being chosen 2005 Police Officer of the Year by the Troy Police Department. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council commends Officer Haddad for his 
achievement, leadership and dedicated service to the citizens of Troy. 
 
Presented this 5th day of June 2006. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



PROCLAMATION TO HONOR 
SHERRY LEVEQUE 

2005 NON-SWORN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
EMPLOYEE OF THE YEAR 

 
WHEREAS, Sherry LeVeque has served the Troy Police Department since March 1996 
when she was hired as a Police Service Aide. She was promoted to her current position of 
Civilian Communications Supervisor in January 1999; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sherry is being honored as the 2005 Non-Sworn Police Department 
Employee of the Year for her outstanding performance, dedication to her position, 
professionalism, and commitment to providing the best service to the residents of Troy; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Sherry played a key role in developing the Communications Training 
Program for new hires which has become a model policy for other dispatch agencies 
seeking training programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, As an Associated Public-Safety Communications Officer Training Officer, 
Sherry instructs training courses for emergency services dispatchers around the State of 
Michigan each year; and  
 
WHEREAS, Sherry has received 12 Letters of Commendation from the Police 
Department, a Department Commendation, and letters of positive performance from 
citizens and businesses; and  
 
WHEREAS, Through Sherry’s leadership, hard work and commitment to providing quality 
service, the Troy Police Department has gained the respect of the community and other 
law enforcement agencies. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy, does 
hereby join with the citizens of Troy, to express sincere congratulations to Sherry 
LeVeque on the occasion of being chosen 2005 Non-Sworn Employee of the Year by 
the Troy Police Department. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council commends Sherry for her 
achievement, leadership and dedicated service to the citizens of Troy. 
 
Presented this 5th day of June 2006. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b



PROCLAMATION TO HONOR  
DARYL KLINKO 

2006 FIRE FIGHTER OF THE YEAR 
 
WHEREAS, Daryl Klinko has been a volunteer Fire Fighter since joining Troy’s Fire Station 6 in 1986; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, His selection as Fire Fighter of the Year is due to his over 20 years of dedication to the 
Troy Fire Department, having served with honor and dignity in all of his roles at the station, including 
leadership roles; and 
 
WHEREAS, Daryl has served as a Lieutenant, Station 6 Association President, incentive committee 
representative and safety committee member; and 
 
WHEREAS, Daryl is a role model for Troy’s new fire recruits and always willing to share his knowledge 
and experience with others; and 
 
WHEREAS, In addition to fire service, Daryl is employed by General Motors Corp. as the Assistant 
Director of Health Care Finance and is always willing to provide assistance above and beyond his fire 
department and career responsibilities, including neighborhood clean-ups, and soup kitchen and rescue 
mission assistance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Through Fire Fighter Klinko’s leadership, commitment, hard work and countless hours of 
service, the Troy Fire Department has become even more efficient in its delivery of quality fire 
protection to the community. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy, does hereby join with 
the citizens of Troy, to express sincere congratulations to Fire Fighter Daryl Klinko on the occasion of 
being chosen 2006 Fire Fighter of the Year by the Troy Fire Department. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council commends Daryl for his achievement, leadership 
and dedicated service to the citizens of Troy. 
 
Presented this 5th day of June 2006. 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01c



May 30, 2006 
 
 
TO:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager  
 
FROM:  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
   
SUBJECT:  AGENDA ITEM: Presentation for June 5th Council Meeting  
 
 
 
The Troy Historical Society's Heritage Campaign will present to the City of Troy  
$151, 435.84 to be applied to the purchase of property at 109 Lange Street, which is 
adjacent to the Troy Museum & Historic Village. This land will be used for the expansion 
of the Troy Museum, which includes relocating the Niles Barnard House and an historic 
barn to the Village. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CS 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01d



 
 
DATE:   May 30, 2006 
 
 
 
TO:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal, Renewal 

6881 Westaway 
 
 
 
 
On May 16, 2005, City Council approved an appeal for one year for the outdoor storage 
of a commercial vehicle on the residential property at 6881 Westaway. That approval 
will soon expire. We have contacted the owner and he was given the option to remove 
the vehicle or appeal to City Council for renewal of the relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our contact, Mr. Ermie has filed an appeal. The appeal requests that a 
public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance. A public hearing has been 
scheduled for your meeting of June 5, 2006. 
 
The petitioner’s property is relatively large, being 167’ wide by 310’ deep.  However, the 
existing house on the property has only a 699 square foot ground floor area and there is 
already a 550 square foot detached garage.  Only 149 square feet of detached 
accessory building can be added to the site per the requirements of Section 40.57.04.  
The petitioner has a permit, and is in the process of expanding the home.  At this time 
the home is vacant.  As part of the current work, the existing detached garage is to be 
removed.  Once that addition is complete there will be 1,714 square feet to the first floor 
of the home.  Once complete, a 1,485 square foot detached garage could be 
constructed as well as a 1,285 square foot attached garage. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 



 



 



 1

Date: May 25, 2006 
 
To: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 704) – 

Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South side of Vanderpool, West of Rochester 
Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to B-2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The rezoning application is compatible with surrounding land uses and zoning districts.  
Further, the request is consistent with the existing B-2 zoning located south of 
Vanderpool.  The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on April 11, 
2006 and recommended approval of the rezoning request.  City Management agrees 
with the Planning Commission and recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO FUTURE LAND USE PLAN 
 
The subject property is designated as non-center commercial on the Future Land Use 
Plan.  Both the B-3 and H-S zoning districts correlate with the non-center commercial 
future land use designation.  Most of the uses permitted in the proposed B-2 district are 
permitted in the B-3 district; however, the B-3 district includes a wider range of uses.  
Within the B-3 district, the front yard setback is 40 feet and the rear yard setback is 30 
feet.  The proposed B-2 district setbacks are greater; the front yard setback is 75 feet 
and the rear yard setback is 30 feet.  Therefore, the potential land uses are less 
intensive within the proposed B-2 district and the building setbacks are greater, when 
compared to the future planned B-3 district.  
 
The proposed rezoning would extend the existing western boundary of B-2 property to 
line up precisely with the abutting property to the south, which is also within the B-2 
zoning district.  This proposed B-2 boundary extends slightly further to the west than the 
B-3 district to the north and across Vanderpool.  However, the depth of the proposed B-
2 zoning towards the west is consistent with properties along the western side of the 
Rochester Road corridor, between Big Beaver and Wattles.   
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owners of the property are Glenn and Barbara Carter.  The applicant is John 
Glasnak of Troy-Rochester Properties, LLC. 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 2

Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the south side of Vanderpool, west of Rochester Road and 
east of Ellenboro, in Section 22. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 0.5 acres in area.  
 
Parcel History: 
The applicant submitted an application to rezone the subject parcel on May 16, 2005.  
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the rezoning request on June 14, 
2005.  City Council denied the request on August 1, 2005.  The applicant modified the 
site plan by eliminating the entry drive on Vanderpool.   
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject parcel is a single family residence. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1E One Family Residential. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-2 Community Business. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to acquire three City-owned remnant parcels that abut the 
subject parcel to the east.  The four parcels will be combined and developed as a 
Dunkin Donuts restaurant.  Rezoning and combining these parcels creates a desirable 
commercial site.  The applicant has provided a site plan that indicates all traffic will enter 
the site from Rochester Road.  The site plan also proposes a 6-foot high screen wall on 
the western property line and significant landscaping on the east side of the wall.   
 
The remnant parcels are Lot 42 and part of Lots 43 and 45 of Supervisor’s Plat Number 
17.  The subject parcel is part of Lot 41 of Supervisor’s Plat Number 17.  The purchase 
of the remnant parcels will be approved upon the rezoning request being granted. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single-family residential. 
South: Troy Point Plaza (retail strip mall). 
East: Vacant. 
West: Single-family residential. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1E One Family Residential and B-3 General Business. 
South: B-2 Community Business. 
East: B-2 Community Business. 
West: R-1E One Family Residential. 



 3

ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed B-2 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 

PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
Any retail business or service establishment permitted in B-1 Districts as Principal 
Uses Permitted and Uses Permitted Subject to Special Conditions,  
 
Any retail business whose principal activity is the sale of merchandise in an 
enclosed building, except for those limited to or first permitted in the B-3 General 
Business District. 
 
Any service establishment of a showroom or workshop nature, of an electrician, 
decorator, dressmaker, tailor, baker, painter, upholsterer; or an establishment doing 
radio or home appliance repair, photographic studios and reproduction and similar 
service establishments that require a retail adjunct. 
 
Business establishments which perform services on the premises, such as but not 
limited to:  banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, loan companies, 
insurance offices, travel services, and real estate offices. 
 
Private clubs, fraternal organization, and lodge halls. 
 
Restaurants, or other places serving food or beverage, except those having the 
character of a drive-in or open front store. 
 
Theaters, assembly halls, concert halls or similar places of assembly, when 
conducted completely within enclosed buildings. 
 
Business schools and colleges or private schools operated for profit, not including 
nursery schools. 
 
Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
Drive-up Windows or Service Facilities, as Accessory to Principal Uses Within B-2 
Districts, Apart from Restaurants 
 
Outside seating areas, of twenty (20) seats or less, for restaurants or other food 
service establishments 



 4

USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 
Drive-Up Windows or Service Facilities, as an Accessory to Restaurants Permitted 
Within this District 
 
Bowling alley, billiard hall, indoor archery range, indoor skating, rinks, indoor tennis 
courts, athletic or health clubs, or similar forms of indoor commercial recreation, 
when the subject uses are located at least 100 feet from any Residential District. 
 
Open air business uses when developed as uses subordinate to primary uses and 
structures within the B-2 District as follows: 
 
A. Retail sales of plant material not grown on the site, and sales of lawn 

furniture, playground equipment and garden supplies. 
B. Recreational space providing shuffleboard, miniature golf, tennis, or similar 

outdoor recreation, when part of a planned development. 
C. Outdoor driver training and testing areas on or abutting the site of a driving 

school. 
 
Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other 
food service establishments. 
 
Facilities within a retail establishment for installation, in vehicles, of items sold at 
retail at that location. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Vanderpool. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Non-Center Commercial.  The 
Non-Center Commercial designation has a Primary Correlation with the B-3 General 
Business Zoning District and a Secondary Correlation with the H-S Highway Service 
Zoning District.  The Non-Center Commercial designation does not correlate with the B-
2 Zoning District.  However, the B-2 district is a commercial zone as is B-3, and the B-2 
district is less intense in terms of potential uses than the B-3 district.  Further, the 
request is an expansion of an existing B-2 zoning district.  The Rochester Road frontage 
has been planned for Non-Center Commercial since 1965. 
 



 5

Compliance with Location Standards: 
The B-2 Local Business Zoning District does not have Location Standards to apply to 
rezoning requests. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Statement of Applicant. 
3. Letters of opposition (3). 

 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File / Z 704 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-704 DUNKIN DONUTS SEC 22\CC Public Hearing_06 05 06.doc 
 
 





R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

SUBJECT PARCEL



VANDERPOOL

TORPEY

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

R
O

C
H

E
STER

W
IN

TH
RO

P

CHARRINGTON

REZONING REQEUST
PROPOSED DUNKIN DONUTS
FROM R-1E TO B-2
E SIDE OF ROCHESTER RD., N OF BIG BEAVER
SEC. 22  (Z-704 B)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 10050
Feet



VANDERPOOL

TORPEY

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

R
O

C
H

E
STER

W
IN

TH
RO

P

CHARRINGTON

(H-S) Highway
Service District

(R-1E) One Family
Residential District

(B-3) General
Business
District

(B-2) Community
Business District

REZONING REQEUST
PROPOSED DUNKIN DONUTS
FROM R-1E TO B-2
E SIDE OF ROCHESTER RD., N OF BIG BEAVER
SEC. 22  (Z-704 B)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 10050
Feet

























 1

 
May 31, 2006 
 
 
TO: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Addendum to Agenda Item C-02 - Public Hearing – Rezoning Application 

(Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South side of Vanderpool, West of 
Rochester Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to B-2 

 
 
A protest petition in opposition of the above referenced rezoning application was 
submitted to the City Manager’s Office on May 30, 2006.   
 
To be considered valid under Article 03.21.07 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, a 
protest petition must meet the following standard:   
 

Said protest petition shall be duly signed by the owners of at least twenty 
percent (20%) of the area of land included in the proposed change, or by the 
owners of at least twenty percent (20%) of the area of land included within an 
area extending outward one hundred (100) feet from any point on the boundary 
of the land included in the proposed change, excluding publicly owned land.  
 

City Management reviewed the protest petition and determined that it was signed by 
owners of only 5.23% of the property located within the one hundred (100) foot 
boundary (excluding City-owned parcels).  Since the submitted protest petition is 
determined to be invalid, a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the City Council is not necessary to 
approve the rezoning request; a simple majority vote is sufficient.   
 
Additionally, note that the protest petition was not submitted on a form provided by the 
City, as per Article 03.21.07.  
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Protest Petition, received by City Manager’s Office on 05/30/06. 
2. Map. 

 
cc: Applicant 

File/ Z-704 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-704 DUNKIN DONUTS SEC 22\Memo to Acting City Manager 05 31 06.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02a



















3193

3190

846834

10
40

10
31

10
41

1079

35
01

34
99

34
97

34
95

32
79

32
89

32
85

32
87

32
83

895
847

875

3373
3364821 859 943 965

633

737 745

862
820 854

856

3290
3284
3278

10
95

3281

3439

1087

935

624612
906

864

906880840828816800790

835
865809

675

775 827801

757

625

630

636

612
650 670 690

980968910796 870 884 900756748712680656648

663 683 711 755 803 913905

975

921

858 878 902
934 968954946920

665615

780

983

915

3236

32
75

3480
3468

3299

3293

3296

10713424

1063
3400

10553385

3381

3321

3268

3456

3334
3332
3330

871 883 895

800

3314

645

3303

3295

3261

3216

3289

3302

3326

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

TROMBLEY

VANDERPOOL

HARRIS

CHARRINGTON

TORPEY

BOYD

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED DUNKIN DONUTS
FROM R-1E TO B-2
S SIDE OF VANDERPOOL, W OF ROCHESTER RD.
SEC. 22  (Z-704 B)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 200 400100
Feet

Legend
SUBJECT PARCEL

100 FT. BUFFER

SIGNED PETITION

AREA OF 100 FT. BUFFER EXCLUDING CITY PROPERTY = 57,017.18 S.F.

20% OF BUFFER EXCLUDING CITY PROPERTY = 11,403.44 S.F.

AREA OF BUFFER REPRESENTED BY PETITION SIGNERS = 2985.50 S.F.  
OR = 5.23 %



   Memorandum 
 

To: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
From: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Date: June 1, 2006 

Subject: Agenda Item: D-01 Adoption of City Ordinance, Chapter 28 – Tree Ordinance 
and the Landscape Design & Tree Preservation Standards 

 
 

 
Due to a major re-write of Chapter 28 and a discrepancy in the original recommended 
motion submitted to City Council, the attached repealing resolution has been proposed in 
addition to the postponed adoption resolution. Due to the nature of a repealing ordinance it 
is recommended that the two resolutions remain separate. 
 
Additionally, a recommended motion to postpone action on the active main motion has been 
provided. The intent of the postponement is to allow Council to repeal the existing 
ordinance, Chapter 28 - Tree Regulations, immediately prior to the adoption of active motion 
on the adoption of Chapter 28 – Tree and Plant Regulations Ordinance. Should it be the 
desire of the Council to fail the adoption of the active postponed motion, the repealing 
ordinance should not be considered or should also fail. If the repealing resolution is offered, 
and is successful, and the new ordinance is NOT adopted, Council should immediately 
rescind the repealing resolution.  
 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



 
D-1 Adoption of City Ordinance, Chapter 28 – Tree Ordinance and the 

Landscape Design & Tree Preservation Standards 
 
Resolution 2006-06- 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 28 – Tree and Plant Ordinance, a copy of which shall 
be INCLUDED in the original Minutes of this meeting, is hereby ADOPTED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 
Proposed Resolution to Postpone Voting on Resolution to Provide for the 
Repealing of Chapter 28 -  Tree Regulations Ordinance 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the proposed 
Resolution, Adoption of City Ordinance, Chapter 28 – Tree Ordinance and the 
Landscape Design & Tree Preservation Standards, Moved by Broomfield and 
Seconded by Schilling, until after consideration the proposed Repealing of City 
Ordinance, Chapter 28 – Tree Regulations Ordinance Resolution. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 
Proposed Resolution to Repeal City Ordinance, Chapter 28 – Tree and Plant 
Regulations Ordinance 
 
Resolution 2006-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 28 – Tree Regulations Ordinance, a copy of which 
shall be INCLUDED in the original Minutes of this meeting, is hereby 
REPEALED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY OF TROY 
REPEAL CHAPTER 28- TREE REGULATIONS 

OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
Chapter 28, Tree Regulations of the Code of the City of Troy is hereby repealed by the 
Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City 
Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI on the 5th day of June, 2006 and is 
effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, whichever shall later 
occur. 
 
 

 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
PUBLISHED:  Monday, June 12, 2006 
 



 1

May 1, 2006 
 
TO:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item: City Ordinance, Chapter 28 - Tree Ordinance and 
the Landscape Design & Tree Preservation Standards 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
City Management recommends approval of the attached revised versions of City 
Ordinance, Chapter 28 – Tree Ordinance as well as the Landscape Design and 
Tree Preservation Standards. The changes in these documents clarify ambiguous 
sections and include changes as outlined herein. Following the Council study 
session of April 3, 2006, staff reviewed the comments by Council and public 
comments and submits Chapter 28 – Tree and Plant Ordinance for approval and 
the Landscape Design and Tree Preservation Standards for review. 
 
This item was submitted as a Green Memo on March 20, 2006 and revisions were 
included in the documents reviewed by City Council at their study session on April 
3, 2006. Both documents have been reviewed as to form and legality by the City 
Attorney’s office. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The purpose of Chapter 28 is to establish procedures, and practices governing the 
protection, installation and long-term maintenance of trees, plants, and vegetation 
within the City of Troy. The Landscape Design and Tree Preservation Standards 
provide development standards for commercial properties and subdivisions. The 
following is a general outline of the functions of the two documents: 
 

Chapter 28 – Tree and Plant Ordinance 
• Enforcement: 
• Maintenance and planting of materials on municipal sites 
• Responsibilities of private plant owners 
• Responsibilities of property owner before and during development 
 
The Landscape Design and Tree Preservation Standards 
• Approval Process for Tree Preservation and Landscape Plans 
• Request for Variance/Waiver  
• Information required for review and format for submittal 
• Tree Preservation and Protection 
• Fees and Deposits 
• Inspections 
• Violations of these Standards 
• Qualifications and Responsibilities of Individuals  
• Plant Material Requirements, Site Preparation and Plant Installation 
 



 2

 
 
STUDY SESSION COMMENTS: 
The following additional changes resulted from comments by City Council and 
public at the April 3, 2006 Council study session: 
 
 

Changes made to Chapter 28 as of 4-3-06: 
 
Punctuation and grammatical corrections are not noted. 
 
Section 28.01.00 – section #’s removed numbers from line items and bulleted 
Section 28.02.00: 

• 28.02.02  - redefined “City” 
• 28.02.04 – changed (28.02.23) to (28.02.26) 
• 28.02.12 – moved “Lawn Extensions” definition from 28.14.02 and added 

the word “public”. 
• Renumber definitions 28.02.13 through 28.02.28 to accommodate new 

definitions 
• 28.02.14 – added new definition for “Municipal property”. 
• 28.02.15 – added new definition for “Municipal Tree”. 
• 28.02.18 – moved list out of definition and added to 28.06.04. 
• 28.02.19 – moved following to 28.08.01 – “There shall be no undue 

compression of the earth or otherwise impeding or preventing the access 
of water or air to the root system of the plant or excavation around or 
removal of soil or earth or the addition of earth or any other materials 
within the tree protection areas. Building material and other debris shall 
not be placed inside the tree protection areas.” 

• 28.02.20d – removed the word “City” and added “owned by the City” 
• 28.02.26 – changed (28.02.10) to (28.02.19). 

Section 28.04.00: 
• 28.04.01 – added the word “trees” and the statement “All State and 

Federal requirements and restrictions shall be followed when applying 
weed/pest control to plants in public spaces”. 

• 28.04.02 – changed “planting” to “installing”, changed “planting” to 
“installation”, added “necessary to determine compliance with this 
ordinance”. 

• 28.04.03 – reworded leaving amount and type of insurance open. 
• 28.04.07 – changed “Plant” to “installation” and “plant” to “install” 

Section 28.06.00: 
• 28.06.03 – changed (28.02.17) to (28.02.20) 
• 28.06.04 – relocated prohibited plant list to this section  
• 28.06.04L – separated this section from main body of text and changed 

(LD35.01.00) to (#LD35.02.00). 
• 28.06.04M - separated this section from main body of text. 
• 28.06.05 – changed “plants” to “trees (4” DBH and up)” and added “prior 

to the application and approval by the City for development”. 



 3

• 28.06.05a – added as new. 
• 28.06.06 – reworded for clarity. 
• 28.06.07a – added “for said work”. 
• 28.06.07b – added “for said work”. 

Section 28.07.06 – changed “ordinance” to “section”. 
Section 28.08.00: 

• 28.08.01 – added “(see 28.02.19)” and added “There shall be………” 
• 28.08.03  - changed “of” to “for”. 
• 28.08.05 – changed (28.02.23) to (28.02.26). 
• 28.08.06 – changed “may” to “will be allowed”. 

Section 28.11.00: 
• 28.11.02 – changed “shall” to “are to” 
• 28.11.04 – added “All tree guards and stakes shall be removed one (1) 

year after installation”. 
• 28.11.06 – added “stating otherwise”. 
• 28.11.08 – changed from 6” to 10” to conform to other existing ordinances. 

Section 28.12.00 – added “comply with the requirements of section 28.1.01 
through 28.12.03”. 
Section 28.13.01 – split this section out text and changed “damages” to  

“compensation”. 
Section 28.14.00: 

• Renumbered section after moving definition of “Lawn Extension” to 
28.02.00. 

• 28.14.02 – added the words “other than normal maintenance” &  
“maliciously, and/or wantonly”. 

• 28.14.04 – added “of public streets” and changed “mechanically edged” to 
“edged” 

• 28.14.05 – removed the word “major” and added “located in public 
spaces”. 

• 28.14.07 – added “of public streets”. 
• 28.14.07a – added as new. 

Section 28.15.00: 
• 28.15.03 – changed “as close as” to “at least 
• 28.15.04 - changed “as close as” to “at least and changed “City” to 

“Director”. 
• 28.15.05 – same as 28.15.04 and change “is involved” to “prevents the 

use of a larger tree”. 
• 28.15.06 – changed “may be planted” to “twenty (20) feet or less are 

permitable plantings”. 
Section 28.16.00: 

• 28.16.01 – changed “any of the provisions” to “pertaining to public 
spaces”. 

• 28.16.04 – changed “revision” to “edition”. 
 
 
 
 



 4

Section 28.17.00: 
• 28.17.00 – added “she/” 
• 28.17.01 – added “or a combination “ 
• 28.17.02 – moved “except in case of an emergency or imminent danger” 

to end of sentence. 
• 28.17.05 – added “have the right” 

Figure #1 – removed the word “Study” 
Figure #3 – removed the word “Study” 
Figure #5 – added “Large (50+ feet)”, “Medium (30 – 50) feet”, and “Small (15 – 
30)”. 
 
 
Changes made to Landscape Design & Tree Preservation Standards as 
of 4-3-06: 
 
Title Page - added quote 
Approval Process Outline: 
1. – added “and Preliminary landscape Plans (LD6.00.00)” & “to Planning 
Department with Site Plan Review or Special Use Application” 
5. – added “which will be forwarded to Planning and/or Building Departments.” 
6. – added #6 
17e – changed “LD34.00.00i” to “LD34.00.00j”. 
Section LD1.00.00 – changed “39.30.01 – 07” to “39.30.00” and re-word last 
paragraph to more accurately define who this standard applies too. 
Section LD6.00.00: 

• LD6.00.00 – Added “Landscape” and “Preliminary Landscape plans 
shall be submitted as separate documents”. 

• LD6.02.00g – added “(Tree Preservation plan only)”. 
• LD 6.02.00l – added “tree preservation”. 
• LD6.02.00M – added as new. 
• LD 6.02.01 – added as new 

Section LD7.00.00 – added “be submitted as one combined document”. 
Section 8.00.00: 

• LD8.01.00 – changed “LD8.04.00” to “LD8.01.01”. 
• LD8.02.00 – changed “LD8.01.01” to “LD8.04.00”. 
• LD8.02.01 – added as new. 
• LD8.03.02 through LD8.03.04 added as new, 
• LD8.04.04 – removed “The City reserves the right to remove these trees 

from the list of preserved trees” as being redundant (see LD8.04.06) 
• LD8.04.05 – reworded from “Trees to be preserved shall be in good to fair 

condition at the time of development” to “Tree preserved shall be in good 
condition (as deemed by the Director) for one full year after the final 
acceptance (closing) of the project by the City”.  

• LD 8.05.09 – added as new. 
 
 
 



 5

 
Section LD9.00.00: 

• Changed “when making the submittal” to “an application is submitted”. 
• Added “Special Use Approval Request, or Tentative Preliminary Plat 

Approval”. 
• Changed  “subdivision” to “project”. 

Section LD10.00.00 – added “Final Tree Preservation / Landscape Plan shall be  
submitted as one combined document.  The Final Landscape Plan shall 
be consistent with the Preliminary Landscape Plan used to grant 
Preliminary Site Plan approval by the Planning commission”. 

Section LD13.00.00 – changed “commercial” to “Non-residential”. 
Section LD16.00: 

• LD16.00.00 – added “Plan”. 
• Changed “LD16.02.00d” to “LD16.02.01”. 

Section LD19.00.00 – added “Bank Letter of Credit will not be accepted for  
Maintenance Deposit”. 

Section LD19.02.03 – added “otherwise” 
Section LD20.00.00 – added “Plan” 
Section LD22.03.00c – reworded to read “Additional fees as per LD18.01.00”. 
Section LD23.00.00: 

• LD23.05.01 – changed “28.02.23” to “28.02.26”. 
• LD23.06.00a – changed “fences” to “tree protection barriers”. 

Section LD28.00.00: 
• LD28.03.00 & 28.04.00 – changed “has not been” to “is not”. 
• LD28.05.00 – changed “this procedure” to “the procedures in this section”. 

Section LD29.00.00– changed “must have prior to any landscape project coming 
under the control of this standards” to “are to be”. 
Section LD31.00.00 – changed “must have prior to a tree preservation project 
coming under the control of these standards” to “are to be”. 
Section LD35.00.00: 

• LD35.02.00 – changed “at this time” to “As of May 8, 2006”. 
• LD35.03.00 – added as new. 

Section LD 37.00.00 – changed “commercial properties or subdivision” to “Site 
Plan Approval, Special Use Approval, or Subdivisions Plat Approval” 
 
 
COMPARISON WITH OTHER COMMUNITIES: 
Finally, a comparison of the proposed City of Troy Tree and Plant Ordinance with 
four other communities is included here. As you can see from the chart titled 
“Tree Ordinance Comparison”, the tree preservation percentages proposed for 
Troy are less than for the compared communities, although the Troy preservation  
range is greater. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 6

 
 

      Tree Ordinance 
Comparison 

 
Rochester 

Hills 
Sterling     
Heights  Rochester 

Brighton     
Twp. 

Troy 
(proposed)

   Minimum preservation % of trees 37% 37% 80% by % canopy 30% 
   preservation range 6" and up 6" and up 6" and up 10" and up  4" and up 
 a tree relocation on site allowed yes yes  yes yes yes 
 b tree relocation off site allowed yes yes  yes yes yes 
 c tree replanting on site allowed yes yes  yes yes yes 
 d tree replanting off site allowed yes yes  yes no yes 
   City Tree Fund established yes yes no no yes 
   Recommended replacement tree list provided yes no no no yes 
 e Building envelope trees count toward % preserved no no no   no 
 f Deciduous & coniferous trees included in % preserved yes yes yes yes yes 
        
 a - trees can be transplanted from one area to another on the same site     
 b - trees can be transplanted from another site to new project      
 c - reforestation of tree with new planting permitted      
 d - reforestation tree can be located on a different site      
 e - tree inside allowable building area can not be counted as preserved trees    
 f both types of tree can be counted toward to total % of preserved trees     
 
 

 
SUMMARY: 
The purpose of Chapter 28 is to establish practices and procedures for the 
protection, installation, and long-term maintenance of trees, plants and vegetation 
within the City of Troy. Staff is confident the revisions to the ordinance make it a 
more understandable, and useful tool toward that purpose. 
 
The revisions to Landscape Design and Tree Preservation Standards will assist 
developers with the process of landscaping their projects, while ensuring greater 
preservation of Troy’s urban forest. 
  
 

Approved as to form and legality: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 1

CHAPTER 28 TREE AND PLANT REGULATIONS 
 
28.01.00 PURPOSE AND INTENT. The City acknowledges that Troy’s urban forest reduces 

noise, air pollution, energy costs, reflected light, and flooding, stabilizes soils, 
sequesters carbon, provides habitat for wildlife and increases the value of all 
properties in the area and the overall quality of life.  
 
It is the City’s intent that the urban forest be protected, preserved and/or restored. 
To that end the City has created these ordinances, the Landscape Design and Tree 
Preservation Standards and the Building/Developmental Standards.  

 
The purpose of this Ordinance is to establish procedures and practices governing 
the protection, installation and long-term maintenance of trees, plants and 
vegetation within the City of Troy. The City’s purpose is to: 
 

• Promote the beautification of the City of Troy.  
• Create for present and future generations a planned pattern for the urban 

landscape within the City of Troy. 
• Promote reasonable preservation and replenishment of landscaping on 

existing commercial and public properties and to provide guidelines for 
protection of plants.  

• Safeguard and enhance property values and to protect public and private 
investment.  

• Provide an ordinance that is reasonable and enforceable.  
• Promote the awareness of the benefits of effective landscaping.  
 

28.02.00  DEFINITIONS. For the purposes of this Ordinance the following terms, phrases, 
words, and their derivations shall have the meaning given here. When not 
inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense include the future, 
words in the plural number include the singular number and words in the singular 
number include the plural number. The word "shall" is always mandatory and not 
merely directory. 

 
28.02.01  CALIPER: the diameter of the tree trunk measured at:    

 
a. Six (6) inches above the ground level if four (4) inches in diameter or less.  
b. Twelve (12) inches above ground if greater than four (4) inches in 

diameter.  
 

28.02.02 CITY: The Municipality of the City of Troy, Michigan. 
 
28.02.03 CLEARING: The cutting down and/or removal of plants and/or vegetation from a 

property whether by cutting or other means.  
 
28.02.04 DAMAGE: Includes any intentional or negligent act which will cause plants to 

decline and die within a period of three (3) years, including but not limited to such 
damage inflicted upon the root system by the compaction of the soil within the drip 
line of a tree during the operation of heavy machinery; the change of the natural 
grade above the root system, around the drip line, or around the trunk of a plant 
and/or damage from injury or from fire to vegetation which results in or permits 
infection or pest infestation. Damage also includes application of soil within the tree 
protection area (Section 28.02.26) or introduction into the water source, and/or 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 2

release of products, which move through the environment of a plant, any petroleum 
products, pesticides, toxic chemicals or other injurious materials.  

 
28.02.05 DBH (Diameter at Breast Height): The diameter of the tree trunk measured at 4.5 

feet above ground level.  
 
28.02.06 DEPARTMENT: The Department of Parks and Recreation of the City of Troy.  
 
28.02.07 DIRECTOR: Parks and Recreation Director and all employees under her/his 

direction, authorized by her/him to seek compliance with provision of this 
ordinance.  

 
28.02.08 DRIP LINE: The drip line of a tree or plant shall be determined by measuring from 

the center of the trunk to the tip of the farthest branch from the trunk center. This 
measurement shall be used as the radius of a circle drawn around the plant with the 
center of the trunk being the center of the circle.  

 
28.02.09 EMERGENCY: An event or events, disease, pest, or condition which has damaged 

or destroyed a tree or plant such that the continued presence of such damaged or 
destroyed tree or plant threatens public space in proximity thereto.  

 
28.02.10 IMMINENT DANGER: Any situation or occurrence that would cause directly or 

indirectly an immediate danger to any person in a public space within the City.  
 
28.02.11 GRADING: The placement, removal or movement of earth or soil on a property by 

use of mechanical equipment or hand equipment. 
 
28.02.12 LAWN EXTENSIONS: That area between the property line and the curb/road edge 

of public streets/roads.  
 
28.02.13 LISTED SPECIES: Any plant that is endangered or threatened or is a species of 

special concern as listed on the Federal Inventory List or Michigan Natural Features 
Inventory List (MNFI), which is maintained by the Michigan Natural Heritage 
Program and/or the Michigan Land Conservancy.  

 
28.02.14 MUNICIPAL PROPERTY: All land, structures, facilities, and plants, owned by the 

municipality of the City of Troy. 
 
28.02.15 MUNICIPAL TREE: Any tree owned by the municipality of Troy and located on 

municipal property. 
 
28.02.16 PEST: The full range of dangerous; destructive; or infectious organisms, insects, 

diseases, pathogens and/or conditions which attack or effect plants or which 
hinder their development as horticultural subjects. This shall include but not be 
limited to all biotic and/or abiotic agents. 
 

28.02.17 PLANT(s): Any tree, shrub, bush, perennial, annual, grass or other vegetation, 
native or introduced. 

  
28.02.18 PROHIBITED PLANTS: Plants that shall not to be planted within the municipal 

boundaries of the City. (Refer to Temporary Banned Plants in the Landscape 
Design and Tree Preservation Standards, Section LD 35.02.00.) 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 3

 
28.02.19 PROTECTIVE BARRIER: (figure #1) a minimum four (4) foot tall plastic mesh      barrier 

constructed at the drip line of the plant to protect the root system and/or trunk of the 
plant from damage caused by but not limited to: construction, vehicular traffic, storage of 
equipment, debris, soil, fill or other materials. 

 
28.02.20 PUBLIC NUISANCE: Any plant: 
 

a. With an infectious disease or pest problem that may infect municipal trees. 
b. That is dead or dying that has the potential to fall into public spaces. 
c. Or limb of any plant that obstruct street lights, traffic signs, free passage of       

pedestrians or vehicles. 
d. That poses a threat to the safety of individuals in public spaces or poses a        

threat to property owned by the City.  
 
28.02.21 PUBLIC SPACES: Public streets, rights-of-way, alleys, avenues, lanes, parkways, 

sidewalks, walkways, trails, parks, open spaces, lots, retention/detention ponds, 
drains, streams, museums, bridges, parking lots, or paths within the City and all 
other lands controlled or publicly owned by the City or such land privately owned 
when such land comes within the purview of this ordinance because of the 
maintenance or continuation of any hazards injurious to property, or individuals in 
public spaces or the public interest. 

  
28.02.22 PUBLIC UTILITY: Any person, corporation or organization owning or operating any 

pole, pipe, tower, satellite dish or conduit located in any public space or over or 
along any public easement or rights-of-way for the transmission of electricity, gas, 
telephone service, inter-net service, or any other means of electronic communication 
including the television transmission system and/or coaxial C.A.T.V. cable. 

  
28.02.23 ROOT SYSTEM: The part of the plant, located within the plants drip line, usually but 

not always underground that holds the plant in position, drawing water and nutrients 
from the soil. 

  
28.02.24 STREET TREE: Any tree growing in the rights-of-way of the City of Troy. These 

trees are generally but not always located between the sidewalk/curb or in the street 
islands/medians. 

 
28.02.25 TREE: Any self-supporting woody plant having one or more defined stems or trunks 

with a DBH of 1.25 inches or more and having a defined crown which customarily 
attains a mature height of eight (8) feet or greater.  

 
28.02.26 TREE PROTECTION AREA: The space between the protective barrier and the 

trunk of the plant (Section 28.02.19 and figure #1). Building material and other 
debris shall not be placed inside the tree protection area.  

 
28.02.27 TRUNK: The main stem or body of a plant, to be considered apart from its root 

system and branches. In the case of a multiple trunked plant, the stem with the 
largest caliper shall be used for the purpose of this ordinance.  

 
 
28.02.28 TOPPING (also known as: Dead Heading and Severe Crown Reduction): The 

reduction of the overall size of a tree and/or the severe internodal cutting back of 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 4

branches or limbs to stubs within the trees crown to such a degree so as to remove 
the normal tree canopy and disfigure the tree. Topping is not a form of pruning.  

 
28.03.00 RESPONSIBILITY: The Director shall be charged with the duty of enforcing the 

provisions of this ordinance and shall have exclusive jurisdiction and supervision 
over all plants planted or growing in public spaces. 

 
28.03.01 MAINTAIN, PRESERVE OR REMOVE: The Director shall have the authority and it 

shall be the Director’s duty to plant, trim, spray, preserve and remove trees and 
other plants and grassy areas in public spaces to insure safety or to preserve the 
design intent of such public spaces. 

 
28.03.02 Unless otherwise directed by this or other City Ordinance, the Director is not 

required to notify the public of any actions taken when enforcing the provisions of 
this ordinance.  

 
28.03.03 ORDER TO MAINTAIN, PRESERVE OR REMOVE: The Director shall have the 

authority and it shall be her/his duty to order the maintenance, preservation or 
removal of trees or plants on private property when she/he shall find such tree or 
plant to constitute a public nuisance. 

 
28.03.04 UNLAWFUL INTERFERENCE: It shall be unlawful for any person to prevent, 

delay or interfere with the City tree crew, or City contractors while they are 
engaged in the planting, cultivating, mulching, pruning, spraying, treating, 
transplanting, or removing any tree on municipal property as authorized in this 
ordinance.  

 
28.03.05 ISSUE CONDITIONAL PERMITS: The Director shall have the authority to affix 

reasonable conditions to the granting of a permit issued in accordance with the 
terms of this ordinance. Permits issued under this Ordinance shall be obtained 
through the Department of Parks and Recreation. Any conditions granted by the 
Director shall be based on current City policies.  

 
28.03.06 SUPERVISION: The Director shall have the authority and it shall be her/his duty to 

supervise all work done under a permit issued in accordance with the terms of this 
ordinance. 

 
28.04.00 PERMITS FOR PLANTING, CARE AND REMOVAL OF PLANTS-PUBLIC 

SPACES: The Director shall be charged with the duty of issuing and enforcing 
permits issued to residents, individuals, groups, organizations, companies, and/or 
corporations for the planting, care and removal of plants in public spaces. 

 
28.04.01 PRESERVE, REMOVE OR TREAT: No person shall trim, spray, transplant, remove 

or cause/authorize any person to trim, spray, transplant, or remove trees, plants or 
grassy areas in public spaces without first filing an application and procuring a 
permit from the Director. This excludes the treatment of turf grasses, trees and 
plants in the Lawn Extensions (Section 28.14.00) with weed/pest control and 
fertilizer when done in conjunction with the adjoining private areas. All State and 
Federal requirements and restrictions shall be followed when applying weed/pest 
control to plants in public spaces.  

 
28.04.02 APPLICATION DATA: The application required by this ordinance shall state the 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 5

number, size and variety of plants to be trimmed, sprayed, preserved, 
transplanted, or removed; the kind of treatment to be utilized, the kind and 
condition of nearest plants upon the adjoining property. If installing, the 
application shall include drawings which indicates the variety and number of each 
plant type, the location, plant grade, and method of installation, including the 
supplying of suitable soil or soil amendments. When deemed necessary Director 
reserves the right to request additional information necessary to determine 
compliance with this ordinance.  

 
28.04.03 INSURANCE: Before any permit shall be issued, each applicant shall first contact 

the City Risk Manager who will set actual amounts and types of insurance 
required for proposed work.  

 
28.04.04 STANDARDS FOR ISSUANCE: The Director shall issue the permit provided for in 

this ordinance when it is found that the desired action or treatment is necessary, 
effective, and appropriate and that the proposed method and workmanship is 
satisfactory and that such action is in conformance with this ordinance, the 
Landscape Design and Tree Preservation Standards and City Developmental 
Standards.  

 
28.04.05 PERMIT ISSUANCE: This permit shall be issued at the Department of Parks and 

Recreations, in the Troy Community Center – 3179 Livernois, Troy, MI 48083-
5029. 

 
28.04.06 REVOKING PERMIT: The Director may revoke a permit when the permit holder 

refuses or neglects to comply with any of the provisions of this ordinance, the 
Landscape Design and Tree Preservation Standards, or specific conditions outlined 
in the permit.  

 
28.04.07 INSTALLATION: No person shall install or set out any tree or plant in public spaces 

without first filing an application and procuring a permit from the Director. 
 
28.04.08 NOTICE OF COMPLETION: A notice of work completion concerning all plantings, 

transplanting, removals, pest control or major pruning shall be given by the permit 
holder, within five (5) days of completion of the permitted work, to the Director for 
inspection and approval. Permit holder will be notified of any required corrections, 
changes, alterations, or deficiencies. Notification shall include scheduling for 
required work. 

 
28.05.00 PLANT REMOVAL - PUBLIC SPACES: The Director shall be charged with the duty 

of removing or ordering removal of plants in public spaces: 
      
28.05.01 The Department shall have the right to remove trees and/or plants in public spaces 

as may be necessary to ensure safety or to preserve the design intent of such public 
spaces.  

 
28.05.02 The Director may remove or cause or order to be removed, any tree or plant or part 

thereof which is in any unsafe condition or which is a prohibited species, or is 
affected with any injurious disease, fungus, pest, or otherwise be considered by the 
City to be a public nuisance.  

 
28.05.03 Whenever the Department shall remove a plant, solely for the purpose of 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 6

constructing any public work, the Director shall, if practical, replace the same at 
public expense, at some nearby location by planting another plant, but not 
necessarily of the same type or size. 

 
28.06.00 DUTIES OF PRIVATE PLANT OWNERS: It shall be the duty of any person, 

organization, company, group, association, or corporation growing trees and plants 
within the City to: 

 
28.06.01 TRIM: To trim her/his trees and plants so as not to cause a hazard to public spaces 

or interfere with the proper lighting of public spaces by the streetlights.  
 

a. Any overhead portions of a plant/tree shall be a minimum of eight (8) feet 
above the surface of the street, sidewalk, trail system, or rights-of-way, 
which ever has the highest elevation and a minimum of one (1) foot off 
sidewalk (figure #4).  

b. All private plants shall be pruned so that the above ground portions do not 
extend beyond the property line into public spaces. 

c. Said person shall remove all dead, diseased, or dangerous trees and plants, 
or broken or decayed limbs which constitute a menace to the safety of the 
public in public spaces or which the City would otherwise consider a public 
nuisance.  

d. Plants installed in the Corner Clearance Zone (figure #2 and Section 
28.12.00) shall be pruned and maintained to a height not to exceed thirty 
(30) inches above established street grade for shrubs and the lowest branch 
on a tree shall be eight (8) feet above the established street grade.  

e. Private trees planted within thirty (30) feet of municipal property shall be 
pruned to allow the natural growth and development of the municipal tree. 

 
28.06.02 CITY TRIMMING: The City shall have the right to trim any trees and plants on 

private property which interfere with vehicular and/or pedestrian traffic in public 
spaces or the proper spread of light along the street from street lights, or interferes 
with visibility of any traffic control device / signs or would otherwise be considered by 
the City to be a public nuisance. Such trimming is to be confined to that work 
deemed necessary by the City to eliminate the interference or public nuisance. 
Property owner will be given 24 hours notice prior to removals unless need for 
removal is created by an emergency or an imminent danger. The Property owner 
shall pay all costs incurred by the City.  

 
28.06.03 PRIVATE PLANTS - DISEASED, INFESTED, DAMAGED, DEAD, OR CREATING 

A HAZARD: When the Director shall discover any tree or plant on private property 
within the City is creating a public nuisance (Section 28.02.20), the Director shall 
serve an order upon the property owner in the manner specified in Section 28.17.00 
of this ordinance. This order shall describe the tree or plant, its location and 
condition and order the property owner to take such measures as may be 
reasonably necessary. Such order may require the pruning, spraying or destruction 
and/or removal of the tree or plant. Such order may indicate the manner of deposal 
for all debris created by the required destruction and removal. Every such order 
shall be completed within ten (10) business days after the notice has been issued, 
or within such time as may be stipulated in such order as provided in Section 
28.17.02. In the event of an emergency or imminent danger situation the Director 
shall have the authority to take immediate action as is necessary to abate the 
situation. The Property owner shall pay all costs incurred by the City. The City does 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 7

not chip private plant debris. 
 
28.06.04 PROHIBITED PLANTS: The general public, individuals, groups, organizations, or 

corporations shall not plant or cause to be planted any of the following plants within 
the municipal boundaries of the City. 

 
a. Acer saccharinum  Silver Maple  
b. Acer negundo   Box Elder  
c. Acer platanoides  Norway maple 
d. Ailanthus altissima   Tree of Heaven 
e. Catalpa speciosa   Northern Catalpa 
f. Fraxinus spp.   Ash, all forms 
g. Paulownia tomentosa  Royal Empress Tree 
h. Populus spp.   Poplar / Cottonwood 
i. Pyrus calleryana ‘Bradford’ Bradford Pear 
j. Salix spp.   Willow (excluding shrub forms) 
k. Ulmus    Elm (excluding cultivars of U. 
     parvifolia and U. americana) 
 
l. Refer to Temporary Banned plants in the Landscape Design and Tree 

Preservation Standards Section LD35.02.00. 
 
m. The Director, on a case-by-case basis, can approve exceptions to this 

prohibition. Approval by the Director shall be based on current City policies.  
 
28.06.05 TREE AND PLANT PROTECTION PRIOR TO DEVELOPMENT: To prevent the 

unnecessary destruction of trees (4” DBH and up), and/or listed species on land, 
prior to the application and approval by the City for development, the destruction 
within any five (5) year period, of more than twenty-five (25%) percent of the 
trees on any parcel of real property within the City, without prior approval of the 
Director shall be prohibited (Sections 28.08.00, 28.16.02 and Landscape Design 
and Tree Preservation Standards and the City’s Developmental Standards). 

 
a. This ordinance does not apply to lots platted when proposed for 

development as originally platted or to land parcels equal to or smaller 
than one half (1/2) acre in size for single family residence.  

 
28.06.06 CHIPPING OR REMOVAL OF PLANT DEBRIS: The City does not chip or remove 

leaves, limbs, stems, logs, roots, or any other debris created by private plant owners 
or their agents while during the maintenance or plant removals required by this 
ordinance.  

 
28.06.07 PLANT DEBRIS DISPOSAL: No individual, group, organization, company, or 

corporation shall: 
 

a. Dispose in the City, plant debris, and/or by-products of plants (lumber, logs, 
firewood, mulch, chips, leaves, etc.) from private or public plants that 
contains dangerous, destructive or infectious pests without first obtaining a 
permit for said work. 

b. Dispose on municipal property any plant debris, and/or by-products of plants 
(lumber, logs, firewood, mulch, chips, leaves, etc.) from private or public 
plants without first obtaining a permit for said work. 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 8

c. The Director shall have the authority to affix conditions to the granting of the 
permit issued in accordance with the terms of this ordinance. Affixed 
conditions shall be based on current City policies. 

 
28.07.00 PLANT PROTECTION - PUBLIC SPACES: It shall be the duty of any and all 

residents, individuals, groups, organizations, companies, and/or corporations within 
the City to protect plantings in public spaces so that: 

 
28.07.01 No person shall damage, break, injure, mutilate, kill, destroy, transplant, remove, or 

otherwise deface any plant, or set any fire within ten (10) feet of the drip line or 
permit any fire, or the heat from a fire, to injure any portion of any plant. No toxic 
chemicals or other injurious materials shall be allowed to seep, drain, or be emptied 
on, near, or about any plant. 

 
28.07.02 No electric wires or any other lines or wires shall be permitted to come in contact 

with any plant in any manner that shall cause damage to the plant and no person 
shall attach any electrical insulation to any plant.  

 
28.07.03 No person shall use any plant as an anchor except by special written permit from 

the Director and no material shall be fastened to or hung on any plants in public 
spaces.  

 
28.07.04 No person shall install, remove, or injure any guard or device placed to protect any 

trees unless in conjunction with removal or relocation for which a permit issued 
under Section 28.04.00.  

 
28.07.05 All persons having under their care, custody or control, personal property which may 

obstruct with the trimming, care, removal or planting of any plant, shall, after notice 
by the Director, promptly abate, prior to the time requirement given in said notice, 
such obstruction in such manner as shall permit the trimming, care, removal or 
planting of such plants by the Department. 

 
28.07.06 At no time will the practice of topping be considered appropriate or normal practice 

for any person, firm or City department. Trees severely damaged by storms or other 
causes, or certain trees under utility wires or other obstructions where other pruning 
practices are impractical may be exempted from this section at the determination of 
the Director. This determination shall be based on current City policies. 

 
28.08.00 PLANT PROTECTION DURING DEVELOPMENT - PUBLIC AND PRIVATE 

PROPERTY: It shall be the duty of any residents, individuals, groups, organizations, 
companies, developers, and/or corporations developing property within the City to 
protect plantings so that: 

 
28.08.01 During any building, exterior renovation or razing operations, the developer/builder 

shall erect and maintain suitable protective barriers (Section 28.02.19) around all 
trees, plants, on public spaces and on private property, so as to prevent damage to 
plants and/or areas intended for preservation. (figure #1). There shall be no undue 
compression of the earth or otherwise impeding or preventing the access of water or 
air to the root system of the plant or excavation around or removal of soil or earth or 
the addition of earth or any other materials within the tree protection area (Section 
28.02.26). Building material and other debris shall not be placed inside the tree 
protection area.  



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 9

 
28.08.02 Protective barriers shall not be relocated or removed without prior approval of the 

City. 
 
28.08.03 Silt screen or other acceptable measures shall be placed up slope for the protective 

barriers. This silt protection barrier shall shield the area for preserved trees or plants 
from soil sedimentation intrusion into the tree protection area.  

 
28.08.04 Where root loss will occur, root prune one foot beyond the protective barriers using 

a vibrating saw or narrow trencher to make clean cuts. Cutting instrument shall have 
sharp blades to minimize damage. Back fill immediately and cover with three (3) 
inches of mulch.  

 
28.08.05 When, in isolated incidents, as determined by the City, protective barriers may be 

impractical or ineffectual in protecting roots in the tree protection area (Section 
28.02.26), the Developer shall provide temporary buffers as approved by the City to 
prevent root damage.  

 
28.08.06 Pruning of preserved trees during development shall be limited to the removal of 

dead, dying, and/or damaged branches. Where necessary the Developer may, with 
City permission, prune trees to accommodate construction activities. Upon 
completion of the development, overall pruning to enhance the quality of the trees 
will be allowed under the guidance and supervision of the City. 

 
28.09.00 EXCAVATIONS NEAR PLANTS - PUBLIC SPACES: It shall be the duty of any 

residents, individuals, groups, organizations, companies, developers, and/or 
corporations working or owning property within the City to protect plantings in public 
spaces so that: 

 
28.09.01 EXCAVATIONS AND DRIVEWAYS: Excavations and driveways shall not be placed 

within fifteen (15) feet of any existing tree without written permit from the Director. 
Any person making such excavation or construction shall erect and maintain a 
suitable protective barrier around the tree (figure #1). Building material and other 
debris shall not be placed inside the tree protection area (Section 28.02.23).  

 
28.09.02 IRRIGATION SYSTEMS, INVISIBLE DOG FENCES, OR ANY UNAUTHORIZED 

UNDERGROUND INSTALLATION: The City shall not be responsible for damages 
to irrigation systems, invisible dog fences or any unauthorized underground 
installation installed in public spaces by private parties. 

 
28.10.00  COVERING THE SURFACE NEAR TREES - PUBLIC SPACES: No person shall 

place within the public space any soil, stone, brick, sand, concrete, or other 
materials, which will in any way impede the full and free passage of water, air or 
fertilizer to the root system of any plant in a public space, except a sidewalk or 
driveway of authorized width and location. 

 
28.10.01 This does not preclude the use of organic mulches, and/or geo-textile fabric.  
28.11.00 REGULATIONS FOR NEW PLANTING - PUBLIC SPACES: Work other than that in 

Section 28.08.00 shall be done under a permit issued (Section 28.04.00) in 
accordance with this ordinance, the Landscape Design and Tree Preservation 
Standards, and City Developmental Standards, shall be performed in strict 
accordance with the listed terms and with the following regulations for the planting, 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 10

trimming and care of trees and plants in public spaces: 
 
28.11.01 Trees must have a caliper of 1.5 inches or more for bare rootstock and 2.5 inches or 

more for container grown/balled and burlapped stock.  
 
28.11.02 Tree types are to be selected from Parks and Recreations Recommended 

Deciduous Trees for Troy list unless otherwise approved by the Director. Approval 
by the Director shall be based on current City policies.  

 
28.11.03 All replacement plants other than trees shall be a minimum of:  
 

a. Four (4) inch pot for perennials and non-turf grasses 
b. One gallon for all shrubs.  

 
28.11.04 All trees with a caliper of two (2) inches or greater must be protected and supported 

by tree guards (figure #3). All tree guards and stakes shall be removed one (1) year 
after installation.  

 
28.11.05 In rights-of-way, all trees shall be planted on fifty (50) foot centers, unless a special 

permit is obtained from the Director (Section 28.04.00). All other plantings on 
municipal properties shall conform to the City’s Developmental Standards. Permit 
approval by the Director shall be based on current City policies.  

 
28.11.06 All trees shall be centered between the sidewalk and curb unless the Director issues 

a permit stating otherwise. Where no sidewalk and/or curb exist, the Director shall 
approve planting locations. Permit approval by the Director shall be based on 
current City policies.  

 
28.11.07 No tree shall be planted within fifteen (15) feet either side of a driveway that opens 

onto a public street. 
 
28.11.08 No plant that exceeds thirty (30) inches in height above the lowest established street 

grade, shall be planted within fifteen (15) feet either side of a driveway that opens 
onto a public street. 

 
28.11.08 Other than turf grasses, no trees or plants shall be planted within fifteen (15) feet of 

any fire hydrant or as to obstruct the fire hydrant when viewed from the street. Turf 
grasses planted around a fire hydrant shall be maintained at a mowed height of ten 
(10) inches or less.  

 
28.11.09 No tree shall be planted on private property within thirty (30) feet of a tree planted in 

the rights-of-way.  
 
28.11.10 All planting shall be done in accordance with Park and Recreation planting 

specifications (figure #3).  
 
28.11.11 All plantings shall conform to Corner Clearance (Section 28.12.00). 
28.12.00 CORNER CLEARANCE (VISUAL BARRIER SETBACK): Property owners in the 

City shall comply with the requirements of Sections 28.12.01 through 28.12.03. 
 
28.12.01 In order that the view of the driver of a vehicle approaching a street intersection is 

not obstructed, all plants located on the triangle formed by two (2) rights-of-way lines 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 11

at the intersection of two (2) streets and extending for a distance of twenty-five (25) 
feet each way from the intersection of the rights-of-way lines on any corner lot within 
the City, shall not be permitted to grow to a height of more than thirty (30) inches 
from the lowest established street grade, along the legs of the fore mentioned 
triangle (figure #2).  

 
28.12.02 Trees may be planted and maintained the corner clearance area, provided that all 

branches are trimmed for a vertical height of eight (8) feet above the highest 
established street grade perpendicular to the tree trunk.  

 
28.12.03 Any person failing to trim any plants to conformity with this ordinance shall be 

notified by the Director in the manner provided in Section 28.17.01 of this ordinance. 
Such notice shall require trimming or removal in conformity with this ordinance 
within the time prescribed in the notice as provided in Section 28.17.02 of this 
ordinance. Upon the expiration of such period, the Director may cause the trimming 
or removal to be done and the cost thereof may be collected from the owner of said 
property as provided in Section 28.17.06 of this ordinance. 

 
28.13.00  PRIVATE PLANT – INSPECTION: The Director shall have the authority to enter 

upon private property for the purpose of examining any plants, for the presence of 
pests and/or to determine if an emergency or imminent danger situation exists.  

 
28.13.01 No compensation shall be awarded for the destruction of any plant, fruit, or injury to 

the same, if done by the Director in accordance with this ordinance. 
 
28.14.00 LAWN EXTENSIONS and SUBDIVISION ENTRY ISLANDS/CUL-DE-SAC 

ISLANDS: Property owners in the City are charged with the responsibility of 
maintenance of public spaces adjacent to their property as follows: 

 
28.14.01 Property owners and/or occupants shall maintain the lawn extensions (Section 

28.14.02) that abut their property and/or the street island directly in front of their 
property in a neat and orderly manner in compliance with City ordinances. At no 
time shall property owners and/or occupants allow poison ivy, ragweed or any other 
poisonous, noxious, or unhealthy growths to occur in the lawn extensions or street 
island in their care.  

 
28.14.02 Other than normal maintenance, no person shall willfully, maliciously, and/or 

wantonly injure, destroy, remove, or transplant any plants, or grasses on any lawn 
extension / street island or throw papers, refuse, or any other thing thereon.  

 
28.14.03 For other than turf type grasses; the property owner and/or occupants shall apply for 

a permit to plant in these areas (Section 28.04.00). A proposed maintenance 
schedule and intended maintained size of the plants shall be provided when 
applying for permit.  



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 12

28.14.04 All paved surfaces in the lawn extensions and islands of public streets shall be 
edged on a regular basis to maintain clean exposed edges and no dirt or other 
debris shall be allowed to collect on paved surfaces.  

 
28.14.05 Property owners and/or occupants are not responsible for tree maintenance in the 

lawn extensions and islands located in public spaces.  
 
28.14.06 Any plantings by developers, property owners, occupants, homeowner’s 

associations, or agents thereof shall conform to Section 28.11.00. 
 
28.14.07 When necessary based on street layout, additional properties may be required to 

maintain any street islands of public streets. The Director shall review and assign 
responsible properties on a case-by-case basis. Assignments by the Director shall 
be based on current City policies. 

  
a. Residents shall be notified of new assignments by one of the methods outlined 

in Section 28.17.01 a through d. 
 
28.15.00 TREE SPACING: To promote the awareness of the benefits of effective landscaping 

in the City, the following planting information has been prepared for trees planted on 
private or municipal property: 
 

28.15.01 The City strongly encourages all trees planted on private property conform to Parks 
and Recreation’s Recommended Deciduous Trees for Troy list. 

 
28.15.02 No tree shall be planted on private property within thirty (30) feet of a tree planted in 

the rights-of-way.  
 
28.15.03 LARGE TREES: Trees that will attain a mature height over fifty (50) feet and at least 

thirty-five (35) feet wide. These trees should be spaced at least thirty-five (35) feet 
apart on private property (unless otherwise directed by City Ordinances and/or 
standards) and at least fifty (50) feet apart on public spaces.  

 
28.15.04 MEDIUM TREES: Trees that will attain a mature height of thirty (30) to fifty (50) feet 

and at least twenty-five (25) feet wide. These trees should be spaced at least 
twenty-five (25) feet apart on private property (unless otherwise directed by City 
Ordinances and/or standards) and at least forty (40) feet apart on public spaces if 
approved by the Director. 

 
28.15.05 SMALL TREES: Trees that will attain a mature height of fifteen (15) to thirty (30) feet 

and at least fifteen (15) feet wide. These trees should be spaced at least fifteen (15) 
feet apart on private property (unless otherwise directed by City Ordinances and/or 
standards) and at least thirty (30) feet apart on public spaces if approved by the 
Director. Under no circumstance shall a small tree be considered for use as a street 
tree unless an overhead utility prevents the use of a larger tree.  

 
28.15.06 All trees shall have the following setbacks from an overhead utility lines (figure #5): 
 

a. Large trees shall be planted no closer than fifty (50) feet from the outer most 
utility line. 

b. Medium trees shall be planted no closer than forty (40) feet from the outer most 
utility line. 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 13

c. Small trees twenty (20) feet or less are permitable plantings directly under utility 
lines. 

 
28.16.00 VIOLATION OF TREE AND PLANT REGULATIONS: Except as otherwise provided, 

any resident, person, group, organization, company, firm or corporation violating the 
provisions of this Chapter is responsible for a Municipal Civil Infraction and subject 
to the provisions of Chapter 100 of the Code of the City of Troy. 

 
28.16.01 PENALTIES FOR UNAUTHORIZED REMOVALS OF PLANTS - PUBLIC SPACES: 
 

a. Any person violating or causing to be violated any of the provisions pertaining to 
public spaces including but not limited to any person cutting down or removing 
trees or plants without personally seeing a copy of a valid permit authorizing 
such cutting down or removal of the trees or plants shall be subject to a fine of 
up to $500.00 per offense, depending on the commercial and/or historical value 
of such trees and plants.  

b. Each tree or plant destroyed or removed in violation of this ordinance shall be 
considered a separate offense.  

c. In the case of unauthorized removal or destruction of trees or plants, in addition 
to the fine, each plant destroyed or removed in violation of this ordinance shall 
be replaced with another like tree or plant. If the responsible party is unable to 
locate similar sized, type, or quality plant materials, she/he may request a 
variance from the Director. If the Director grants a variance, the party replacing 
the plants will pay the City the cost difference between the value of the 
destroyed plant and the value of the replacement. The latest revision of the 
Guide For Plant Appraisals as published by the International Society of 
Arboriculture shall be used to determine the value of the destroyed plant. 
Variances approved by the Director shall be based on current City policies.  

 
28.16.02 PENALTIES FOR UNAUTHORIZED REMOVALS OR DAMAGE TO PLANTS 

DURING OR BEFORE DEVELOPMENT- PUBLIC SPACES AND PRIVATE 
PROPERTY: Performing any plant removals and/or damaging any plants 
designated for preservation during development or on sites not yet designated for 
development (Section 28.06.05), found to be in violation of this Ordinance, 
Landscape Design and Tree Preservation Standards or any other developmental 
standards shall result in the following penalties:  

 
a. Payment of the Tree Preservation / Landscape Review Penalty Fee as found in 

Chapter 60.  
b. Replacement of trees and plants by the property owner will be required when 

any removal is in violation of this ordinance, and/or the Landscape Design 
and Tree Preservation Standards. Replacement tree varieties shall be 
selected from the City’s Recommended Deciduous Trees for Troy list. 

c. The property owner must submit for approval a list of replacement plant 
varieties for review by the City. Approval of the list of replacement plant 
varieties shall be based on current City policies. 

d. Property owner will be required to replace trees at a rate of three (3) caliper 
inches for each inch DBH lost. 

 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 14

e. Amount of inches DBH lost will be determined by: 
 

1. City approved Tree Preservation plan if previously submitted and 
approved prior to removals, otherwise refer to Section 
28.16.02f2. 

2. Onsite inspection by City Staff. If staff is not able to make an 
accurate assessment due to site conditions, refer to Section 
28.16.02f3. 

3. Inches of DBH lost will be assessed at a rate of 1089 inches 
DBH per acre.  

4. Or any combination of above as determined necessary by City 
Staff to make a reasonable assessment of lost inches DBH.  

 
f.  All replacement trees shall have a minimum caliper size of four (4)  

inches. 
g. All replacement plants other than trees shall be a minimum of: 

 
1. One (1) gallon for perennials and non-turf grasses 
2. Five (5) gallon for all shrubs 
 

h. Planting locations for replacement plants shall be staked by the 
property owner and approved by the Director before any 
replacement plantings occur. Location approvals shall be based on 
current City policies. 

i. Replacement plantings shall conform to “American Standard for 
Nursery Stock”. 

j. Plants selected for use as replacements shall be free from injury, 
pests, diseases, and nutritional disorders, root defects and must be 
in good vigor. The Director reserves the right to reject any or all 
plants used as replacements. All rejected plants shall be removed 
from the site. Rejection of plants shall be based on this ordinance 
and current City policy. 

k. All replacement plants shall carry a two-year unconditional 
guarantee. 

l. All replacement plants shall be planted as per Parks and Recreation 
specification. Copies of these specifications shall be obtained from 
the Director. 

m. All plantings shall conform to the Corner Clearance outlined in 
Section 28.12.00 of this ordinance. 

 
28.16.03 FAILURE TO MAINTAIN APPROVED PLANTINGS IN PUBLIC SPACES: Approved 

plantings in public spaces found to be poorly maintained shall, upon order by the 
City, be removed by the parties responsible for the maintenance and the site 
restored to turf or other City approved ground cover (plants or mulch). Failure to 
comply, refer to Section 28.17.05. 

 
28.16.04 PENALTIES FOR DAMAGING PLANTS - PUBLIC SPACES: Any person or 

persons who cause damage to any City trees and/or plants by the improper use of 
any machines, automobile, chemicals, or other activities shall be held liable for 
damages to said trees and plants. Damages shall be corrected, repaired and/or 
replaced by the Department as instructed by the Director. All costs incurred by the 
City for corrections, repairs, and replacements including administrative and process 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 15

costs, shall be billed to the person or persons responsible for the damages. Should 
the City choose not to replace damaged plants, the person or persons responsible 
for said damage shall be billed for the value of the plants as determined in 
accordance with the latest edition of the Guide for Plant Appraisal (issued by the 
Council of Tree and Landscape Appraisers) and/or cost estimates for 
repairs/replacement, including all administrative costs.  

 
28.17.00 PROCEDURE FOR ORDERING ACTION ON VIOLATIONS OF TREE AND PLANT 

REGULATIONS: When the Director shall find it necessary to order the trimming, 
preservation, spraying or removal of plants on private property or in public spaces, 
as authorized by this ordinance she/he shall serve a written order on the property 
owner in which the necessary corrections and time limits are listed. 

 
28.17.01  Such order required herein shall be served in one or a combination of the following 

manners:  
 

a. By making personal delivery of the order to the property owner. 
b. By leaving the order with some person of suitable age and discretion upon the 

premises. 
c. By mailing a copy of the order to the last known address of the owner of the 

property by registered mail.  
d. By affixing a copy of the order to the door at the entrance to the premises in 

violation. 
e. By publishing the order in a local paper once a week for three (3) successive 

weeks. 
 

28.17.02 TIME FOR COMPLIANCE: Such order shall set forth a time limit for compliance 
dependent upon the hazard and danger created by the violation. In no case shall the 
time limit be less than ten (10) business days, nor more than thirty (30) calendar 
days, except in case of an emergency or an imminent danger. In case of emergency 
or imminent danger the City shall eliminate or lessen the hazard and assess the 
costs to the owner as provided in Section 28.14.11 of this ordinance.  

 
28.17.03 NOTICE OF COMPLIANCE: Cited individual shall send a notice of compliance 

within five (5) days of completion of work to the Director for her/his inspection of 
completed work.  

 
28.17.04 APPEAL FROM ORDER: A person to whom such an order is directed shall have 

the right, within forty-eight (48) hours of service of such order, to appeal to the City 
Manager, of the City of Troy who shall review such order within five (5) business 
days and file her/his decision with the City Clerk with a copy to the Director of Parks 
and Recreation and to the appellant which shall be served in any of the methods 
provided in Section 28.17.01; unless the order is revoked or modified it shall remain 
in full force and shall be obeyed by the person to whom it is directed. No person to 
whom the order is directed shall fail to comply with such order within ten (10) 
business days or such additional time as prescribed in the order after an appeal 
shall have been determined. In the case of imminent danger, as described above, 
the Director shall have the authority to require compliance immediately upon service 
of the order which expressly dictates that the matter is of imminent danger. 

 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 16

28.17.05 FAILURE TO COMPLY: When a person to whom an order is directed shall fail to 
comply within the specified time, or in the specified manner, the Director shall have 
the right to remedy the conditions or contract with others for the purpose and charge 
the costs thereof to the person to whom the order is directed. The person remedying 
the condition under a contract made with the City shall be authorized to enter the 
property for that purpose. 

 
28.17.06 LIEN AGAINST PROPERTY: If the cost of remedying a condition is not paid within 

thirty (30) days after receipt of a statement from the City, such cost shall be levied 
against the property upon which said hazard exists or existed. Levying of such cost 
shall be certified by the Director to the City Treasurer and shall become a lien upon 
such property, and shall be included in the next tax bill rendered to the owner or 
owners unless paid before, and shall be collected in the same manner as other 
taxes against such property. 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 17

 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 18

 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 19

 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 20

 
 
 



Chapter 28 - Tree and Plant Regulations 
 

 21

 



 
 

Landscape Design and Tree Preservation 
Standards 

 
 
 

Adopted 09/15/75 
Revised 01/13/77 
Revised 11/03/86 
Revised 03/16/87 
Revised 02/12/96 
Revised 04-25-06 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Each generation takes the earth as trustees.  We ought to bequeath to posterity as 
many forests and orchards as we have exhausted and consumed. 

 
--J. Sterling Morton 

 
 

Changes as of 4-25-06 
 
 

Reviewing Agency: 
 

City of Troy 
Parks and Recreation Department 

 
 



 2

 Table of Content 
  Sec #                                    Title                                                                                Page #           

 Tree Preservation /Landscape Submittal /Approval Process Outline 3 
LD   1.00.00 Introduction 4 
LD   2.00.00 Circumstances for Variations  4 
LD   3.00.00 Request for Variance 4 
LD   4.00.00 Federal and State Standards 5 
LD   5.00.00 Request for Waiver of Tree Preservation Standards 5 
LD   6.00.00 Preliminary Tree Preservation Plan - General Requirements   5 
LD   7.00.00 Final Tree Preservation /  Landscape Plan  - General Requirements   6 
LD   8.00.00 Tree Preservation Options 6 
LD   9.00.00 Preliminary Tree Preservation Plans – Specific Requirements 8 
LD 10.00.00 Final Tree Preservation / Landscape Plan - Specific Requirements 9 
LD 11.00.00 Construction Drawings 10 
LD 12.00.00 Landscape Planting Specifications 10 
LD 13.00.00 Cost Estimate - Landscaping 10 
LD 14.00.00 Submittal Requirements 10 
LD 15.00.00 The Reviewing Body 10 
LD 16.00.00 Submission for Review 10 
LD 17.00.00 Changes in Landscape Plan Resulting from Review Process 11 
LD 18.00.00 Tree Preservation / Landscape Plan Review Fee 11 
LD 19.00.00 Landscape Deposits 11 
LD 20.00.00 Tree removals Prior to Final Site Approval 12 
LD 21.00.00 Violation of Tree Preservation Plan 13 
LD 22.00.00 Landscape Installation 13 
LD 23.00.00 Tree and Plant Protection 13 
LD 24.00.00 Inspection Schedule 14 
LD 25.00.00 Initial Site Inspection 14 
LD 26.00.00 First Implementation Inspection 14 
LD 27.00.00 Final Implementation Inspection 14 
LD 28.00.00 Maintenance Inspection (final) 15 
LD 29.00.00 Landscape Contractor Qualifications  15 
LD 30.00.00 Landscape Contractor Responsibilities 16 
LD 31.00.00 Tree Appraiser Qualifications   16 
LD 32.00.00 Tree Appraiser Responsiblities 16 
LD 33.00.00 Plant Material Requirements 16 
LD 34.00.00 Other Requirements Placed on Plant Materials 19 
LD 35.00.00 Prohibited Plant Materials 20 
LD 36.00.00 Site Preparation Prior to Planting 21 
LD 37.00.00 Landscape Designer Qualifications 22 

 Landscaping as Required by Troy City Code 23 
 



 3

Tree Preservation / Landscape Submittal /  Approval 
Process Outline 

 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval 

1. Developer submits three (3) copies of Preliminary Tree Preservation plan (PTPP)(LD6.00.00, LD9.00.00) and 
Preliminary Landscape plans(LD6.00.00),  to Planning Department with Site Plan Review or Special Use 
Application or to Parks and Recreation (P&R) or submit written request for for variance (LD3.00.00) or Waiver of 
Tree Preservation Standards (LD5.00.00). 

2. P&R reviews PTPP or request for waiver and validates the survey.   
3. P&R comments, if any, will be forwarded to Planning & Building Departments.   
4. Developer resubmits three (3) copies of revised PTPP plan based on P&R comments.  If no comments go to #5. 
5. P&R approves PTPP and signs off on preliminary sign off sheet which will be forwarded to Planning and/or 

Buidling Departments. 
6. Preliminary Plans sent to Planning Commission for approval 

Final Tree Preservation / Landscape Plan Approval 
7. Developer submits three (3) copies of the Final Tree Preservation / Landscape Plan (FTPLP)(LD7.00.00, 

LD10.00.00), Construction Drawings (LD11.00.00), planting specifications (LD12.00.00) and line item cost 
estimates (commercial only) (LD13.00.00) to P&R.  

8. P&R comments, if any, will be forwarded to Planning and Building Departments.   
9. Developer resubmits three (3) copies of revised FTPLP.  If no comments go to #9. 
10. For commercial properties, P&R sets and collects Review fees (LD18.00.00) and Landscape Deposits 

(LD19.00.00).  For sub-divisions, required landscape deposits are collected by the Engineering and/or Planning 
Department. 

11. P&R signs off on Final project sheet. 
Work Begins 

12. P&R advised twenty-four (24) hours prior to tree clearing operation (LD20.02.00). 
13. P&R monitors tree removal 
14. P&R advised twenty-four (24) hours prior to landscaping operations (LD22.00.00) 
15. P&R monitors installation of landscape. 

Landscape Inspections called 
16. Commercial Properties 

a. Developer calls for First Implementation Inspection (FII)(LD26.00.00).  
b. P&R comments based on FII forwarded to Building Department. If no comments FII shall be considered the 

Final Implementation Inspection. 
c. Developer calls for Final Implementation Inspection (LD27.00.00) 
d. P&R forwards comments to Building Department, if necessary, based on inspection. 
e. P&R approves implementation and releases Implementation Deposit, collects Maintenance Deposit 

(LD19.00.02) and advises Building Department that P&R approves issuance of Certificate of Occupancy. 
f. Minimum of twelve (12) months, maximum of thirty-six (36) months later, Developer calls for Maintenance 

Inspection (LD28.00.00).    Deposit is forfeited after 36 months.  
g. P&R forwards comments based on Maintenance Inspection to Developer. 
h. Developer calls for re-inspections.   
i. If P&R approves Landscape, Maintenance Deposit is refunded. 

17. Subdivisions 
a. Developer calls for FII (LD26.00.00).  
b. P&R comments based on FII forwarded to Developer.  If no comments FII shall be considered the Final 

Implementation Inspection. 
c. After implementation of City comments, Developer calls for Final Implementation Inspection (LD27.00.00) 
d. P&R forwards comments to Developer, if necessary, based on inspection. 
e. P&R approves implementation and authorizes release of 90% appropriate landscape deposits. Note, 

subdivision guaranteed see LD34.00.00j 



 4

 

Landscape 
Design and Tree 

Preservation 
Standards 

 

LD1.00.00  Introduction - It is the intent of the City Code Chapter 28, and Chapter 39, 
Section 12.60.01; 11.50.05; 12.60.02; 13.60.00; 15.60.00; 16.60.00; 17.60.00; 
39.30.00; 10.30.03 (C); 18.30.03 (B); 10.30.01 (E); 22.30.01 (B); 24.30.06 (B) 
and Chapter 41, Sections (E) and (F) to obtain an environment which is 
responsive to human needs, socially positive, economically viable and 
environmentally satisfying.  Additionally these standards promote reasonable 
preservation and replenishment of landscaping in developments, commercial 
properties and municipal grounds by providing guidelines for protection of 
plants during construction, development and redevelopment. 

 
The reviewing agency for these standards is the City of Troy Parks and 
Recreation Department (248-524-3484). 

 
These Standards apply to any person or persons developing property where 
Site Plan approval, Special use Approval is required.  These standards shall 
not apply to platted lots when proposed for development as originally platted or 
to land parcels equal to or smaller than one half (1/2) acre in size used for 
single family residence. 

 

LD2.00.00 Circumstances for Variations  - These Standards are not intended to be 
arbitrary or inhibiting to creative solutions.  Project conditions may justify 
modifications of these standards when conditions arise where full compliance 
is impossible or under circumstances where achievement of the City’s 
objectives can be better obtained through modified requirements.  Therefore, 
in specific cases, variation from the requirements may be permitted by the 
Director of Parks and Recreation when this variation more fully achieves the 
objective contained herein and when one or more of the following conditions 
justify the variance: 

LD2.01.00 Topography, soil, or other site conditions are such that full compliance is 
impossible. 

LD2.02.00 Improved environmental quality, and/or utility would result from the variance. 
LD2.03.00 Alternate methods, materials or equipment may be used when their use would 

more closely fulfill the intended objectives of these standards. 
LD2.04.00 Lack of existing native vegetation within the limits of the property. 

LD3.00.00 Request for Variance 
 A request for variance must be submitted to the Director of Parks and 

Recreation in writing at the beginning of the review procedure, describe 
completely the rationale for the variance request.  

LD3.01.00 Special Conditions - Because of various conditions in a specific project, the 
Director of Parks and Recreation may require compliance with standards other 



 5

than those contained herein, in order to obtain those characteristics of viability, 
utility, service, public safety, and low maintenance expense, while satisfying its 
objectives and to ensure continued market acceptance of the project. 

 

LD4.00.00 Federal and State Standards -It should be noted that where Federal and/or 
State Standards pertain, the higher standard shall govern.  An example of a 
possible higher standard would be the Federal Government’s Endangered 
Species Act. 

 

LD5.00.00 Request for Waiver of Tree Preservation Standards - If there are no 
trees on the site, the Developer may request relief from conforming to the tree 
preservation portion of these standards by requesting a waiver.  Written 
requests should be directed to the Parks and Recreation Department.  City 
staff will evaluate the waiver request and the Developer will be advised of the 
findings. 

 

LD6.00.00 Preliminary Tree Preservation / Landscape Plan – General 
Requirements. The Preliminary Tree preservation and Preliminary 
Landscape plans shall be submitted as separate documents and shall conform 
to this format.  Three (3) copies shall be provided to the Department of Parks 
and Recreation, at the time of each submittal. 

 

LD6.01.00 Title block shall include: 
a. Project name, address (if currently assigned) and Sid well numbers 
b. Project location map with a scale of 1” = 200’ 
c. Name of the Developer, address, phone and fax number 
d. Name or Project Engineering Firm, address, phone and fax number 
e. Name, address, phone and fax number of Landscape Architect, 

Designer and/or Tree Appraiser 
f. Zoning Classification of the project 

LD6.02.00     Information to be included on all other sheets 
a. Number  
b. Scale   
c. North Arrow (except on detail sheet)  
d. Title   
e. Legend  
f. Property Lines 
g. All structures existing on the site (Tree Preservation plan only) 
h. Proposed and existing easements, utilities, rights-of-ways and building 

envelopes.  
i. Adjacent land use 
j. Label existing topographic contours on preliminary plans 
k. Attach relevant sections of Consent Judgment if applicable.  
l. See LD9.00.00 for additional tree preservation information 
m. Preliminary Landscape plan shall include all items required of the Final 

Landscape Plan (see LD 7.00.00, LD10.00.00) 
 
LD6.02.01     Landscape plans are a required element for Preliminary Site Plan Approval,  

including Tentative Preliminary Plat approval and Preliminary Site 
Condominium approval.  Landscape Plans shall be reviewed by and approved 



 6

by the Parks and Recreation Department prior to being considered by the 
Planning Commission. 

  
LD7.00.00 Final Tree Preservation / Landscape Plan - General Requirement  The 

Final Tree Preservation and Final Landscape plans shall be submitted as one 
combined document and shall conform to this format.  Three (3) copies shall 
be provided to the Department of Parks and Recreation, at the time of each 
submittal. 

 
LD7.01.00 Title block shall include: 

a. Project name, address (if currently assigned) and Sid well numbers 
b. Project location map with a scale of 1” = 200’ 
c. Name of the Developer, address phone and fax number 
d. Name or Project Engineering Firm, Landscape Architect/Designer, 

addresses, phone and fax numbers. 
e. Zoning classification of the project 

LD7.02.00     Information to be included on all other sheets 
a. Number        
b. Scale - commercial/individual lots min. 1” = 30’, max. 1” = 5’   

Subdivisions min. 1” = 100’ 
c. North arrow (except on detail sheet) 
d. Title 
e. Legend 
f. Property lines 
g. Structures to remain or to be built on the site 
h. Proposed and existing easements, utilities, rights-of-ways and building 

envelopes. 
i. Adjacent land use 
j. Label existing topographic contours on preliminary plans 
k. Label existing and proposed topographic contour lines on final plans. 
l. Location and number code of preserved trees (see also 8.02.04) 
m. Location of reforested trees – must be called out. 
n. Plant list indicating quantity, botanical name, size, condition (bare root, 

container/size, B&B, etc.),  
o. Planting specifications 
p. Attach relevant sections of Consent Judgment if applicable. 

 

LD8.00.00 Tree Preservation Options - Developer shall use one of the following 
options or a combination thereof: 

 

LD8.01.00 Preservation of 30% of total site DBH inches.  (see LD8.01.01) 
LD8.01.01 Total site DBH inches shall be the total number of DBH (diameter at breast 

height) inches existing on the site for all trees four (4) inches DBH and up.  
LD8.02.00 Replacement of 30% of total site DBH (see LD8.04.00) with new or harvested 

(LD8.03.02) plantings (A.K.A. Reforestation Plantings) at a rate of one (1) DBH 
inch = one and one half  (1 ½”) caliper inches. (see LD 8.05.00) 

LD8.02.01 For all reforestation planting – no one genus of tree shall represent 
more that 20% of the total number of trees found on the site after final 
acceptance of the project by the City.  



 7

LD8.03.00 Should the site be unable to accommodate all or part of the required 
Reforestation Plantings, upon approval by the City, the Developer may pay into 
the City’s Tree Fund at a rate of one (1) DBH inch = two (2) caliper inches, 
multiplied by the Tree Reforestation Dollar Value (TRDV) (see LD8.03.01) as 
set annually by the City.  

a.  Example - 1000 Total Site DBH inches X 2 X TRDV = amount to be  
     paid into City Tree Fund. 

LD8.03.01 Tree Reforestation Dollar Value (TRDV) = $114.00 
LD8.03.02 Harvesting trees for Reforestation Plantings – should the Developer choose, 

trees existing on this or other sites may be relocated in or into the  project.  
Trees shall be: 

a. A minimum of 2.5 caliper inches 
b. Either balled/burlapped or moved by tree spade 
c. In good to excellent condition after installation 
d. Unless previously approved by City, only trees on the City’s 

Recommend Deciduous Trees for Troy list will be approved for 
harvesting and relocation.  

e. Guaranteed for one full year after final acceptance (closing) of the 
development/project by the City.  Warranty replacement trees shall 
be nursery grown and guaranteed for one full year from date of 
installation. Developer is responsible for requesting all inspections. 

f. Covered by a deposit based on the number of caliper inches 
harvested x TRDV (see LD8.03.01).  Funds on healthy harvested 
trees (as determined by City) to be released at the end of the 
guarantee period.  Remaining funds to be released at the end of the 
replacement guarantee period for all healthy replacement trees.   
Developer is responsible for requesting all inspections 

g. Replaced if necessary by same number of caliper inches (minimum 
2.5 “) but not necessarily with the same number of trees. 

LD8.03.03 Developer shall be responsible for the removal of any preserved trees  
or Reforestation Plantings, harvested or nursery grown that die during 
guarantee period. 

LD8.03.04 Developer shall also be responsible for any site damage cause by the 
removal and/or replacement of trees that died during the guarantee 
period.  This restoration shall include but not be limited to sod, other 
trees, irrigation systems, underground utilities, fences, drives, walks, 
patios, pools, landscaping installed after the tree was planted, buildings, 
etc.  

LD8.04.00 Trees Preserved - If the Developer chooses to preserve existing trees, tree 
selection shall be based on the following: 

LD8.04.01     Trees to be considered preserved shall be within the size range of    
four (4) inches DBH and up.   

LD8.04.02     Preserved trees shall not be on the City’s prohibited species list.    
Trees on the prohibited species list can be maintained but will not be  
considered preserved trees.  

LD8.04.03     Any tree that is endangered or threatened, or is a species of special      
 concern as listed on the Federal Inventory List or Michigan Natural    
 Features Inventory List (MNFI), which is maintained by the Michigan  
 Natural Heritage Program and/or the Michigan Land Conservancy  
 shall be preserved.  



 8

LD8.04.04     Any tree of a unique nature, size, or type that by its presence enhances     
the quality of the overall landscape design.  These trees shall be called out on 
the Preliminary Tree Preservation Plan and Final Tree Preservation / 
Landscape Plan.   

LD8.04.05   Trees Preserved shall be in good condition (as deemed by the Director) for 
one full year after the final acceptance (closing) of the project by the City.   

LD8.04.06     At the City’s discretion, any tree can be removed from the proposed  
                      list of preserved trees.   
LD8.05.00 Reforestation Plantings 
 Reforestation Plants shall conform to the following: 
 
LD8.05.01     Size -   

a. Deciduous shade - minimum of 2 ½” caliper  
b. Deciduous flowering – minimum 1 ½” caliper 
c. Coniferous – minimum of 8 feet tall 

LD8.05.02     Deciduous tree varieties shall be selected from the City’s  
 Recommended Deciduous Trees for Troy list. Proposed tree  
 varieties not found on the City’s list must be approved by the City 

LD8.05.03     Front, back and side yards are the primary planting locations. 
LD8.05.04 If the Developer proves to the City’s satisfaction that the required number  

of trees cannot be located in these areas, the City reserves the option of 
assigning additional planting sites within the project boundaries.  

LD8.05.05     Reforestation trees shall be a minimum of thirty (30) feet away from the  
 right-of –way. 
LD8.05.06     Reforestation trees shall not be planted in easements. 
LD8.05.07     In areas with above ground utility lines, trees with a matured height  

of more than twenty (20) feet shall not be planted within fifteen (15)  
feet of the utility poles. (see City Ordinance 28.15.06) 

LD8.05.08     Reforestation trees shall not be incorporated into any  
 non-access green belts, detention ponds, street planting, medians,  
 cul-de-sac planting or any other landscaping required by the  

Developmental Standards without City approval.   If approved the trees will be 
used to augment not replace required landscaping. 

LD8.05.09  Reforestation trees shall be in good condition (as deemed by the City) for one 
full year after the final acceptance (closing) of the project by the City.   

 

LD9.00.00 Preliminary Tree Preservation Plans – Specific Requirements 
  Preliminary Tree Preservation plans shall be submitted to the Director of Parks 

and Recreation when an application is submitted to the Planning, Building 
Department, and /or City Clerk’s office for Preliminary Site plan review for a 
building project or when the Preliminary Plan Review, Special Use Approval 
Request, or Tentative Preliminary Plat Approval for a project is submitted for 
review.  

LD9.01.00 Plan shall include: 
a. All information listed in LD6.00.00 
b. Location of all trees four (4) inches DBH and larger within the projects 

property lines and all trees on adjoining properties that have drip lines 
extending onto the site, shall be located on Preliminary Tree 
Preservation plan.  Each tree shall be number coded. 

c. Table of trees shall be created indicating tree number code, DBH,  



 9

  species (maple, elm, spruce, etc.) and condition (good, fair, poor) 
d. Total site DBH for all trees four (4) inch and greater shall be included 

with above listed table.  
e. Copies of relevant sections of Consent Judgment if applicable.  

 

LD10.00.00 Final Tree Preservation / Landscape Plan Specific Requirements  
It is the intent of the Final Tree Preservation / Landscape plan to indicate 
location of preserved and/or reforested trees and show their relationship to the 
projects overall landscaping.  Additionally, this plan will delineate all required 
and/or proposed landscaping.  Final Tree Preservation / Landscape Plan shall 
be submitted as one combined document. The Final Landscape Plan shall be 
consistent with the Preliminary Landscape Plan used to grant Preliminary Site 
Plan approval by the Planning Commission.   

LD10.01.00  Final Tree Preservation/Landscape plan shall include the following: 
a. Base sheet information, as indicated in LD7.00.00. 
b. Location of trees to be preserved as per these standards and/or  

   locations of reforestation plantings.   
c. Plant list.  The plant list can be printed on the plan or can be typed and 

attached to each of three (3) sets of plans submitted for review. Plant 
list shall include: 

 
1. Botanical name 
2. Common name 
3. Plant size 
4. Number of each plant variety used   
5. Condition  

a. Balled and burlapped 
b. Bare root 
c. Potted 
d. Container grown 

 
LD10.01.01 All plants shall be identified with the proper botanical name. This  
                    requirement does not preclude the use of a key system method of  
                    identifying plant materials on the plan. 
LD10.01.02 Planting details shall be provided for each plant group to be installed on  
                    the site (shade/flowering trees, shrubs, evergreens, perennials, ground covers, 
     annuals, etc.) 
LD10.01.03 The City reserves to right to reject any proposed plant materials or  
     proposed planting locations. 
LD10.01.04 A break down of the Tree Preservation option(s) used and  
                    shall also indicate: 

a. Option(s) used 
b. Total Site DBH inches (see LD8.01.01) 
c. Number and size of trees preserved, or replanted, or amount to be 

paid into City Tree Fund 
d. Show calculations for all options used 
e. Construction drawings (LD11.00.00), landscape planting 

specifications (LD12.00.00) and cost estimates (LD13.00.00) shall 
be submitted at the same time as Final Tree Preservation / 
Landscape Plan.  



 10

 

LD11.00.00   Construction Drawings - All construction (engineering) drawings and 
specifications shall conform to the City of Troy Development Design Standards 
and the Landscape Design and Tree Preservation Standards. 

 

LD12.00.00 Landscape Planting Specifications - The Developer is required to 
provide a copy of the landscape planting specifications that will be employed 
during the implementation of the project.  If these specifications are found to be 
insufficient, the proper changes are required to be made before the landscape 
plans will be approved.  

 

LD13.00.00   Cost Estimate  - Landscaping (Non-residential only) – An itemized 
estimate covering the costs of all landscaping (hardscape and softscape) 
scheduled for the project shall be submitted with all landscape plans.  The cost 
estimate shall be in the form of a line item cost break out.  A single total cost 
for the project is not acceptable.  Irrigation shall not be included in the cost 
estimates.  

 

LD14.00.00    Submittal Requirements - It is the intent of the Landscape Design 
Standards to inform the Developer of submittal requirements, review 
procedures, fees and inspections and guarantees.  It should be noted that 
strict adherence to the procedures outlined herein will ensure expeditious 
processing of plans and thereby minimize the need for project modifications. 

 

LD15.00.00    The Reviewing Body - The Tree Preservation Plans, Landscape Plans, 
cost estimates, construction drawings, details, and specifications will be 
reviewed by the Director of Parks and Recreation or her/his designated agent. 

LD15.01.00   All submitted drawings, and supporting documentation shall be reviewed for: 
 

a. Conformity to all current City Ordinances and Standards. 
b. Aesthetic quality. 
c. Appropriate selection and use of all plants.  
d. Due to the unique natural of each site, no one set of ordinances or 

standards can cover all contingencies.  The City reserves the right to 
critic any aspect of the proposed design.  The Designer/Developer 
shall resolve any issues brought to their attention by the City.  

 

LD16.00.00    Submission for Review  
   It is required that all landscape data be submitted, reviewed and approved 

before any Building permit / Final Site Approval can be issued.  No tree 
regardless of size, shall be removed until the Final Site Plan Approval is issued 
(see City Ordinance 28.06.05).  

LD16.01.00 Three (3) copies of required plans, planting specifications (statements that 
outline the procedures that will be used to install all plant materials and other 
landscape elements) and itemized cost estimates will be submitted to the 
Parks and Recreation Department. 

LD16.02.00 On-site changes of an approved landscape plan may be made using the 
following: 

a. The City of Troy must approve all changes. 



 11

b. Prior to any deviation from the accepted plan, the City of Troy must 
be contacted and asked for an evaluation of the proposed change.   

c. In projects where deviation from the accepted landscape plan has 
been approved, the Developer shall forward as-built drawings to the 
City of Troy prior to the implementation inspection.  

LD16.02.01 Any changes made to the required plans, specifications, details, and/or cost 
estimates after the issuance of Final Site Approval could delay the issuance of 
the Final Certification of Occupancy, and release of the Implementation and/or 
Maintenance Deposits. 
 

LD17.00.00    Changes in a Landscape Plan Resulting from Review Process - Any 
changes required by the reviewing body must be included in three (3) complete 
sets of revised plans to be submitted to Parks and Recreation, along with the 
revised specifications and cost estimates. 

 

LD18.00.00    Tree Preservation / Landscape Plan Review Fee 
The Tree Preservation / Landscape Plan Review Fee is based on the total 
(gross) acreage of the project.  Final Site approval will not be issued until this 
fee is paid. The non-refundable fee will be charged at the rate of: 

a. Less than five acres - $400.00 
b. Five acres or more - $50.00 per acre with a minimum charge of 

$400.00 
LD18.01.00 Tree Preservation / Landscape Plan Penalty Review fee: 

a. Less than five acre - $800.00 
b. Five acres or more - $100.00 per acre with a minimum charge of 

$800.00 
 

LD19.00.00    Landscape Deposits 
Landscape Deposits listed in this section are for all sites other than sub-division 
developments.  Final Site approval will not be issued until this deposit is made.  

LD19.01.00 Implementation Deposit – After the Final Tree Preservation / Landscape 
Plans, planting specifications and cost estimates have been approved, and prior 
to the issuance of Final Site Approval, the Developer shall post with the City of 
Troy an Irrevocable Bank Letter of Credit and/or cash deposit that will serve as 
the Implementation Deposit.   

LD19.01.01 The amount of Implementation Deposit shall be determined by the Parks and  
                    Recreation Department based on the following percentages: 

 

a. Forty-five (45) percent of the total project’s landscaping costs of 
$3999.99 or less 

b. Twenty-five (25) percent of the total project’s landscaping cost of 
$4000.00 or more. 

LD19.01.02 No inspections shall be made if Bank Letter of Credit has expired. 
LD19.02.00 Maintenance Deposit – Once the Final Tree Preservation / Landscape plan 

has been fully implemented and the implementation has been approved by the 
City of Troy (LD27.00.00), the City of Troy shall release the Landscape Deposit 
less the Maintenance Deposit.  Twenty (20) percent of the total estimate or 
$1000.00 (whichever is greater) shall be posted as a Maintenance Deposit with 
the Parks and Recreation Department prior to the issuance of the final 
Certification of Occupancy. Bank Letter of Credit will not be accepted for the 



 12

Maintenance Deposit.  The Property Owner/Developer is responsible for 
requesting all inspections 

LD19.02.01  Final inspection of the landscape for release of Maintenance Deposit  
                     may be called for one year after receiving implementation approval.  The  

Property Owner/Developer is responsible for requesting all inspections 
LD19.02.02  The intent of this requirement is to ensure that all dead, dying, diseased  
                     and/or weakened plant materials found during the Final Maintenance  
                     Inspection shall be replaced with viable plant materials during the next  
                     acceptable planting season.  Additionally, it ensures that the site has  
                     received proper landscape maintenance.   
LD19.02.03  The Irrevocable Bank Letter of Credit and/or cash deposit will be held for a  

minimum of one year.  The Developer/Property Owner is responsible for 
requesting inspections. The Developer/Property Owner will be notified by the 
City of any replacements / repairs / corrections required. The replacements / 
repairs / corrections to the landscape shall be made within thirty days of notice 
unless otherwise approved by City.   

LD19.02.04  When the replacements / repairs / corrections have been made to the  
                     satisfaction of the City, the Bank Letter of Credit and/or cash deposit 

will be released, and a final project approval will be forwarded to the  
                     Building Department. 
LD19.02.05  Failure on the part of the Property Owner to comply with these standards may  
                     result in the forfeiture of either or both of the Irrevocable Letters of Credit  
                     and/or cash.   
LD19.02.06  Should it be found that the Bank Letter of Credit has expired before the  
                     City has performed the Final Implementation Inspection and  
                     approved the landscape, the amount of the appropriate deposit and  
                     all administrative costs, may (at the City’s discretion) be levied against  
                     the property.   

a. Levying of such cost shall be certified by the Director of  
Parks and Recreation to the City of Troy Treasurer and shall become a 
lien upon such property, and shall be included in the next tax bill 
rendered to the Property Owner or Property Owners unless paid before 
and shall be collected in the same manner as other taxes against such 
property.  

b. Of the monies collected in this manner only the original amount of the 
deposit is refundable and only after the maintenance inspection has 
been completed and the landscape receives final approval.  

LD19.03.00  Depositor shall forfeit the Maintenance Deposit if the Maintenance Inspection is  
                     not called for within three years of Final Implementation Inspection, or  
                     unless otherwise approved by the Director of Parks and Recreation. 

 

LD20.00.00    Tree removals prior to Final Site Approval –  
No tree, regardless of size, shall be removed without Final Plan Site 
Approval.   

LD20.01.00 Undergrowth may be removed at any time.  However, if in the process of 
removing the undergrowth, soil is disturbed, all work shall cease until the 
City’s Environmental Specialist clears the site for the continuation of work.  

LD20.02.00 The Parks and Recreation Department shall be notified twenty-four hours 
prior to the beginning of any type of clearing operation.  

 
 



 13

 
 
 

LD21.00.00    Violation of Tree Preservation plan 
 Performing any tree or plant removals in violation of the City Ordinance 

Chapter 28 (Tree and Plant Ordinance) and/or the “Tree Preservation and 
Landscape Design Standards” shall result in the following: 

a. Issue of “Stop Work Order” 
b. Cancellation of all currently held Tree Preservation and Landscape 

approvals. 
c. See City ordinance 28.16.02 

 

LD22.00.00    Landscape Installation 
  Prior to and during landscape installation:   
LD22.01.00 No landscape work shall take place without final site approval. 
LD22.02.00 The Parks and Recreation Department shall be notified of the proposed 

starting date twenty-four (24) hours before work on the project begins. 
LD22.03.00 Landscaping not conforming to approved drawing and specification shall result 

in the:  
a. Issuance of a “Stop Work Order” 
b. Cancellation of all currently held permits 
c. Additional fees as per LD18.01.00 
d. All changes in approved Final Tree Preservation / Landscape plans 

shall be approved in writing prior to implementation of changes.  
LD22.04.00 No temporary or final certificate of occupancy will be granted until these  

Standards are complied with fully. 
 

LD23.00.00    Tree and Plant Protection 
            Developer is required to:  
LD23.01.00  Adhere to the tree and plant protection 
            measures as listed in Chapter 28 of City Code.   
LD23.02.00 If encroachment into a tree protection area occurs, resulting in           

irreparable damage to the trees or the area inside the tree protection area, a 
“Stop Work Order” will be issued and the Final Tree Preservation/Landscape 
plan shall be revised to indicate reforestation planting required compensating 
for tree loss/damage.  (see City ordinance 28.16.02)  All revised plans will have 
to be re-approved.  (see LD18.01.00) 

LD23.03.00 Under no circumstance shall the Developer be relieved of the responsibility of 
compliance with the provisions of this Standard, City Ordinances and 
Developmental Standards. 

LD23.04.00 Pre-construction Tree Protection 
  Prior to construction: 

a. All protective measures as outlined in this standard and City Ordinance 
28.08.00 shall be in place before any site work will be permitted.  

b. Remove non-preserved trees.  Cut rather than push over with dozers to 
protect roots of preserved trees. 

c. With City approval, the Developer may prune limbs in the way of 
improvements prior to construction.  

LD23.05.00 Construction Tree Protection 
  During construction operations: 



 14

LD23.05.01   Keep all construction activities out of  “Tree Protection Area” (City  
                     Ordinance 28.02.26).  NO storage of any type of materials,  
                     equipment, or any other activity will be allowed inside the Tree  
                     Protection Area. 
LD23.06.00 Post—Construction Tree Protection 
  After all construction and the establishment of final grade: 

a. Remove all tree protective barriers 
b. Prune any damaged trees 
c. Replace preserved trees that died during construction (see City 

Ordinance 28.16.02) 
 

LD24.00.00    Inspection Schedule - The intent of the following sections is to   inform 
the Developer of the inspection schedule which will be employed by the City of 
Troy during the landscape construction period.  This section also informs the 
Developer of what procedures must be employed in order to receive an 
inspection at the request time, and the scope of each inspection.  Developer / 
Property Owner is responsible for requesting all inspections.  

 

LD25.00.00     Initial Site Inspection - When the Parks and Recreation   
Department receives any plans, a site inspection may be made to help the 
reviewer(s) determine if any problems areas can be found that may not be fully 
delineated on the plans.  This will also help the reviewers realize the full impact 
of the proposed development on the local environment.   

 

LD26.00.00    First Implementation Inspection 
           After the Final Tree Preservation Landscape plan has been approved, 
                      review fee paid, landscape deposit posted, Final Site Approval issued,  
                      and the Parks and Recreation Department has been notified of  
                      installation schedule, the implementation of the Final Tree Preservation  /  
                      Landscape plan can begin. 
LD26.01.00   During the implementation of landscape the City reserves the right to  
            perform unscheduled inspections of the site, and all landscape materials. 
LD26.02.00 Developer shall be advised of any sub-standard plant materials, which shall be 

removed from the site. 
LD26.02.00 Developer shall be advised of any installation concerns.  These concerns shall 

be corrected within the time frame given or a “Stop Work Order” will be issued.  
LD26.03.00 Failure to follow this procedure on the part of the Developer will result in a 

“Stop Work Order”.  
  

LD27.00.00     Final Implementation Inspection 
 The Developer/Property Owner will request a Final Implementation Inspection 

by the City of Troy at least five (5) working days prior to the proposed 
inspection date. 

LD27.01.00 When the project has been approved by the City of Troy, the Parks and 
Recreation Department shall forward to the City of Troy Building Department 
all approvals and upon receipt of Maintenance Deposit the City will release the 
Implementation Deposit.    

LD27.02.00 In cases where the City has not approved the project, the objections shall be 
outlined in writing and shall be forwarded to the Developer and Building 



 15

Department.  This notice will also stipulate the date and/or dates by which the 
required alterations will be completed.  

LD27.03.00 When a project has not been approved at the time of the Final Implementation 
Inspection, additional inspections will be made as the required alterations have 
been completed.  The Developer /Property Owner will contact the City of Troy 
at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the proposed re-inspection date. 

LD27.04.00 The deposits will not be returned until the required corrections are complete. 
   

LD28.00.00    Maintenance Inspection (Final) 
 This inspection will take place a minimum of twelve (12) months and a 

maximum of thirty-six (36) months after the last Implementation Inspection.  
The depositor forfeits the Landscape Maintenance Deposit after thirty-six (36) 
months. Developer/Property Owner is responsible for requesting all 
inspections.  

LD28.01.00 It is the responsibility of the Developer/Property Owner to contact the City of 
Troy and request all inspections.   Requests shall be made at least five (5) 
working days before inspection date.  

LD28.02.00 All materials that do not pass this inspection will be listed in written form and 
forwarded to the Developer by the City of Troy.  This notice will also stipulate 
the date by which all replacements will be completed.  

LD28.03.00 When a project is not approved at the time of the Maintenance Inspection, 
additional inspections will be made when the required alterations have been 
completed.  The date for this inspection can be established by contacting the 
City of Troy at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the proposed inspection date. 

LD28.04.00 When the project is not approved by the City of Troy, the Maintenance Deposit 
shall be released. 

LD28.05.00 Failure on the part of the Developer to follow the procedures in this section,  
will result in the forfeiture of the Irrevocable Bank Letter of Credit and/or cash 
deposit. 

 

LD29.00.00    Landscape Contractor Qualifications - The intent of this section of the 
Standards is to inform the Developer of what minimum qualifications a Tree 
Appraiser and/or Landscape Contractor are to be.  Information as to the 
responsibilities of the Landscape Contractor other than the simple 
implementation of the landscape plans can be found in this section of these 
standards. 

LD29.01.00  The Landscape Contractor (person and/or firm responsible for the 
implementation of the approved landscape development plan) shall be licensed 
by the State of Michigan, Department of Agriculture Plant Industries Division to 
handle plant materials. 

LD29.02.00  The Landscape Contractor will be covered by a public liability property damage 
insurance policy. 

LD29.03.00 The Landscape Contractor shall conform to all Federal and State Labor Laws.  
 
 

LD30.00.00     Landscape Contractor Responsibilities 
 The Landscape Contractor shall guarantee that all plants are true to botanical 

name, and that the quality and size meet the approved specifications. 
LD30.01.00 The Landscape Contractor shall fully guarantee that all plants are in a vigorous 

growing condition during and at the end of the guarantee periods.  This 



 16

guarantee period shall be minimum of one (1) year from the issuance of Final 
Implementation Inspection. 

LD30.02.00 Replacement plants and/or landscape materials other than plants shall be in 
accordance with the approved original specifications. 

LD30.03.00 The Contractor shall at all times keep the premises and public streets free from 
any excessive accumulation of soil and waste material or rubbish caused by 
his employees or work, and at the completion of the work, he shall remove all 
his waste, excessive material, rubbish and equipment so as to leave the 
premises neat and clean and ready for the purpose for which it was intended.  

LD30.04.00 The Landscape Contractor shall properly protect all existing structures and 
property on land abutting the project.  This is to include, but not be limited to:  

 

a. Sidewalks   
b. Curbs 
c. Fences   
d. Buildings 
e. Lawns    
f. Trees 
g. Shrubbery   
h. Irrigation systems 
i. Lighting systems  
j. Ornamental structures 

 
LD31.00.00   Tree Appraiser Qualifications –  
          The intent of this section of the Standards is to inform the Developer of  
           what minimum qualifications a Tree Appraiser are to be.   
                     Information as the responsibilities of the Tree Appraiser other than the  
                     simple implementation of  the landscape plans can be found in this  
           section. 
LD31.01.00 A qualified Tree Appraiser shall have a minimum of two (2) years of college in 

the areas of Horticulture, Forestry, Urban Forestry, Landscape Architecture or 
related field or two (2) years experience at a supervisory level in one of these 
disciplines or related fields.  The Parks and Recreation Department will review 
credentials upon request of the Developer.  

 

LD32.00.00    Tree Appraiser Responsibilities  
               Shall be able to provide the necessary graphic and written reports as      
            outlined in this standard.  
LD32.01.00 The Tree Appraiser shall be held accountable for the accuracy of all graphic 

and written submittals. 
 

LD33.00.00    Plant Material Requirements - The intent of this section to inform the  
            Developer of the minimum requirements placed on all plant materials  
                     used to implement those landscape requirements as called for by the  
                     City Code.  
 

The following information includes the definitions of the seven (7) major plant 
groups that come under the control of these standards and the specific 
requirements placed on each plant group.  

 



 17

LD33.01.00   Broadleaf Evergreens - As the name implies, this group of plant  
            materials have broad leaves, rather than needles, and retain their  
                      foliage throughout the winter months.  This plant group is a woody  
                      ornament having both low spreading varieties and shrub forms.  
 

a. Minimum required size for low spreading varieties of broadleaf 
evergreens is fifteen (15) to eighteen (18) inches in width. 

b. Minimum required size for shrub form broadleaf evergreens is eighteen 
(18) to twenty-four (24) inches in height. 

 

LD33.02.00 Coniferous Evergreens - This group of plant materials maintains its foliage 
throughout the entire year in a green condition.  These plants are woody 
ornamentals and for the most part, have very narrow leaves, often referred to 
as needles.  It should be noted that coniferous evergreens have both spreading 
and upright varieties. 

 

a. Minimum required size for spreading coniferous evergreens is fifteen 
(15) to eighteen (18) inches in width. 

b. Minimum required size for upright coniferous evergreens is five (5) to six 
(6) feet in height. 

 

LD33.03.00  Deciduous Shrubs - This group is made up of those woody ornamental plants  
           with several self-supporting stems, which lose their foliage each autumn.   
 

a. Each plant will have a minimum of at least three (3) stems, at least 
eighteen (18) to twenty-four (24) inches long. 

b. This requirement does not preclude the possibility of using espaliered or 
topiary shrubs. 

 
LD33.04.00  Deciduous Shade and Small Flowering Trees - These trees and shrubs are  

          those woody ornamental; plant materials with one or more self-supporting    
          stems or trunks with a usually well-defined branching network located near the  
          distal end of the trunk.  The foliage of this plant group is dropped each autumn,  
          and is renewed in the spring of the year.  

 

a. The minimum heights and caliper requirements for shade trees are as 
follows: 

 
1. The minimum caliper - two (2) inches to two and one half (2½) 

inches. 
2. The minimum height - ten (10) feet. 

b. The minimum height and caliper requirements for small flowering trees 
are as follow: 

 
3. Minimum caliper - one and one-half (1½) to one and three-

quarters (1¾) inches. 
4. Minimum height – five (5) feet. 

c. It should be noted that all caliper measurements will be taken at least 
six (6) inches above the graft (on grafted materials) and six (6) inches 
above root, shoot junction on all non-grafted materials.  

d. All height measurements will be taken from the soil line at the base of 
the tree to the end of the central leader.  



 18

e. Minimum Soil Surface Areas – When planting trees in areas totally 
surrounded by impermeable surfacing (i.e. Concrete, pavers, asphalt 
buildings, etc.), there shall be a minimum of thirty-six (36) square feet 
of exposed soil surface for each tree. 

f. All tree spacing in the landscape and setbacks from overhead utility 
lines shall conform to City Ordinance 28.15.06 & Figure #5 (see 
below) unless otherwise required (see Developmental Standards) or 
approved by the City. 

 

 
        Large                Medium                          Small  
                 (50+ feet)          (30 – 50 feet)                   (15 – 30 Feet) 
 
LD33.05.00  Ground Covers 

a. As a general requirement placed on all ground covers, no rooted  
cuttings shall be deemed as acceptable plant materials.  All ground 
cover materials shall be at least one (1) year bedded stock.  

b. The following requirements shall govern those ground covers that 
spread over the desired area by the use of above ground runners: 

 
1. The minimum number of runners required per plant - three (3). 
2. The minimum required length of each runner - six (6) inches. 

c. Maximum spacing between plants at installation shall not exceed: 
1. 4” root ball and smaller - six (6) inches on center.  
2. 6” root ball – twelve (12) inches on center 
3. one gallon – twenty four (24) inches on center 

d. The following requirements shall govern those ground covers that 
spread over the desired area by the use of under ground runners: 

1. All plants shall be potted either four (4) or six (6) inch pots. 
2. All plants shall be well balanced and have a well-established 

root system. 
 



 19

LD33.06.00   Perennials – This group is made up of those herbaceous ornamental plants  
            that generally dies down to the ground each fall, but re-grow from the  root  
            system for a minimum of three years.  
 

a. The following requirements shall govern perennial plants: 
 

1. All plants shall be potted in minimum six (6) inch pots 
2. All plants shall have a well-established root system. 

b. Spacing - If used in a mass planting the maximum spacing between 
plants shall not exceed: 

 
1. Plants with foliage height between one (1) and six (6) inches – 

twelve (12) inches on center. 
2. Plants with foliage height between seven (7) and twelve (12) 

inches – eighteen (18) inches on center. 
3. Plants with foliage height between thirteen (13) and twenty-four 

(24) inches – thirty (30) inches on center. 
4. Plants with foliage height between twenty-five (25) and thirty-six 

(36) inches – thirty-six (36) inches on center. 
5. Plants with foliage height greater than thirty-six (36) inches – 

forty-eight (48) inches on center 
 

LD33.07.00   Turf Grass - Those herbaceous plant materials, which have a low spreading  
            growth habit covering the soil surface often used in lieu of an ornamental  
            ground cover, or an organic/inorganic material such as woodchips or stone. 
 

a. City’s Development Standards shall govern turf grass installations.  
  

LD34.00.00     Other Requirements Placed on Plant Materials - The following  
             information is a list of all other requirements placed on all plant  materials  
             used in the implementation of those landscape projects called for by City   
             Code. 
 

a. All plant material shall conform in botanical name, dimensions, and 
quality of the “Horticultural Standards” adopted by the American 
Association of Nurserymen. 

b. All bare root plant material shall have a well-branched root system, 
characteristic of the species.  The root system will meet the minimum 
standards for bare root nursery stock as set down by the American 
Association of Nurserymen.  

c. Balled and Burlapped plant material shall be balled with original soil, 
intact with the fibrous roots to insure maximum recovery after 
transplanting.  

d. Plants shall conform to the above standards when materials are balled 
and burlapped. 

e. Potted plants shall have sufficient root structures to ensure full recovery 
and development. 

f. Any plants existing on the site requiring relocation must be dug in 
accordance with the above stated standards. 

g. Nursery stock shall be vigorous, free from disease, insects, insect eggs, 
or larvae. 



 20

h. All tree selections shall be made using the City’s “Recommended 
Deciduous Trees” list unless otherwise approved.  

i. Substitution of materials included in an approved plan shall only be 
made with the consent of the City of Troy.  The Property 
Owner/Developer may request an amendment verbally or in writing.  
Approval can be given verbally and followed up in writing.  The Property 
Owner/Developer shall provide an as-built drawing indicating the 
changes prior to the request for the implementation inspection.  

j. All plantings shall be 100% guaranteed for one (1) year after the City 
releases relevant landscape deposits.   

LD35.00.00     Prohibited Plant Materials -   
Plants that shall not be planted by the general public and Developers within the 
City include the following plants and all cultivars thereof:   

   
LD35.01.00  Permanent Ban: 

a. Acer saccharinum  - Silver Maple  
b. Acer negundo   - Box Elder  
c. Acer platanoides   - Norway maple 
d. Ailanthus altissima   - Tree of Heaven 
e. Catalpa speciosa   - Northern Catalpa 
f. Fraxinus spp.   - Ash, all forms 
g. Paulownia tomentosa  - Royal Empress Tree 
h. Populus spp.   - Poplar / Cottonwood 
i. Pyrus calleryana ‘Bradford’ - Bradford Pear 
j. Salix spp.    - Willow (excluding shrub forms) 
k. Ulmus spp.   - Elm (excluding cultivars of  

                   U. parvifolia & U. americana) 
LD35.02.00 Temporary Ban: 
  As of May 8, 2006 the City will not approve the following plants, and all cultivars 
  thereof, for planting in the City of  Troy.   
 

a. Acer spp. (excluding Japanese forms) -Maple 
b. Betula spp.   -Birch 
c. Gleditsia triacanthos   -Honeylocust 
d. Platanus occidentalis  -Sycamore 
e. Quercus spp.   -Oak 
f. Robinia pseudoacacia  -Black Locust  
g. Sorbus acucparia      -Mountain Ash 
h. Tilia spp. (excluding tomentosa ‘Sterling’) -Linden 

 
LD35.03.00  Temporary bans will be review by the City every five (5) years to determine if 
   plants should be added, removed or remain on the list. 

    
LD36.00.00 Site Preparation Prior to Plant and Irrigation Installation 
LD36.01.00   No construction debris larger than one (1) inch in any dimension shall be found 

in the top twelve (12) inches of soil after completion of rough grading. 
LD36.02.00 No construction debris larger than six (6) inches in any dimension shall be 

found between twelve (12) inches and twenty-four (24) inches below the 
topsoil. 



 21

LD36.03.00 Rough grades shall be established prior to soil fracturing. 
LD36.04.00 Developer shall submit drawings indicating areas to be fractured.  City 

reserves the right to add or delete areas.  
LD36.05.00 Prior to the introduction of topsoil or soil improvers all designated areas not 

covered by hard surfaces, buildings, fences, etc. but excluding the tree 
protection area(s) and retention/detention ponds, shall be mechanically 
fractured to a minimum depth of eight (8) inches and re-graded to rough 
grades.  Approved fracturing techniques include but shall not be limited to: 
 

a. Plow 
b. Hydro jet 
c. Till 
d. Drill-n-fill 
e. Compressed air treatments 
f. Hollow tine aerification 

LD36.06.00 To reduce the degree of difficulty during soil compaction mediation, the City 
encourages Developers/Contractors to limit and confine activities that will 
cause and/or increase soil compaction. 

LD36.07.00 Once the soils have been mechanically fractured, re-compaction of the soils 
shall be avoided.  Should it be found that re-compaction or inadequate 
fracturing has occurred, the City shall designate those areas that shall be re-
fractured. 

LD36.08.00 Should it be determined, by the City, that soil fracturing can not be done in all 
areas, then: 

a. Each location to receive a tree: 
1. Shall be radiate trenched.  Eight (8) trenches shall radiate out from 

the tree planting hole, and shall measure a minimum of fifteen (15) 
feet long from center of hole, a minimum of thirty-six (36) inches 
deep, and a minimum of six (6) inches wide.   

2. 2/3 original soil, 1/3 decomposed organic matter shall be mixed and 
used as the trenching backfill.  

b. Each location to receive shrubs/perennials/etc. shall be excavated to a 
depth of twelve (12) inches and backfilled with screened topsoil. (see 
LD36.01.00) 

LD36.09.00 All areas to be maintained as turf shall receive a minimum of two (2) inches of 
screened topsoil after fracturing. (see LD36.01.00) 

LD36.10.00 All finished grades shall be a minimum of one (1) inch and a maximum of two 
(2) inches below hard surfaces (i.e. concrete, asphalt, etc.) unless otherwise 
approved by the City. 

LD36.11.00 Finish grading shall not be done when soils are wet.   
 
 
 
 
 

LD37.00.00   Landscape Designer Qualifications and Responsibilities   
  Individuals designing landscapes for Site Plan Approval, Special Use Approval, 

or  Subdivisions Plat Approval, prior to doing the submitted designs, shall have 
one of the following qualifications: 

   

a. For proposed landscapes with total installed cost of $2000.00 or less - 
Michigan Certified Nurseryman or equivalent from another state.  



 22

b. Landscapes with total installed cost over $2,000.00 to $350,000.00 - 
Bachelors in Landscape Architecture, Architecture, Landscape Design, 
Horticulture, or Agriculture.  

c. Landscapes with total installed cost over $350,000.00 – Registered 
Landscape Architect. 

 
LD37.01.00  Responsibilities – Individuals creating landscape designs for commercial  
           Properties and/or subdivisions shall: 
  

a. Thoroughly acquaint themselves with site conditions found in the 
general area and on their specific project.  This shall include but not 
be limited to: 

 
1. All plants hardy to USDA Hardiness Zone 5b 
2. Typical soil type – heavy clay 
3. Plants located next to streets must tolerate aerial salt. 

 

b. Produce high quality, easy to read, scaled drawings and details. 
c. Produce an aesthetic design using the unique features on the site.  

 
 



 23

Landscaping Required  
 
District 
                           Present Landscape Requirements 
C-F, B-1, B-2, B-3, H-S, O-1, O-M, O-S-C, R-C, M-1, P-1 

 Ten (10) foot greenbelt along any public street, with one (1) tree for every 
thirty (30) lineal feet of frontage. 
 Ten (10) percent of site area landscape – front and side yards only. 
 General Note – not more than twenty (20) percent of required landscape 

area will be covered with non-living material, i.e. woodchips, stone etc. 
 

R-1, R-2  
 Subdivision Control Ordinance requirements only 

 

CR-1 
 Ten (10) foot greenbelt along any public street, with one (1) tree planted for 

every twenty (20) feet of frontage. 
 Five (5) foot berm along any property line abutting a major thoroughfare 

with one (1) tree planted for every twenty (20) feet of frontage. 
 Fifteen (15) percent of site shall be landscaped open space. 
 One (1) tree shall be planted for every two (2) dwelling units. 

 

R-1T, R-M, R-EC 
 Ten (10) foot greenbelt along any public street with one (1) tree planted for 

every twenty (20) feet of frontage. 
 Four (4) foot berm along any property line abutting a major thoroughfare, 

with one (1) tree planted for every twenty (20) feet of frontage. 
 Five (5) berm along any property line abutting freeway, landscaped with 

double row six (6) feet apart, evergreen species, four (4) feet on center 
staggered two (2) feet on center. 

 

RM-1 
 Same as R-1T and R-M, with the exception that a five (5) foot rather than a 

four (4) foot minimum height berm is required along any property line 
abutting a major thoroughfare. 

 

RM-2, RM-3 
 Same as RM-1 with the following exceptions: 

• Seventy-five (75) percent (vs. 70%) of required yards shall be 
landscaped 

• Overall requirement for four hundred and fifty (450) feet of 
landscaped open space per dwelling unit.  Sixty (60) percent of this 
open space area shall be located in direct proximity to the buildings.  



CITY OF TROY 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
 THE CODE OF THE CITY OF TROY 

BY THE ENACTMENT OF CHAPTER 28 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as Chapter 28, Tree and Plant 
Regulations, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2. Amendments 
 
The Code of the City of Troy shall be amended as follows:  

 
CHAPTER 28 

TREE AND PLANT REGULATIONS 
 
28.01.00 Purpose and Intent 
 
28.02.00 Definitions 
 
28.03.00 Responsibility 
 
28.04.00 Permits for Planting, Care and Removal of Plants – Public Space 
 
28.05.00 Plant Removal – Public Space 
 
28.06.00 Duties of Private Plant Owners 
 
28.07.00 Plant Protection – Public Spaces 
 
28.08.00 Plant Protection During Development – Public & Private Property 
 
28.09.00 Excavations Near Plants – Public Space 
 
28.10.00 Covering the Surface Near Trees – Public Space 
 
28.11.00 Regulations for New Planting – Public SPaces 
 
28.12.00 Corner Clearance (Visual Barrier Setback) 
 
28.13.00 Private Plant Inspection  
 



28.14.00 Lawn Extension and Subdivision Entry Islands/Cul-de-sac Islands 
  
28.15.00 Tree Spacing 
 
28.16.00 Violation of Tree and Plant Regulations 
 
28.17.00 Procedure for Ordering Action on Violations of Tree and Plant 

Regulations 
 
  Figure #1 
  Figure #2 
  Figure #3 
  Figure #4 
  Figure #5 
 
Section 4. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced. This Ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this Ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
Ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
Ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 5. Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
      day of      , 2006. 
 
 
               



         

Louise E. Schilling 
Mayor 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 15, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, May 15, 2006, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:33 P.M. 
 
Pastor Paul Lehman gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield (Arrived: 8:12 PM; Departed: 9:20 PM) 
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations    
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Preliminary Planned Unit Development Approval – PUD-5 Caswell Town Center – 
East Side of Rochester Road, South of South Boulevard, R-1D, B-3 and P-1, 
Section 2   

The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment after receiving comment from the 
City’s consultant and the petitioner. The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving public 
comment.  
 
Resolution #2006-05-216 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Fleming 
 
WHEREAS, Michigan Home Builders requested preliminary planned unit development approval 
for Caswell Town Center Planned Unit Development (PUD 5), located on the east side of 
Rochester Road south of South Boulevard, Section 2, within the R-1D, B-3 and P-1 zoning 
districts, being 18.62 acres in size; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City’s planning consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, 
Inc., prepared a memorandum dated April 27, 2006 that recommends approval of Caswell 
Town Center Planned Unit Development; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Management recommends preliminary planned unit development approval for 
Caswell Town Center Planned Unit Development; and  

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 15, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

WHEREAS, On March 28, 2006, the Planning Commission recommended approval of a 
preliminary plan for a planned unit development, pursuant to Article 35.60.01 of the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 
RESOLVED, The proposed PUD meets the eligibility requirements set forth in Article 35.30.00 
and the general development standards set forth in Section 35.40.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the preliminary planned unit development application 
consists of a CD dated May 2, 2006 and the following full size plans: 
 

The following plans were prepared by Hennessey Engineers, Inc.: 
 

CE1  Topographic Survey 
CE1A  Boundary Survey 
CE1B  Tree Survey 
CE1C  Tree Survey 
CE1D  Tree Survey 
CE2  Preliminary Site Plan 
CE2A  Snow Removal Plan 
CE2B  Photometric Plan 
CE2C  Drainage Calculations 
CE3  Preliminary Grading Plan 
CE4  Preliminary Utility Plan 
CE4A  Preliminary Pond Details 
CE5  Soil Boring Plan 

 
The following plans were prepared by Calvin Hall & Associates: 

 
L-1 of 6 Landscape Plan 
L-2 of 6 Landscape Plan 
L-3 of 6 Landscape Plan 
L-4 of 6 Amenity Site Plan and Pedestrian Circulation Walk Plan 
L-5 of 6 Entry Walls and Signage Reference Plan 
L-6 of 6 Site Section Elevations 

 
The following plan was prepared by Bill Carr Signs: 

 
Double-Face Illuminated Sign (8 ½” x 11”) 

 
The following plans were prepared by Alexander V. Bogaerts & Associates, P.C.: 

 
Front Elevation 
Left, Right and Rear Elevation 
Garage Level Building Plan 
First Floor Building Plan 
Second Floor Building Plan 
Unit Floor Plan 
Elevations – Proposed Retail Buildings 
Front Elevation - Proposed Retail Building w/ Coffee Shop 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 15, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

Left and Right Side and Rear Elevations - Proposed Retail Building w/ Coffee 
Shop 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the ground or pylon sign proposed at the boulevard 
entrance on the east side of Rochester Road, as illustrated on the 8½” x 11” double-face 
illuminated sign drawing, prepared by Bill Carr Signs, shall not exceed 15 feet in height, as 
recommended by the Planning Commission; and   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Caswell Town 
Center Preliminary Planned Unit Development.   
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Lambert, Schilling, Stine 
No: Howrylak 
Absent: Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-2 Adoption of 2006/07 City Budget   
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2006-05-217 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield 
 
WHEREAS, Section 8.3 of the City Charter directs the City Council to adopt a budget for the 
ensuing year, beginning July 1, 2006. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations, operating 
transfers-in, and operating revenues of the General Operating Fund are anticipated: 
 

Taxes      $35,473,690 
Licenses and Permits       2,059,000 
Federal Grants             34,500 
State Grants         6,765,000 
Contributions - Local          140,000 
Charges for Services       6,475,300 
Fines and Forfeits        1,012,000 
Interest and Rents        1,443,300 
Other Revenue           491,900 
Operating Transfers - In       4,724,870 
Re-appropriation        6,367,250 
Total               $64,986,810; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating Fund shall be six 
and fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2006 taxable valuation; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the General Operating Fund: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 15, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

  Building Inspection    $ 2,169,250 
 Council/Executive Administration     2,041,140 

  Engineering        3,096,890 
  Finance        4,869,370 
  Fire         4,212,260 
  Library /Museum       5,002,000 
  Other General Government     2,807,150 
  Police       23,174,400 
  Parks and Recreation      8,744,820 
  Streets                                     5,359,530 
  Operating Transfer Out      3,510,000 
 

Total      $64,986,810; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations and revenues of the 
Capital Fund are anticipated: 
 
  Taxes      $ 8,189,000 
  Federal Grants          305,000 
  State Grants        1,409,000 
  Charges for Services         150,000 
  Interest and Rents          607,200 
  Other Revenue          335,260 
  Operating Transfer In      5,700,000 
  Re-appropriation       3,102,000 
 
                Total      $19,797,460; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and sixty one-
hundredths (1.60) mills on the 2006 taxable valuation; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
 
 Building Inspection    $        10,000 
 Drains           1,205,780 
 Finance             100,000 
 Fire              497,830 
 Information Technology              700,000 
 Library             229,650 
 Museum             265,000 
 Other General Government                 2,170,000 
 Police               554,700 
 Parks and Recreation        3,778,500 
 Streets          9,116,000 
 Public Works          1,170,000 
 Total                                                         $19,797,460;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 15, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues of the Refuse Fund are 
anticipated: 
 

 Taxes      $ 4,248,000  
 Charges for Services             1,500 
 Interest and Rents          100,000 
 Re-appropriation          182,330 
        
 Total      $ 4,531,830; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be eighty- three one-
hundredths (.83) mills on the 2006 taxable valuation; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $4,531,830; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$3,005,190; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of fifty one-hundredths (.50) mills 
on the 2006 taxable valuation for the General Debt Service Fund. 
 
AND BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the following budgets are APPROVED as shown in the 
2006/07 budget document: 

   
 Major Road Fund     $  3,725,240 
 Local Road Fund     $  1,580,460 
 Community Development Block Grant Fund $     253,820 
 Troy Community Fair Fund    $     197,110 
 Budget Stabilization Fund    $       40,000 
 2000 MTF Debt Fund    $     256,640 
 Proposal A Debt Fund    $     800,970 
 Proposal B Debt Fund    $  1,393,950 
 Proposal C Debt Fund    $     746,770 
 Special Assessment Fund    $  4,052,420 
 Water Supply System    $14,400,550 
 Sanitary Sewer Fund    $11,097,790 
 Aquatic Center Fund    $     616,730 
 Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund   $  1,161,150 
 Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund  $  2,059,880 
 Building Operations     $  1,835,610 
 Information Technology Fund   $  1,527,740 
 Fleet Maintenance Fund    $  4,274,110 
 Workers’ Compensation Fund   $     530,000 
 Compensated Absences Fund   $  4,424,320 
 Unemployment Insurance Fund   $       73,000 

 
Yes: Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert 
No: Beltramini, Schilling, Stine 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 15, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2006-05-218 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2006-05-218-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of May 8, 2006 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 City of Troy Proclamations:   
 
Resolution #2006-05-218-E-3 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
 
a) 18th Annual Celebration of Life Picnic at William Beaumont Hospital, National Cancer 

Survivors Day in the City of Troy – Sunday, June 4, 2006   
b) Mental Health Month – May 2006 
c) Arbor Day 2007 – 2009  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy wishes to acknowledge that Troy’s urban forest reduces noise, air 
pollution, energy costs, reflected light, flooding, stabilizes soils, sequesters carbon, provides 
habitat for wildlife and improves the overall quality of life. 
 
WHEREAS, Trees in our City increase property values, enhance the economic vitality of 
business areas, and beautify our community. 
 
WHEREAS, Troy desires to be recognized as a Tree City USA by The National Arbor Day 
Foundation and wishes to continue its tree-planting ways. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 15, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
PROCLAIMS May 4, 2007, May 2, 2008, and May 1, 2009 as Arbor Day in the City of Troy, and 
urges all citizens to support our City’s urban forestry program and to plant trees to gladden the 
hearts and promote the well-being of present and future generations. 
  
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – 3-Year Requirements of 

Emergency Repair and General Maintenance for Overhead Doors            
 
Resolution #2006-05-218-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish three (3) year requirements of emergency repair and 
general maintenance of overhead doors at various City buildings is hereby AWARDED to the 
low bidder, Garrett Door Company of Pontiac, MI, for an estimated cost of $20,918.00 per year 
to expire May 31, 2009, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened April 20, 2006; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.   
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Aquatic Center 

Pool Maintenance and Repair Services            
 
Resolution #2006-05-218-E-4b 
 
WHEREAS, On June 21, 2004, a one (1) year contract with two (2) one-year options to renew 
to provide pool maintenance and repair services at the Troy Community Center and Family 
Aquatic Center was awarded to the sole bidder, B & B Pool and Spas of Livonia, MI (Resolution 
#2004-06-329-E-6); and  
 
WHEREAS, On June 20, 2005, the first one-year option to renew was exercised and approved 
with B & B Pool and Spas under the same contract prices, terms, and conditions expiring June 
30, 2006 (Resolution #2005-06-299-E4d); and  
 
WHEREAS, B & B Pool and Spas has agreed to exercise the second one-year option to renew 
the contract under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the 2004 contract. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the second one-year option to renew the 
contract is hereby EXERCISED with B & B Pool and Spas to provide Aquatic and Community 
Center pool maintenance and repair services under the same pricing structure, terms and 
conditions as the 2004 contract expiring June 30, 2007. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 15, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

E-5 Private Agreement for Franklin Bank – Project No. 06.902.3 
 
Resolution #2006-05-218-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Branch Facilitators, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of water main on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-2 Approval of Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 2006-07 Budget 
 
Resolution #2006-05-219 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its 2006/07 Annual Budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Annual Budget for Fiscal Year July 1, 2006 through June 
30, 2007. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-3 Approval of Local Development Finance Authority 2006-07 Budget 
 
Resolution #2006-05-220 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Local Development Finance Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its 2006/07 Annual Budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Local Development Finance Authority Annual Budget for Fiscal Year July 1, 2006 through June 
30, 2007. 
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming 
No: Howrylak, Lambert, Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 15, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Employee Retirement 
System Board of Trustees & Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust; Historic 
District Commission; Troy Daze Committee and Personnel Board  

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Roll Call Vote: City Council Representative for Employee Retirement System Board of 
Trustees & Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust 
 
Resolution #2006-05-221 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby NOMINATED to serve as City Council 
Representative on the Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees & Retiree Health Care 
Benefits Plan & Trust for the vacancy with the term expiring on April 15, 2009: 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Nominated by: Broomfield  Nominated by: Broomfield  
Howrylak  Schilling 

Lambert   Stine  
Broomfield   Schilling  
Fleming   Beltramini  
Howrylak    

 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Affirmation of Appointment: Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees & 
Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust 
 
Resolution #2006-05-222 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the below Board and Committee as indicated: 
 
Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees & 
Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust 
Appointed by Council (8) – 3 Year Term 
 
Martin Howrylak – Council Representative Term Expires 04/15/09 
 
Yes: Lambert, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak  
No: Stine, Schilling  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 15, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Separation of City Council Appointments to Boards and Committees for Voting 
Purposes 
 
Resolution #2006-05-223 
Moved by Schilling   
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the separation of City Council 
Appointments to Boards and Committees for voting purposes. 
 
Yes: All-7  
  
Vote on City Council Appointment: Historic District Commission 
 
Resolution #2006-05-224 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the below Board and Committee as indicated: 
 
Historic District Commission  One member, an architect if available 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  Two members, chosen from a list submitted by a 
  duly organized history group or groups 
 
Paul C. Lin Term Expires 05/16/09 (Architect) 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on City Council Appointment: Troy Daze Committee 
 
Resolution #2006-05-225 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the below Board and Committee as indicated: 
 
Troy Daze Committee  
Appointed by  (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Connie Huang Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 15, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

Vote on City Council Appointment: Personnel Board 
 
Resolution #2006-05-226 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the below Board and Committee as indicated: 
 
Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Glenn Clark Term Expires 04/30/09 
 
Yes:  Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert  
No:  Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Council Member Broomfield was excused at 9:20 P.M. 
 
F-4 Approval of Downtown Development Authority 2006-07 Budget 
 
Resolution #2006-05-227 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Downtown Development Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its 2006/07 Annual Budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Downtown Development Authority Annual Budget for Fiscal Year July 1, 2006 through June 30, 
2007. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak 
Absent: Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-5 Resolution In Support of the Current Local Cable Franchise Agreement System 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Fleming  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 15, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

WHEREAS, Cities and villages have a long and very successful history of supporting the 
introduction of new cable/video services, a successful deployment made possible in large part 
by the current system of local cable franchising;  
 
WHEREAS, AT&T and Verizon have been actively advocating across the country that local 
cable franchise agreements be eliminated;   
 
WHEREAS, AT&T is blaming Michigan communities as the reason they can not enter into the 
cable/video business, while local communities, and local residents, want more cable 
competition and would quickly allow AT&T into their community; AT&T has refused to negotiate 
a franchise with any city, village, or township;   
 
WHEREAS, Local communities’ participation in the cable franchising process ensures build-out 
requirements so that all residents irrespective of age, race, education, or income level, receive 
the same service;  
 
WHEREAS, Our community believes that all residents should have access to the same 
cable/video service.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy is OPEN for cable/video 
business, and can guarantee that within days of a formal request we can have a franchise 
agreement ready for any new cable/video providers consideration;  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution BE FORWARDED to our state 
legislators in Lansing, our Congressional representatives in Washington, D.C., Governor 
Granholm and the Michigan Municipal League.   
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2006-05-228 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Resolution In Support of the Current 
Local Cable Franchise Agreement System by INSERTING, “BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, 
That the Troy City Council hereby AFFIRMS its support for the current local cable franchise 
agreement system;” BEFORE “BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED.” 
 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2006-05-229 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Fleming  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 15, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

WHEREAS, Cities and villages have a long and very successful history of supporting the 
introduction of new cable/video services, a successful deployment made possible in large part 
by the current system of local cable franchising;  
 
WHEREAS, AT&T and Verizon have been actively advocating across the country that local 
cable franchise agreements be eliminated;   
 
WHEREAS, AT&T is blaming Michigan communities as the reason they can not enter into the 
cable/video business, while local communities, and local residents, want more cable 
competition and would quickly allow AT&T into their community; AT&T has refused to negotiate 
a franchise with any city, village, or township;   
 
WHEREAS, Local communities’ participation in the cable franchising process ensures build-out 
requirements so that all residents irrespective of age, race, education, or income level, receive 
the same service;  
 
WHEREAS, Our community believes that all residents should have access to the same 
cable/video service.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy is OPEN for cable/video 
business, and can guarantee that within days of a formal request we can have a franchise 
agreement ready for any new cable/video providers consideration;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AFFIRMS its support for the 
current local cable franchise agreement system;  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution BE FORWARDED to our state 
legislators in Lansing, our Congressional representatives in Washington, D.C., Governor 
Granholm and the Michigan Municipal League. 
 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-6 Amendment to Chapter 20 of the City Code (Water and Sewer Rates) 
 
Resolution #2006-05-230 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an amendment to Chapter 20, Water 
and Sewer Rates, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Lambert  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 15, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

MOTION CARRIED 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal Renewal – 6881 Westaway – June 5, 2006  
b) Rezoning Application (Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South Side of Vanderpool, 

West of Rochester Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to B-2 – June 5, 2006 
Noted and Filed 

    
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Revisions to Troy City Code Chapter 18 (City Water Utility) 

Noted and Filed 
   

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – December 15, 2005 
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – April 5, 2006 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – April 5, 2006 
d) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – April 6, 2006 
e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – May 4, 2006 

Noted and Filed 
  

J-2 Department Reports: 
a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of April, 2006 

Noted and Filed 
  
J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
b) Letter of Appreciation from the Souvatzidis Family Regarding the Professionalism and 

Efforts of Lieutenant Scherlinck  
c) Letter to Chief Craft from St. Joseph Catholic Chaldean Church Thanking the Troy Police 

Department for Assistance with Traffic Control During Easter Services  
d) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Diana Folleth, Capitol Barricading, Inc., 

Regarding the Assistance Provided by the Troy Police Department 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 15, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

e) Letter to Chief Craft from Marty Torgler, Combine International, Inc., Commending the 
Performance and Professionalism of Lieutenant Chuck Pappas  

f) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Chris Gartner Regarding the Efforts and 
Professionalism of Officer Rushton 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
a) Resolution from Rose Township – Retaining Local Control of Cable Franchising 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Communication from the Troy Police Department Regarding Troy Police Citizens 

Forum 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-7  Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) – 

Quarterly Report for April, 2006 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-8  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding Cable Franchise 

Lawsuit Against the City of Troy 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-9  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding Carrie Zanoni v. City of 

Troy, Officer Jones, and Sergeant Stout 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-10  Communication from the Director of Building and Zoning Mark Stimac Regarding 

Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3463 Crooks Road 
Noted and Filed 

 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: Review of Applications for Employment for the Position of City 
Manager Permitted by Resolution #2006-04-188 

 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:46 P.M. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED on Tuesday, May 16, 2006 at 1:21 A.M. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 15, 2006 
 

- 16 - 

The meeting ADJOURNED on Tuesday, May 16, 2006 at 1:22 A.M. 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 

 Barbara A. Holmes, Deputy City Clerk 
 



 PROCLAMATION TO HONOR  
JOSEPH HADDAD  

2005 POLICE OFFICER OF THE YEAR 
 
WHEREAS, Officer Joseph Haddad has been a member of the Troy Police Department since 
1996, and currently serves as a field training officer, evidence technician, special response team 
member, crisis negotiator, honor guard member, and firearms instructor; and 
 
WHEREAS, His selection was based on his commitment to both the department and the 
community, as well as his superior performance, hard work and dedication to duty; and  
 
WHEREAS, Officer Haddad has used his fluency in Arabic to communicate with residents in need 
of police service, and acts as the Department’s liaison in developing action plans in English and 
Arabic for a local church to manage holiday traffic and parking; and 
 
WHEREAS, With his professional demeanor, Officer Haddad has been called upon to recruit new 
Police Officers at events held at universities throughout Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS, Achievements in Officer Haddad’s career include a Meritorious Service Medal and 
numerous commendations and letters of positive performance from citizens and businesses in 
conjunction with his service as a Police Officer; and 
 
WHEREAS, Since 1986, Officer Haddad has served in the U.S. Army, where he is currently a 
Command Sergeant Major in the U.S. Army Reserves; and  
 
WHEREAS, Officer Haddad goes above and beyond the call of duty and is a tremendous asset to 
the Troy Police Department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy, does hereby join 
with the citizens of Troy, to express sincere congratulations to Officer Joseph Haddad on the 
occasion of being chosen 2005 Police Officer of the Year by the Troy Police Department. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council commends Officer Haddad for his 
achievement, leadership and dedicated service to the citizens of Troy. 
 
Presented this 5th day of June 2006. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03a



PROCLAMATION TO HONOR 
SHERRY LEVEQUE 

2005 NON-SWORN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
EMPLOYEE OF THE YEAR 

 
WHEREAS, Sherry LeVeque has served the Troy Police Department since March 1996 
when she was hired as a Police Service Aide. She was promoted to her current position of 
Civilian Communications Supervisor in January 1999; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sherry is being honored as the 2005 Non-Sworn Police Department 
Employee of the Year for her outstanding performance, dedication to her position, 
professionalism, and commitment to providing the best service to the residents of Troy; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Sherry played a key role in developing the Communications Training 
Program for new hires which has become a model policy for other dispatch agencies 
seeking training programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, As an Associated Public-Safety Communications Officer Training Officer, 
Sherry instructs training courses for emergency services dispatchers around the State of 
Michigan each year; and  
 
WHEREAS, Sherry has received 12 Letters of Commendation from the Police 
Department, a Department Commendation, and letters of positive performance from 
citizens and businesses; and  
 
WHEREAS, Through Sherry’s leadership, hard work and commitment to providing quality 
service, the Troy Police Department has gained the respect of the community and other 
law enforcement agencies. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy, does 
hereby join with the citizens of Troy, to express sincere congratulations to Sherry 
LeVeque on the occasion of being chosen 2005 Non-Sworn Employee of the Year by 
the Troy Police Department. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council commends Sherry for her 
achievement, leadership and dedicated service to the citizens of Troy. 
 
Presented this 5th day of June 2006. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03b



PROCLAMATION TO HONOR  
DARYL KLINKO 

2006 FIRE FIGHTER OF THE YEAR 
 
WHEREAS, Daryl Klinko has been a volunteer Fire Fighter since joining Troy’s Fire Station 6 in 1986; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, His selection as Fire Fighter of the Year is due to his over 20 years of dedication to the 
Troy Fire Department, having served with honor and dignity in all of his roles at the station, including 
leadership roles; and 
 
WHEREAS, Daryl has served as a Lieutenant, Station 6 Association President, incentive committee 
representative and safety committee member; and 
 
WHEREAS, Daryl is a role model for Troy’s new fire recruits and always willing to share his knowledge 
and experience with others; and 
 
WHEREAS, In addition to fire service, Daryl is employed by General Motors Corp. as the Assistant 
Director of Health Care Finance and is always willing to provide assistance above and beyond his fire 
department and career responsibilities, including neighborhood clean-ups, and soup kitchen and rescue 
mission assistance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Through Fire Fighter Klinko’s leadership, commitment, hard work and countless hours of 
service, the Troy Fire Department has become even more efficient in its delivery of quality fire 
protection to the community. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy, does hereby join with 
the citizens of Troy, to express sincere congratulations to Fire Fighter Daryl Klinko on the occasion of 
being chosen 2006 Fire Fighter of the Year by the Troy Fire Department. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council commends Daryl for his achievement, leadership 
and dedicated service to the citizens of Troy. 
 
Presented this 5th day of June 2006. 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03c



May 22, 2006 
 
TO:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal 

Option – Uniform Rental Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On Monday, July 19, 2004, Troy City Council approved a two-year contract to provide 
uniform rental services with an option to renew for two additional years to Arrow 
Uniform of Taylor, MI, the vendor with the highest score and lowest prices, as a result 
of a best value process (Council Resolution #2004-07-375-E6).  The Purchasing 
Department recommends exercising the option to renew for two additional years under 
the same pricing, terms and conditions for an estimated annual cost of $22,000.00, 
expiring August 31, 2008. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The contract outfits an estimated 84 employees with uniforms for uninterrupted 
service, which requires weekly pickup at the following prices— 
 
DESCRIPTION COST/MAN/WEEK 
  Shirts/Pants (Standard) 65/35 poly/cotton blend $4.15 
  Shirts/Pants (Standard) 100% cotton $4.98 
  Coveralls/Shopcoats $1.25 
  Shirts/Pants 50/50 Knit short sleeve shirt/pants 
                       65/35 Poly/Cotton Blend long sleeve shirt/pant 

 
$5.25 

  Shirts/Pants (Dress- White) 65/35 poly/cotton blend  $4.15 
  Two (2) shopcoats – laundered four (4) times/year No Charge 
REPLACEMENT CHARGES:  
  Standard Uniform Pant $23.50 
  Standard Uniform Short/Long Sleeve Shirt $18.50 
  Coverall $33.60 
  Shopcoat $32.00 
  
MARKET SURVEY 
A market survey is not deemed necessary, as the contract was awarded on a best 
value process to the bidder who demonstrated the ability to provide the highest level 
of service and quality uniform meeting the City’s specifications. 
 
BUDGET 
 Funds are available from the operating budgets in the uniform accounts for the Golf 
Course, Parks, Engineering, Motor Pool, Streets, and Water departments. 
 
Prepared by:  Susan Leirstein, CPPB, Purchasing Systems Administrator  

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a





campbellld
Text Box
E-04b





May 22, 2006 
 
 
To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
Subject: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidder –  

Breathing Apparatus Equipment for the Fire Department 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
On May 10, 2006, bid proposals were opened to furnish four (4) complete Self 
Contained Breathing Apparatus, and ten (10) Upgrade Kits for existing units. City 
management recommends the purchase be awarded to the sole bidder, Douglass 
Safety Systems of Rhodes, MI, an authorized distributor of this equipment for an 
estimated total cost of $22,590.00 at unit prices contained on the attached bid 
tabulation. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 

• Special Response personnel will use the new units during hazardous materials 
incidents. 

 
• The upgrade kits will be used to upgrade the existing units used by the Special 

Response Unit. 
  

 
BUDGET 
Funds are budgeted in the Fire Department Equipment Account  #338.7740.115. 
 
 
64 Vendors Notified via MITN System 
  1 No Bid: (1) Company does not handle the product specified. 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Richard Sinclair, Assistant Fire Chief 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04c



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-07
Opening Date -- 5-10-06 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 1
Date Prepared -- 5/19/06 BREATHING APPARATUS 

VENDOR NAME: ** Douglass Safety 
Systems LLC

PROPOSAL: TO PURCHASE BREATHING APPARATUS EQUIPMENT FOR THE CITY OF TROY FIRE 
          DEPARTMENT

EST QTY   DESCRIPTION
Units

4 Survivair Panther Units in accordance with specs
No Exceptions Price/per Each 3,725.00$             

Quoting on Style: Survivair Panther
Manufactured by: Survivair 

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 14,900.00$          
Additional Equipment Upgrades:

8 Heads Up Display Upgrades for Survivair SIGMA SCBA
Price/Per Each 855.00$                

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 6,840.00$            

2 Heads Up Display Upgrades for Panther SCBA
Price/Per Each 425.00$                

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 850.00$               

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 22,590.00$           

AUTHORIZED DEALER Yes XX
No

EXTENSION OF AWARD TO OTHER FIRE DEPARTMENTS:
Yes XX
No

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hours of Operation: 8am-5pm
Phone Number: 989.879.7400

TERMS: Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: Attached to Bid

DELIVERY DATE(S) 4 - 6 Weeks

EXCEPTIONS: Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT Y or N Yes

NO BIDS:
 Fire Equipment Co Inc ** DENOTES SOLE BIDDER

ATTEST: _____________________________
Charlene McComb Jeanette Bennett
Rick Sinclair Purchasing Director
Linda Bockstanz

G:ITB-COT 06-07 Breathing Apparatus Equipment



May 25, 2006 
 
 
 
 

TO:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mary Redden, Admin. Assistant to City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution #10: Travel 

Authorization and Approval to Expend Funds on City Council 
Member Travel Expenses - Michigan Municipal League Board of 
Trustees Meetings 

 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Council Member Robin Beltramini has been appointed to the Michigan Municipal 
League Board of Trustees.  This appointment will require attendance of three out-of-
town meetings: a budget discussion, a weekend strategic planning session and a one- 
or two-day mid-year meeting.  Additional board meetings will be held in conjunction with 
the annual convention and legislative conference. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that City Council issue blanket approval of Council Member 
Beltramini’s attendance of all meetings associated with her appointment to the Michigan 
Municipal League Board of Trustees. 
 
Funds are available in Council’s education and training account #102.7960. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MR/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2006\06.05.06  – Stand Res #10 – MML Board of Trustees Meetings 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04d





May 16, 2006  
 
 
 
To:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Charles Craft, Chief of Police 

 
Subject:   Agenda Item: Standard Purchasing Resolution 7:  Proprietary Maintenance 

Service Contract – Motorola Communications 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Troy Police Department recommends the City renew a six-month contract with 
Motorola to provide hardware and software maintenance for the Police and Fire 
Department’s 911 system.  The period covered by the contract is July 1, 2006 through 
December 31, 2006, after which Motorola will cease support of the system.  The current 
contract expires on June 30, 2006.   The contract is estimated to cost $13,565.00 for the 
six-month period. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Motorola is the provider of this proprietary hardware and software.  Motorola has 
provided service for the 911 System since installation in 1999.  Motorola provides a 
single point of contact on a 24-hour basis.  
 
Motorola’s decision to discontinue support is because the system has become obsolete 
and no longer sold in their product line. The police department is researching other 
support options until the system can be replaced.  The E911 system is still fully 
operational with no disruption of service.  
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds are budgeted in the Police Department account number 325.7802.095. 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Cathy Brandimore, Communications Manager 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04e







Page 1 of 2 

May 26, 2006 
 
To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
   
Subject: Agenda Item: Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: - Best Value Award 

Infestation Control Services – Landscaping 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On May 12, 2006, request for proposals were opened for three (3) year requirements of 
Infestation Control Services with an option to renew for three (3) additional one-year 
periods.  City management recommends awarding the three-year contract to Owen 
Tree Service, Inc., of Attica, MI, the best value proposal as a result of a RFP process at 
unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation and chemical listing dated 5/24/06. 
 

The award is contingent upon contractor’s submission of properly executed proposal 
and contract documents, including the insurance and all other specified requirements.  
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
In accordance with the City’s Integrated Pest Management (IPM) program, whenever an 
insect exceeds the threshold population (i.e. that population density that is considered 
unacceptable by the City) preventative measures need be taken to reduce the 
population to or below threshold levels.    
 

Due to the past warm winters, the following insects have established populations that 
exceed the threshold levels on the Honeylocust (Gleditsia triacanthos inermis).  These 
insects include: 
 

 Mimosa Webworm – Homadaula anisocentra 
 Calico Scale – Eulecanium cerasorum 
 Lecanium Scale – Lecanium spp. 

 

Defoliation of the honeylocust, large number of caterpillars and the formation of 
honeydew on hard surfaces generated numerous calls from residents in City sections # 
17, 18, 19, and 20 last year.  Most recently calls have been received from residents in 
City sections # 12 and 14.  
 

SELECTION PROCESS 
The Request for Proposal to control the above listed insects and for emerald ash borer 
and gypsy moth were sent out.  Interested parties submitted costs for control of these 
insects by tree injection and ground spraying. 
 
 
 

 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04f



Page 2 of 2 

 
May 26, 2006 
 
To: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Infestation Control Services – Landscaping 
 
 
SELECTION PROCESS - continued 
Proposals were received from four (4) companies.  The four (4) proposals were rated on 
a pass / fail criteria. Of the four (4) submittals, two (2) met the pass / fail criteria. The two 
(2) successful companies were then compared based on cost and references.  Owen 
Tree Services had the lowest costs in the MATERIALS & LABOR section.  Mike’s Tree 
Surgeons, Inc. had the lowest costs in the SERVICE FEE PROPOSAL section.  As the 
service fees were intended for informational proposes only, the recommendation will go 
to Owen Tree Services.  Their references included other municipal experience as well 
as being a previous contractor with the City of Troy.   
 

BUDGET 
Funds are available in Park and Recreation Capital Account for Subdivision Improvements 
# 401780.7974.130. 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Ron Hynd, Landscape Analyst 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
INFESTATION CONTROL SERVICES 

 
STATISTICS: 
 

 Forty-two (42) Proposal notices were sent to prospective 
bidders  

 
 Sixty-seven (67) Vendors notified on the MITN System  

 
 Four (4) firms responded to the proposal 

 
 Two (2) firms met the pass / fail criteria 

 
 Owen’s Tree Service is the recommended contractor as 
a result of a best value process 

 
 
Selection Process: 
 

1. Firms were evaluated on Pass / Fail Criteria 
 
2. Lowest bidder who passes Phase 1 will be recommended 

for award 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

G://Bid Award 05-06/Best Value SR8 – InfestationControlExecSum05.06.doc 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 06-17
Opening Date -- 5-12-06 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL Page 1 of 1
Date Prepared -- 5/22/06 INFESTATION CONTROL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME: * Owen's Tree Mike's Tree
Services Service

PROPOSAL: PROVIDE INFESTATION CONTROL SERVICES FOR THE PARKS & RECREATION DEPARTMENT
    FOR THE 2006 THROUGH 2009 TREE/ACREAGE 

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N Yes Yes

EST QTY SERVICE (Material & Labor) Unit Price Unit Price
1,000 Trees Municipal Tree Injection 8.00$                 43.75$                
1,000 Trees Municipal Tree Spraying 20.00$               21.25$                
50 Acres Municipal Tree Spraying 260.00$             295.00$              

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: * 41,000.00$               79,750.00$               
PROPOSAL:

SERVICE HOURLY RATE HOURLY RATE
Certified Arborist 65.00$                50.00$                
Certified Pesticide Applicator 130.00$              50.00$                
Mileage Charge (If any) Blank N/A
Foreman 65.00$                45.00$                
Office Administrator Blank 35.00$                
Ground Crew 65.00$                30.00$                

Additional Required Services: Blank Blank

Optional / Services etc: Blank Blank

Flatbed Truck
Equipment Rates: Blank 45.00$                

OVERTIME RATES: N/A 1.5
SUNDAY RATES: N/A 2
HOLIDAY RATES: N/A 3

DISCOUNT Blank 0%
CHEMICAL PRICE LIST Y or N Has been provided +> Blank Attachment H
DATED Blank 5/11/2006

SITE VISIT: Y or N Yes Yes
DATED 5/10/2006 3/23/2006

INSURANCECan meet XX XX
Cannot meet
1. Mandatory Req. Circled A or B (B) Blank A
2. Non-Mandatory Requirement Blank Blank

TERMS: Blank Net 30

WARRANTY: Blank Blank

DELIVERY DATES: Blank 5/12/2006

EXCEPTIONS: Blank See Attachment
"G"

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes No

* DENOTES BEST VALUE PROPOSAL
DMS:
 Charles F Irish Co. $42,100.00  Reason: Incomplete bid - no detailed equipment list, no experience with primary target insect

mimosa webworm, limted pool of qualified employees
 Clark's Pest Control $116,730.00 Reason: Incomplete bid - no detailed equipment list, limited pool of qualified employees

ATTEST: NO BIDS:
Mark Columbo  JH Hart Urban Forestry Jeanette Bennett
Cheryl Stewart  Rose Pest Solution Purchasing Director
Linda Bockstanz

G:\RFP-COT 06-17 Infestation Control Services



   Memorandum 
 
To: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
From: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Date: May 31, 2006 
Subject: Agenda Item: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Contract 

#071B4200234 State of Michigan and Election Systems and Software, 
Inc. – Central Count Optical Scan Voting System (Model M650) – Sole 
Source Vendor 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION
The City Clerk’s Office requests approval and authorization to purchase one (1) 
Central Count Optical Scan voting system from sole source vendor, Election 
Systems and Software, Inc. (ES&S) - 11208 John Galt Blvd. Omaha, Nebraska 
68137 at a budgeted cost of $65,000.00 to assist in the tabulation of absent voter 
ballots for all federal, state and local elections conducted in the City of Troy. This 
purchase would be effective in the 2006-07 Fiscal Year, with the City of Troy to 
take delivery on or after July 1, 2006. 
 
The Absentee Ballot System (ABS) consists of a tabulator with modem, ballot 
box and memory device, and is compatible with the Unity Software previously 
acquired by the City Clerk’s office from ES&S and uses the same ballots printed 
for the M-100 Voting Devices. The funding for the Unity Software and associated 
election equipment was provided by participation in the State of Michigan and 
Oakland County election equipment grant application (Resolution #2004-12-628-
E-15) in compliance with the Help America Vote Act (HAVA). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The M-650 Central Count Optical Scan voting system is a State of Michigan 
approved voting system. The M-650 is the only compatible high speed ballot 
counter with the City of Troy existing equipment and would be secured as a sole 
source purchase. 
 
The City Clerk’s office noticed a significant delay in results directly related to the 
usage of the M-100 voting devices in the Absent Counting Board. The M-100 
processes ballots at approximately 4 per minute compared to the 300 ballots per 
minute processed by the M-650. The City Clerk’s office anticipates approximately 
11,000 Absent Voter ballots being cast this November with the possibility of a 

G:\   City Council\Memos\ELECTION\ELECTION Std Purchasing Agreement 4-Sole Source-Central Count 
Optical Scan Voting System.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04g



significant absent voter increase during large Presidential Elections. The M-100 
would not be adequate for processing ballot during large State-wide elections. 
 
The availability of the M-650 is extremely limited and therefore the City Clerk’s 
office believes it imperative to expeditiously move this item forward to get in the 
delivery queue. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for this voting system are available, Budget Line #192-7978. 
 

G:\   City Council\Memos\ELECTION\ELECTION Std Purchasing Agreement 4-Sole Source-Central Count 
Optical Scan Voting System.doc 



TERMS AND CONDITIONS ..................................... CONTRACT #071B4200234  
 

G:\common\contract\2004\4200 165

APPENDIX F 
COST PROPOSAL FORM 

Page 1 of 3 
 

C.  Performance Guarantee Price Breakdown 
– Mandatory 
Items 

Model/ 
Version 

A.  Unit 
Price (ea.) 

B.  Unit 
Price (ea.) 
Including 
G and A 

Performanc
e Bond Cost 

per Unit 

Insurance 
Cost per 

Unit 

Other 
Solution 
Cost per 

Unit 
Precinct Count 
Optical Scan 
voting system 
tabulator with 
modem, ballot box 
and two(2) 
PCMCIA cards 

 
 

 
Model 
M100 

 
$5,528.00 

(see Appendix 
G, Page 1 of 

2) 

 
$5,528.00 

(see Appendix 
G, Page 1 of 

2) 

 
$233 

 
None 

 
None 

County based 
Election 
Management 
System (EMS) 

UNITY $0 $0 $0 -- -- 

Jurisdiction based 
Election 
Management 
System (EMS) 

UNITY $0 $0 $0 -- -- 

 
Price Breakdown – Optional Items Model/Version Unit Price (ea.) 
Central Count Optical Scan voting 
system 
Absentee Ballot System (ABS) 
tabulator with modem, ballot box and 
memory device 

Model M650 $30,000 - up to 20,000 Registered 
Voters 
 
$40,000 – over 20,000 Registered 
Voters  
 
$65,000 – over 100,000 Registered 
Voters 

Voting Booth Model VI $160 

Approved Ballot Storage Container Secrecy Sleeve 
$2.50 (Other containers are available 
as set forth in our January 27, 2004 
Price Clarifications Response) 

Memory Device PCMCIA Card $98 

Memory Device Transport Container  
 

$10 to $12 each, subject to approval 
by the Department of Elections 

Extra Optical Scan Tabulators Model M100 
 

$4,492 (includes base price of $3,925, 3 
year warranty and shipping.  Purchase of 
additional units will not result in an 
increase in post warranty EMS 
maintenance fees) 

Jurisdiction based Election 
Management System (EMS)   

Note: pricing for the Optional items (other than the Model M100) does not include shipping. 
 
Optional Post Warranty 
Maintenance Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

Annual maintenance price per 
Precinct Count Optical Scan unit $133 $137 $142 $147 $153 

Annual maintenance price per 
EMS  $88 $88 $91 $94 $97 

Annual maintenance price per 
High Speed ABS $2,000 $2,072 $2,144 $2,216 $2,300 



 

 

April 6, 2006 

To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director  
 
Subject: Agenda Item:  Medi-Go Service Agreement 
 

 
Recommendation 
Attached please find the annual agreement with Troy Medi-Go for 2006-2007.   
This agreement states that the City will fund Medi-Go $170,000 or the entire 
municipal community credits transferred from SMART(estimated at $174,581 for 
2006-07). 
 
Background 
Municipal credits are state-authorized funds that are divided among every city, 
township and village in Oakland, Wayne and Macomb Counties on a per capita 
basis.  Community credits are a direct result of the SMART millage that provides 
opt-in communities with additional funds.  Until 2004, the City of Troy returned 
these funds to SMART for the operation of Troy's Dial-A-Ride and funded Medi-
Go from the General Fund.  The amount of funding for Medi-Go had grown to 
$170,000 in 2003. 
 
In 2004, when we combined Dial-A-Ride operations with Birmingham, additional 
SMART funds became available for this service.  This enabled us to use our 
municipal and community credits for Medi-Go.  Thus we no longer use money 
from the General Fund for Medi-Go.   
 
The amount of the credits may vary from year to year due to an automatic 
increase for inflation, match requirements, etc.  We have agreed to give Medi-Go 
$170,000 or our total municipal and community credits, whichever is greater.  In 
FY 2004 and 2005, our credits totaled $170,911.  This year, the total will be 
$174,581. 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality: 
 
______________________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05









campbellld
Text Box
E-06









G:\   City Council\Memos\ELECTION\ELECTION Equipment Grant Application AutoMARK Memo.doc 

   Memorandum 
 
To: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
From: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Date: May 22, 2006 
Subject: State of Michigan Election Equipment Grant Application Authorization 
 
 
The City of Troy is slated to receive new election equipment to be utilized by 
individuals with disabilities pursuant to the Help America Vote ACT (HAVA). As 
part of the implementation process, the City is required to submit a grant 
application to the State of Michigan, prior to May 18, 2006. 
 
The City Clerk’s Office received the grant application information from the State 
on Monday, May 15, 2006 with notification to return the completed application by 
Thursday, May 18, 2006. The communication was received past the deadline of 
the May 15, 2006 City Council Agenda and therefore the Clerk’s Office targeted 
the City Council Agenda of June 5, 2006 for Council approval and notified the 
State of Michigan of our intent. In follow-up communications with the State of 
Michigan it was determined that it is in the best interest of the City of Troy as well 
as other Oakland County communities to submit the application as requested by 
the State and that action on this item at the June 5, 2006 City Council meeting
will not jeopardize the funding of this grant.  
 
The grant provides equipment at no cost to the City of Troy. The grant application 
was forwarded to the City Attorney for review and upon a positive review of the 
City Attorney; the City Clerk completed the authorization for timely submittal.  
 
City Management requests that Council ratify the agreement at their June 5, 
2006 Regular City Council meeting. The following resolution has been provided 
to accomplish the ratification of the grant application.  
 
The Grant Application provides for the purchase of the AutoMARK ballot marking 
devices and related Election Management System (EMS) programming software. 
The AutoMARK is the only election device approved by the State of Michigan to 
be used to satisfy the Federal mandate contained in the HAVA legislation. The 
device will be used statewide with all three state approved election systems. 
Federal Law stipulates that the AutoMark voting device be utilized beginning with 
the August 8, 2006 Primary Election.  

campbellld
Text Box
E-07





















campbellld
Text Box
E-08



























campbellld
Text Box
E-09











campbellld
Text Box
E-10









 
 
DATE:   May 26, 2006 

  
 

 
TO:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Request for Temporary Sales Trailer,  

Cedar Pines Estates Site Condominium 
 
 
 
 
I have received a request from Christopher Pratt of Wake-Pratt Construction Company 
for the placement of a temporary office trailer on one of the parcels of the Cedar Pines 
Estates Site Condominium located on the east side of Crooks, between Square Lake 
and South Blvd.  The trailer is intended to be used for a temporary sales office.  Their 
request anticipates the need for the trailer for six months. 
Section 6.41 (3) of Chapter 47 of the Troy City Code allows the City Council to approve 
the placement of mobile offices, for use as a sales office, in residential developments for 
an initial period not to exceed 12 months.  Based upon this provision, the petitioner is 
requesting this item be placed on Council’s agenda for consideration.  
I have attached a copy of his letter and information showing the proposed location of the 
trailer for your information. 
 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
E-11



 



 



 
 
 
 
May 26, 2006 
 
 
To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item:  Approval of Funding Agreement:  Boys and Girls Club 
 
 
Recommendation 
Attached please find the annual agreement with the Boys and Girls Club for 2006-
2007.  The agreement states the City will pay the Boys and Girls Club $76,323.00 
for services performed under the agreement.   
 
This funding is the same amount allocated in 2005-2006.   
 
All terms remain the same as in previous years.   
 
 
 
 
Reviewed and Approved by the City Attorney’s Office 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

campbellld
Text Box
E-12















campbellld
Text Box
E-13





















TO: Members of the Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE: May 30, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: Personnel Board Appointment 
 

 

Pursuant to the request of Councilwoman Broomfield, I did cursory research on the origins of 
Chapter 11 of the City of Troy ordinances, now titled Personnel Board (previously titled Civil 
Service Commission).   

Although State statute provides for a Civil Service System for state and county employees, 
there is no State statute that expressly provides for a Municipal Civil Service System for 
municipal employees, other than full-time fire fighters and police officers (covered under 
Public Act 78 of 1035, MCL 38.501 et. seq.)  Instead, the Home Rule Cities Act (MCL 117.1 
et. seq.) authorizes each municipality to provide for a civil service system in the Charter.  Troy 
authorized the municipal employees civil service commission in Section 15.14 of the City of 
Troy Charter, which provides that “The Council may, by ordinance, provide for a civil service 
system.”  Chapter 11 is the resulting civil service system for classified and exempt employees 
of the City of Troy.  Chapter 11 was adopted on March 12, 1964.   

In a very recent opinion (2006 OAG No. 7187), Michigan Attorney General Cox sets forth the 
origins of the civil service system.  He states:   

The State’s civil service system and the Commission were created in 
response to what was referred to as the “longstanding ‘spoils system’ or 
‘patronage system’” that prevailed in state personnel practices of early 
twentieth century  (citation omitted).  This system was described as the 
practice of filling government jobs with “loyal party workers who (could) be 
counted on not to do the state job better than it (could) be done by others, but 
rather to do the party work or the candidate work when elections roll around.”  
(citation omitted)  An early report on the subject detailed the “political 
appointments, promotions, demotions, rewards and punishments” that were 
part of the traditional spoils system, and viewed “(a)ssessment schemes and 
participation in political activity during working hours as serious and expensive 
causes of poor job performance by unqualified civil servants.”   

The Attorney General Opinion relies heavily upon the Michigan Council No. 11, AFSCME v. 
Civil Service Comm, 408 Mich, 385 (1980) for his opinion, and quotes:  “It is the purpose of 
the commission to keep politics out of the classified state service, not to keep classified 
employees out of politics.”  (p. 406) 

This background likely explains why Chapter 11 of the Troy Ordinance provides:   

No member of the (Personnel) Board shall be employed by or be an official of 
the City; nor shall be a member of any local, state or national committee of a 
political party or an official or member of a committee in any partisan political 

campbellld
Text Box
F-01c



club or organization, nor shall hold or be a candidate for any governmental 
elective office. (Chapter 11, Section 1.2)  

This provision is consistent with the police and fire fighter’s civil service commission 
statute (MCL 38.503), as well as the civil service provisions for other municipalities.  

Based on the reasons that are set forth in the Attorney General’s opinion, as well as 
the spirit of non-partisan governance that is set forth in the Troy Charter (Section 
3.3), it is my recommendation that Section 1.2 of Chapter 11 should remain 
unchanged.    

If you have additional questions, please let me know.   



campbellld
Text Box
F-01c



campbellld
Text Box
F-02



May 18, 2006 
 
TO:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
   
RE:  Agenda Item – Amendment #2– Concrete Pavement Repair 

Program  
  
RECOMMENDATION 
On January 24, 2005, the Troy City Council approved the contract for concrete 
pavement repair to the low bidders: A) Major Cement Company for major roads,  
B) Hard Rock Concrete for local roads; and C) Six S, Inc. for Stephenson Hwy. 
(Resolution #2005-01-041-E20)  Subsequently, the contract was amended on  
July 11, 2005 to allow for additional concrete replacement for work to be completed 
by June 30, 2006. (Resolution #2005-07-325-E11)  
  
City management recommends that City Council approve amendment #2 to the 
concrete pavement repair contract for two of the low bidders, Major Cement 
Company – Proposal A, Hard Rock Concrete, Inc. – Proposal B, not to exceed 
$1,250,000.00, and $750,000.00, respectively for work to be completed by June 30, 
2006, under the same unit prices, terms, and conditions as the original contract. 
 

Major Cement Company 
          2006 Contract Amount  $750,000.00 
          Additional 25% $187,500.00 
          Proposed Amendment # 2 $312,500.00 
          Total 2005/2006 Budget Amount $1,250,000.00 

 
 
  Hard Rock Concrete, Inc 

          2006 Contract Amount  $500,000.00 
          Additional 25% $125,000.00 
          Proposed Amendment # 2 $125,000.00 
          Total 2005/2006 Budget Amount $750,000.00 

 
 
SUMMARY 
Major roads covered under Proposal A include, Industrial Roads, and scattered 
locations.  Local roads under Proposal B include streets in section #11 and 
Randall.   
 
 
 

1 of 2 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
Re:  Amendment #2 – Concrete Pavement Repair 
 
 
 
MARKET SURVEY 
A favorable market survey was conducted by the Purchasing Department. Economic 
conditions indicate prices will continue to rise on concrete, labor, and fuel.  Shortages in 
concrete have been a major problem caused in part by the building boom in China.    
 
BACKGROUND 

• The two contractors have been able to work at a faster than expected 
pace while producing a quality product for the City. 

• The price for fuel and cement is continuing to increase; it is to our benefit 
to take advantage of 2004/05 pricing for the 2005/2006-construction 
season by amending the construction quantities. 

• Moving this work forward would improve public safety and also reduce the 
City’s liability. 

 
 
BUDGET 
Funding for this project comes from 2005/2006 budgeted funds available in the 
Capital Accounts for Public Works Construction for Major Roads A/C# 
401479.7989.300, Local Roads A/C# 401499.7989.041015 and 
401499.7989.051015. 

   
 
 
 

Prepared by:  Marina Basta Farouk, Project Construction Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 



 
 

   May 15, 2006 
 

TO:      Jeanette Bennett 
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:    Linda N. Bockstanz 
      Associate Buyer 
 
 
RE:      MARKET SURVEY – CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR  
 
 
HARTWELL CEMENT CO. – Lisa                                                                     (248) 548-5858 
Lisa has indicated that concrete prices have increased twice this year because of fuel 
shortages and costs.  She received a 2nd letter from her supplier, who has indicated that 
they were adding a fuel surcharge to all deliveries of concrete due to fuel prices. The first 
increase was for concrete - $5.00 per cubic yard and the second increase is the $5.00 
surcharge.  If the contract were larger, the company could give better prices.   
 
 
FLORENCE CEMENT CO. - Dwayne                                 (810) 499-2537 or  (586) 997-2666 
According to Dwayne, prices went up 5% for concrete and 20% for fuel and labor costs. If the 
contract was larger, their company would keep prices were they are now. Could not afford 
to lower them.  
 
 
SIX-S – Martin Sakalian                                                                       (248) 673-0585 Ext 103 
Per Martin, prices of concrete have increased about 5% to 20% in the last year due to 
shortages and fuel costs.   If the contract were a little larger would not be enough to lower 
their company’s prices.  They could keep the prices were they are now. Contract would have 
to be at least five million dollars in order to lower his prices. 
 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the offers 
to renew the various contracts for Concrete Pavement Repair to the current vendors based 
on the fact costs for concrete and fuel have increased 5% to 20% in price.  Only if the 
contract were very large would some vendors decrease their prices.   
 
 
Cc: Susan Leirstein 
 



DATE:  May 24, 2006 
  
 
 
 
TO:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
    
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Timothy Richnak, Director of Public Works 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Revisions to Troy City Code Chapter 18 (City Water Utility) 
 
 
 
City Staff have been working on updating Chapter 18, City Water Utility.  We request 
that City Council consider the enclosed revision to Chapter 18. 
 
We recommend that the City of Troy institute permanent outdoor annual watering 
restrictions.  Outdoor watering accounts for a significant portion of the peak water usage 
factor that is used to set the City of Troy water rates by the Detroit Water and Sewerage 
Department.  Higher peak usage means higher water rates.  Outdoor watering also 
accounts for a significant loss of water pressure in some areas of the city during the 
summer months.   
 
Converting to a mandatory odd/even day watering schedule for all customers on the 
public water supply would help even out the water usage, and assist in keeping rates 
down and pressure up. Implementation will include extensive customer notification and 
education on the need for such restrictions. 
 
The proposed revisions to Chapter 18 (Section 12) of the Ordinance are attached for 
your consideration.   
 
We will provide any additional information that you request on this matter. 
 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed as to form and legality:          
     Lori G. Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Matthew Kapcia, Cross Connection Control Inspector 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 18 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Section 18 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Section 12 of Chapter 18 shall be amended as follows:   
 
Outdoor Water Use Restrictions 
 
12.01 From Memorial Day through Labor Day each year, watering restrictions 
shall be in effect for the purposes of evening out the City water pressures and the 
Peak water usage.  

A. Outdoor watering, including the sprinkling of lawns and landscaping 
and filling swimming pools, washing cars and all outdoor watering 
tasks shall only be allowed for properties with even-numbered 
addresses on even-numbered calendar dates within a month and 
for properties with odd-numbered addresses on odd-numbered 
calendar dates.  

B. Watering of new sod or landscaping, one year old or less, is 
exempt from the odd/even water restriction. 

 
A.  Whenever the Manager of the City receives notification from the Detroit Water 
and Sewerage Department in conjunction with the Water and Radiological 
Protection Division of the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality, or it is 
determined by the City Council, that the supply or pressure demand for water 
cannot be accommodated and general welfare is likely to be endangered, or 
conditions within the water system of the City are likely to endanger the general 
welfare of the City, the Manager shall determine that a state of emergency exists 
and prescribe the following emergency regulations which shall apply in the City 
for all properties connected to the City water system:  For the duration of the 
declared state of emergency, outdoor watering, including the sprinkling of laws 
and landscaping and filling swimming pools, washing cars, and all outdoor 
watering tasks shall only be allowed for properties with even numbered 
addresses on even numbered calendar dates within a month and for properties 
with odd numbered addresses on odd numbered calendar dates.  Watering of 
new sod or landscaping, one year old or less is exempt from the odd/even water 
restriction.  



 
 12.02. Whenever the Manager receives notification from the Detroit Water 
and  
Sewerage Department or the City Council, in conjunction with the Drinking Water 
and Radiological Protection Division of the  the  Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality that provisions in subsection A are not sufficient,or  the 
current  conditions within of of the water system of the City are likely to endanger 
the general welfare of the City, the following  then additional  emergency 
regulations can be imposed shall apply in the City for all properties connected to 
the City water system:  Sprinking of lawns and landscaping and all outdoor water 
use shall not be allowed.   
 
 
C. The City and the Detroit Water and Sewerage Department shall, or at its 
option the City Council may, Wwithin 24 hours of notification, as set forth above, , 
cause any additional emergency these regulations shall to be posted at the City 
offices and publicly announced by means of broadcasts or telecasts by the 
stations with a normal operating range covering the City.  The announcement 
may also , and may cause such announcement to be further declared in 
newspapers of .general  
circulation when feasible.  The regulations shall become effective immediately 
after notice of enforcement of the ordinance as posted at the City offices. Upon 
the posting and publication of the additional emergency regulations. Upon 
notification from the Detroit Water and Sewerage Department in conjunction 
connection  with the Drinking Water and Radiological Protection Division of the 
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality or the City Council, that the 
emergency regulations are no longer necessary, the City shall cause a public 
announcement lifting the water restrictions. 
 

D. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any provisions of this ordinance 
shall be deemed responsible for a municipal civil infraction, in 
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 100 of the City of Troy 
ordinances,  and will be responsible to pay a fine not to exceed five 
hundred dollars ($500) for each violation.   

 
E.It shall be the responsibility of the City to enforce this ordinance.   

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 



effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 



Clean Copy  
 
Outdoor Water Use Restrictions  
 
12.01 From Memorial Day through Labor Day each year, watering restrictions 

shall be in effect for the purposes of evening out the City water pressures 
and the Peak water usage.  

 
A. Outdoor watering, including the sprinkling of lawns and 

landscaping and filling swimming pools, washing cars and all 
outdoor watering tasks shall only be allowed for properties 
with even-numbered addresses on even-numbered calendar 
dates within a month and for properties with odd-numbered 
addresses on odd-numbered calendar dates.  

 
B. Watering of new sod or landscaping, one year old or less, is 

exempt from the odd/even water restriction. 
 
12.02 Whenever the Manager receives notification from the Detroit Water and 

Sewerage Department or the City Council or the Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality that current conditions of the water system of the 
City are likely to endanger the general welfare of the City, then additional 
emergency regulations can be imposed on all properties connected to the 
City water system, including an absolute temporary ban on Sprinkling of 
lawns and landscaping and all outdoor water use.   

 
12.03 Within 24 hours of notification, as set forth above, any additional 

emergency regulations shall be posted at the City offices and publicly 
announced by means of broadcasts or telecasts by the stations with a 
normal operating range covering the City.  The announcement may also 
be further declared in newspapers of general circulation when feasible.  
The regulations shall become effective immediately upon the posting and 
publication of the additional emergency regulations.  Upon notification 
from the Detroit Water and Sewerage Department in connection with the 
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality or the City Council, that 
the emergency regulations are no longer necessary, the City shall cause a 
public announcement lifting the water restrictions. 

 
12.04 Any person, firm or corporation violating any provision of this ordinance 

shall be deemed responsible for a municipal civil infraction, in accordance 
with the provisions of Chapter 100 of the City of Troy ordinances, and will 
be responsible to pay a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500) for 
each violation.   

 
 



campbellld
Text Box
F-05













 1

Date:  May 22, 2006 
 
To: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM APPROVAL – 

Adams Road Site Condominium, East side of Adams Road, South of South 
Boulevard, Section 6 – R-1A 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
At the April 11, 2006 Regular meeting, the Planning Commission recommended approval 
of the Adams Road Site Condominium, with one condition: elimination of the portion of 
Unit #2 that falls within the required 45-foot rear yard setback.  The applicant revised the 
site plan to meet this condition. 
 
City Management agrees with the Planning Commission and recommends approval of 
the Adams Road Site Condominium application. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Choice Development Corporation. 
 
Location of subject property: 
The property is located on the east side of Adams Road, south of South Boulevard, in 
Section 6. 
 
Size of subject parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 4.98 acres in area.   
 
Description of proposed development: 
The applicant is proposing to use the One-Family Cluster Option (Section 34.70.00) to 
develop a 5-unit site condominium. 
 
Current use of subject property: 
The property is presently vacant.  
 
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
North: Vacant. 
South: Single family residential. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Single family residential (Bloomfield Township). 

campbellld
Text Box
F-06



 2

Current zoning classification: 
The property is currently zoned R-1A One Family Residential. 
 
Zoning classification of adjacent parcels: 
North: R-1A One Family Residential. 
South: R-1A One Family Residential. 
East: R-1A One Family Residential.  
West: R-2 One Family Residential (Bloomfield Township). 
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The property is designated on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Density Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements of the R-1A One Family Residential District: 
The applicant is proposing to utilize the One-Family Cluster Option (Section 34.70.00).  
The Parallel Plan indicates that five units can be developed on the property using 
conventional R-1A area and bulk requirements. 
 
The applicant is required to provide at least 30% open space; at least 25% of the open 
space shall be non-regulated wetlands.  The applicant meets this requirement. 
 
Lot Area: 21,780 square feet in R-1A; N/A using the One-Family Cluster Option. 
 
Lot Width:  120 feet in R-1A (108 feet using Lot Averaging); N/A using the One-Family 
Cluster Option. 
 
Height:  Maximum permitted height is 2 stories or 25 feet. 
 
Setbacks: Front:  20 feet required.  The development meets this requirement. 

Side:  15 feet between units (50 feet on Adams Road.  The development 
meets this requirement. 
Rear (perimeter):  45 feet.   

 
Minimum Floor Area:  1,400 square feet. 
 
Maximum Lot Coverage:  30%. 
 
The applicant meets the area and bulk requirements of the R-1A One Family Residential 
District, One-Family Cluster Option. 
 
Off-street parking and loading requirements:  
The applicant will be required to provide 2 off-street parking spaces per unit. 



 3

Storm water detention: 
The site plan indicates that underground storm water detention will be utilized.  Note that 
the City will not accept underground detention facilities.  These will have to be owned and 
maintained by the Site Condominium Association. 
 
Natural features and floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are wetlands located on the property.  A 
Wetland Determination Report was completed for the property on October 11, 2005 by 
Holloway Environmental Planning, Inc.  The report indicates that there are State-
regulated wetlands on the property.  A permit from the MDEQ will be required prior to 
disturbing any of the wetland areas. 
 
The wetland area will be delineated with a split rail fence.  The applicant will be required 
to prepare a conservation easement ensuring the wetlands will remain undisturbed, prior 
to Final Site Condominium Approval.  
 
Subdivision Control Ordinance, Article IV Design Standards  
 

Lots: All units meet the minimum area and bulk requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance, One-Family Cluster Option, Section 34.70.00. 
 
Streets: The proposed development has direct vehicular access to Adams Road. 
  
Sidewalks: An 8-foot wide sidewalk is proposed for the east side of Adams Road.  
A 5-foot wide sidewalk is proposed for both sides of the interior street. 
 
Utilities: The parcel is served by public water and sewer systems. 

 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Wetland Determination prepared by Holloway Environmental Planning, Inc., dated 

October 11, 2005. 
2. Correspondence/letters of opposition (3).  
3. Applicant letter. 
 
 
Prepared by: RBS, MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Adams Road Site Condominium 
 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Adams Road Site Condo Sec 6\CC Prelim Approval Adams Rd Site Condo 06 05 06.doc 















































 1

 
DATE:  May 23, 2006 
 
TO: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – EXTENSION OF PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM 

APPROVAL – Oak Forest South Site Condominium, East Side of Willow 
Grove, South of Square Lake Road, Section 11 – R-1C 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Management recommends a one-year extension of preliminary site condominium 
approval of Oak Forest South Site Condominium.  
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
City Council granted preliminary site condominium approval to Oak Forest South Site 
Condominium on April 18, 2005.  The preliminary site condominium approval expired 
April 18, 2006.  The petitioner, Dale Garrett of Ladd’s Inc., submitted an application for 
extension on March 13, 2006.  City Management requested the petitioner complete a 
wetland inspection report prior to bringing the item forward to City Council for 
consideration, consequently the extension deadline has elapsed. 
 
The petitioner is proposing a 23-unit site condominium on a parcel that is approximately 
10.03 acres in area.  The applicant is utilizing the lot averaging option, which permits a 
10% reduction in lot area to 9,450 square feet and a 10% reduction in lot widths, to 76.5 
feet.  The petitioner is not proposing any changes to the approved preliminary site 
condominium plan. 
 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are wetlands, woodlands and a drain on the 
property.  The petitioner provided a wetland determination report prepared by Holloway 
Environmental Planning, Inc., dated December 8, 2004.  The applicant provided a 
wetlands assessment report prepared by the Michigan Department of Environmental 
Quality (MDEQ) on December 28, 2001.  The report indicates that there are a number 
of wetlands regulated under Part 303 of PA 451 of 1994; however, the findings are not 
binding after October 17, 2004.   

campbellld
Text Box
F-07



 2

At the request of City Management, the petitioner submitted a revised wetland 
inspection report dated April 10, 2006.  The report indicates the wetland boundaries 
identified on the MDEQ report is accurate.  Note that the petitioner is required to receive 
a permit from the MDEQ prior to commencing any construction activity such as 
dredging, filling, or draining within a regulated wetland.   
 
 
Attachments: 
1. MDEQ Wetland Assessment Report 00-63-0006-WA, dated December 28, 2001.   
2. Wetland Determination Report, prepared by Holloway Environmental Planning, Inc., 

dated December 8, 2004. 
3. Wetland Inspection Report, prepared by Holloway Environmental Planning, Inc., 

dated April 10, 2006. 
4. Memorandum prepared by the City of Troy Environmental Specialist, dated May 1, 

2006. 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ Oak Forest South Site Condominium 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Oak Forest South Site Condominium Sec 11\Extension Prelim CC Approval Oak Forest South 
Site Condo 06 05 06.doc 
 
 





















 1

 
DATE:  May 23, 2006 
 
TO: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – EXTENSION OF PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM 

APPROVAL – Oak Forest Site Condominium, South Side of Square Lake 
Road between Willow Grove and John R Road, Section 11 – R-1C 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Management recommends a one-year extension of preliminary site condominium 
approval of Oak Forest Site Condominium.  
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
City Council granted preliminary site condominium approval to Oak Forest Site 
Condominium on April 18, 2005.  The preliminary site condominium approval expired 
April 18, 2006.  The petitioner, Dale Garrett of Ladd’s Inc., submitted an application for 
extension on March 13, 2006.  City Management requested the petitioner complete a 
wetland inspection report prior to bringing the item forward to City Council for 
consideration, consequently the extension deadline has elapsed. 
 
The petitioner is proposing a 76-unit site condominium on a parcel that is approximately 
38.43 acres in area.  The applicant is utilizing the lot averaging option, which permits a 
10% reduction in lot area to 9,450 square feet and a 10% reduction in lot widths, to 76.5 
feet.  The petitioner is not proposing any changes to the approved preliminary site 
condominium plan. 
 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are wetlands, woodlands and a drain on the 
property.  The petitioner provided a wetland determination report prepared by Holloway 
Environmental Planning, Inc., dated December 8, 2004.  The applicant provided a 
wetlands assessment report prepared by the Michigan Department of Environmental 
Quality (MDEQ) on December 28, 2001.  The report indicates that there are a number 
of wetlands regulated under Part 303 of PA 451 of 1994; however, the findings are not 
binding after October 17, 2004.   

campbellld
Text Box
F-08



 2

At the request of City Management, the petitioner submitted a revised wetland 
inspection report dated April 10, 2006.  The report indicates the wetland boundaries 
identified on the MDEQ report is accurate.  Note that the petitioner is required to receive 
a permit from the MDEQ prior to commencing any construction activity such as 
dredging, filling, or draining within a regulated wetland.   
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. MDEQ Wetland Assessment Report 00-63-0006-WA, dated December 28, 2001.   
2. Wetland Determination Report, prepared by Holloway Environmental Planning, Inc., 

dated December 8, 2004. 
3. Wetland Inspection Report, prepared by Holloway Environmental Planning, Inc., 

dated April 10, 2006. 
4. Memorandum prepared by the City of Troy Environmental Specialist, dated May 1, 

2006. 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ Oak Forest Site Condominium 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Oak Forest Site Condo Sec 11\Extension Prelim CC Approval Oak Forest Site Condo 06 05 
06.doc 





















  May 26, 2006 
 
 
To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

 
Subject: Agenda Item:  Rescind Award and Re-Award for Barn Repair  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management recommends Troy City Council rescind the award made on 
January 9, 2006, to David L. Ingraham of St. Johns, MI, to repair the barn at the 
Troy Farm for an estimated total cost of $24,600.00, plus a 10% contingency. 
(Item F-4 - Resolution #2006-01-010).  The vendor withdrew from the project on 
March 23, 2006.  The vendor will be notified of contract default with prejudice 
following Council action.  The other vendor that submitted a quote for the service 
is no longer interested in the work.   
 
City management has subsequently received an alternate proposal and is 
requesting a waiver of the formal bid process and City Council approval for an 
estimated total cost of $14,950.00, plus a 10% contingency to Akins 
Construction, Inc. of Sterling Heights.  Akins Construction’s quote is lower than 
the original award, as the proposed work does not include replacing the roof, but 
rather stabilizing the barn due to safety concerns.  Akins did not initially bid the 
project, as they anticipated their sub-contractor would.  The sub-contractor did 
not bid.        
 
 
BACKGROUND 
In 2004, specifications to repair the barn were developed by a barn repair 
specialist.  Quotes were then solicited for this specialized work in the spring of 
2005.  At the time, no vendors submitted a quote.   Quotes were then solicited 
one more time in August 2005 as the specifications were sent to seven vendors 
who could perform this work.  Two vendors visited the site and submitted a 
quote.  Both now have declined to proceed with the project.   
  
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Stuart J. Alderman, Superintendent of Recreation 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-09



campbellld
Text Box
F-10a





 
 
DATE:   May 23, 2006 

  
 

 
TO:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item 
   Revisions to Chapter 60 
   Increase in Board of Zoning Appeals Application Fee 
 
 
 
 
With the recent adoption of the revisions to the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act that go 
into effect on July 1, 2006, there are some revisions required to our procedure that we 
use to process appeal applications to the Board of Zoning Appeals.  The most 
significant impact is the requirement that notice of an appeal be published in a local 
newspaper in addition to our current practice of mailing notices to surrounding property 
owners.  Previously, this was not a requirement for cities and villages. 
 
This causes two changes in our current procedure.  First, since the Act requires that the 
notice be in the paper no less than 15 days before the hearing, our current submittal 
deadline of 14 days before the meeting will have to be extended to a minimum of 27 
days before the meeting in order for us to meet the publication deadline.  Second, we 
will have the additional cost of publishing the notices.  We have estimated that it will add 
about $25 to the cost of processing each appeal. 
 
City Staff is recommending that the application fee for a variance request before the 
Board of Zoning Appeals be increased to $250.  In reviewing the current costs 
associated with the processing of Board of Zoning Appeals request, we have found that 
it costs an average of $200 per request.  With the new publication requirement this cost 
will increase to an average $225.  The current application fee, last revised in 1989, is 
$75 for a request involving a one or two family residential property and $200 for all 
others.  While the City has employed a two-tiered fee structure in the past, there is little 
to support the justification from a financial perspective.  The intent of the fees is to offset 
expenses related to processing the request.  The costs to process a variance request 
related to a single-family residence are the same or greater that the costs for a non-
residential request. 
 
City Staff is also recommending an increase in the fee for a request for a special 
meeting, from $300 to $500.  Although very infrequently requested, this fee is more in 

campbellld
Text Box
F-10b



line with what the anticipated expenses would be for Board member compensation, staff 
time and building usage costs.   
 
Lastly staff is recommending a change to the current fee for a renewal of a variance 
from $25 to $35.  These are typically for renewals of variances for screen walls on a 
three year basis and do not involve the advertisement of a public hearing.  
 
These fees have historically been simply adopted by Council resolution.  In order to 
consolidate all fees into a single location the suggested resolution places them within 
Chapter 60 of the City Code.  The change would actually be to add the following to 
Section 60.03 of the Troy City Code: 
 

ITEM/SERVICE: FEE: 
Board of Zoning Appeals Application (Chapter 39)  
Variance $250.00 
Variance Renewals $35.00 
Special Meeting $500.00 
 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 



May 25, 2006 
 
 
To:  John Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Fee Increases – Museum 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the following changes to the fee structure for facility 
rentals at the Troy Historical Museum be approved. 
 
Wedding Ceremony Fees 
 Village Grounds & 

Buildings 

(Excludes the Church) 

 
Village Grounds & 

Church 
Troy residents $250.00 $350.00 
Non-residents $350.00 $450.00 

Security Deposit $200.00 $200.00 
 
All fees are increased $50.00.  

 

Fee for Wedding Photos on the Green 
 Village Grounds & 

Buildings 
(Excludes the Church) 

Village Grounds & 
Church 

Troy residents $50.00 $100.00 

Non-residents $100.00* $150.00 
Security Deposit $50.00 $50.00 

 
*This fee increased $25.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-10c



Rental Fees For Meetings, and Occasional Events 
Location Troy Org. Non-Profit Org. Non-Troy Org. 

Museum Building 
as meeting site 

$50.00/hr $50.00/hr. $100.00/hr 

Village Green $50.00/hr $50.00/hr. $100.00/hr 

 

All fees doubled.  

 
SUMMARY 
The proposed rates are very competitive with fees charged by similar institutions 
for similar services.  It is estimated that the new fee structure would bring in an 
additional $1,000.00 per year of revenue. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
DATE:   May 30, 2006 

  
 

 
TO:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Policy Adoption 
   Display of Signs on City Hall Site for Community Events 
 
 
 
 
Attached, please find the policy regarding sign displays on the frame in front of City Hall.  
The proposed policy gives the City Manager the authority to grant approval for the 
installation and display of signs announcing the time and place for community events.  
The allowance is for those times when the City is not using the frame for the display of 
signs for City sponsored events. 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
F-12



Policy Regarding the Placement of Sign for the Announcement 
Community Events on City Hall Property 
 
The City of Troy installs and maintains temporary signs in the front of City Hall at 500 
W. Big Beaver for the purpose of identifying to the public the dates and times of City 
sponsored events.  During the times that the City is not using the sign frame for the 
display of City sponsored events, the City may make that space available for use of 
other community organizations that are partially funded by the City through it’s annual 
budget for the placement of announcements of other public events that will be held in 
the City of Troy. 
 
The signs must be a commercially produced vinyl banner in a well maintained condition, 
sized to fit on the existing 3’ x 18’ sign frame.  The sign must be installed and removed 
by City staff.  The City of Troy assumes no liability for damage to the sign while it is 
displayed.  The signs are allowed to be displayed not more than seven days before the 
scheduled event.  The message on the sign will be limited to the name of the event, 
time, place, location and sponsoring organization’s name. 
 
The City Manager or his designee shall be responsible for the administration of this 
policy. 



 1

DATE:  May 18, 2006 
 
TO: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (JUNE 19, 2006) 

– REZONING APPLICATION (Z 718) – Proposed Curves, East side of 
Livernois, between Maple and Kirts, Section 28 – O-1 to B-3 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan and compatible 
with existing zoning districts and land uses.  The Planning Commission recommended 
approval of the rezoning request at the May 9, 2006 Regular meeting.  City Management 
agrees with the Planning Commission and recommends approval of the rezoning 
application.   
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Beth Anne Beattie. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the west side of Livernois, between Maple and Kirts, in Section 28. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 14,250 square feet in area.  
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
There is a vacant office building that presently sits on the property.  
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
O-1 Office Building. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-3 General Business. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to reuse the building as a Curves athletic facility.   
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Good Food retail store. 
South: Red Wagon Shoppe. 
East: Pizza Hut. 
West: Good Food retail store. 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



 2

Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-2 Community Business. 
South: B-3 General Business. 
East: B-3 General Business. 
West: B-2 Community Business. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed B-3 Zoning District and Potential Build-out Scenario:  
 

PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 

Any retail business or service establishment permitted in B-2 Districts as Principal 
Uses Permitted and Uses Permitted Subject to Special Conditions. 

 
Mortuary establishments.  

 
Bus or transit passenger stations, taxicab offices and dispatching centers, and 
emergency vehicle or ambulance facilities.  

 
 Parking garages and off-street parking areas. 
 
 Sales, showrooms, and incidental repair of recreational vehicles. 
 
 New and used car salesroom, showroom, or office. 
 

Governmental offices, public utility offices, exchanges, transformer stations, pump 
stations and service yards but not including outdoor storage. 

 
 Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
 Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
 Drive-up windows or service facilities, as an accessory to restaurants. 
 

Drive-up service facilities, as accessory to principal permitted uses within B-3 districts, 
apart from restaurants. 
 
Bowling alley, billiard hall, indoor archery range, indoor skating rinks, indoor tennis 
courts, athletic or heath clubs, or similar forms of indoor commercial recreation. 
 
Open air business uses when developed as uses subordinate to primary uses and 
structures within the B-3 District 

 
Outside seating of twenty (20) seats or less for restaurants, or other food service 
establishments. 



 3

USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 

Outdoor sales space for exclusive sale or lease of new or second-hand automobiles, 
trucks, mobile homes, trailers, or recreational vehicles 

 
 Motel or hotel 
 

Veterinary hospitals provided all activities are conducted within a totally enclosed main 
building and provided further that all abutting or adjacent property is non-residentially 
zoned. 

 
 Commercial kennels 

 
Automobile repair garages, provided all activities are conducted within a completely 
enclosed building. 

 
Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other food 
service establishments 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Livernois. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on the 
property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Non-Center Commercial.  The 
Non-Center Commercial classification has a primary correlation with the B-3 General 
Business Zoning District.  The application therefore complies with the Future Land Use 
Plan.  The parcel has been planned for Non-Center Commercial since 1971. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
The B-3 Local Business Zoning District does not have Location Standards to apply to 
rezoning requests. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Letter from applicant, dated April 11, 2006. 
3. Letter from John Gonway, representing Peter Ruppe, Inc., dated May 9, 2006. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File / Z 718 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-718 Proposed Curves Sec 28\Announce CC Public Hearing Z-718 06 05 06.doc 



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

SUBJECT PARCEL



W MAPLE

FORTHTON
M

A
S

TIN
BIRCHWOOD

CHOPIN

E MAPLE
LIV

E
R

N
O

IS
M

A
IN

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED CURVES
FROM O-1 TO B-3
W SIDE LIVERNOIS, N OF MAPLE
SEC. 28 (Z-718)

±0 50 100
Feet

SUBJECT PARCEL

CITY OF CLAWSON



W MAPLE

FORTHTON
M

A
S

TIN
BIRCHWOOD

CHOPIN

E MAPLE
LIV

E
R

N
O

IS
M

A
IN

(B-3) General
Business
District

(H-S) Highway
Service
District

(B-2) Community
Business District

(R-2) Two Family
Residential District

(O-1) Office
Building
District

(B-1) Local
Business
District

(R-1E) One Family
Residential District

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED CURVES
FROM O-1 TO B-3
W SIDE LIVERNOIS, N OF MAPLE
SEC. 28 (Z-718)

±0 50 100
Feet

SUBJECT PARCEL

CITY OF CLAWSON











 1

 
 
DATE:  May 25, 2006 
 
TO: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (JUNE 19, 

2006) – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 717) – Proposed Medical/General 
Office Building, Northwest corner of Lovell and Rochester Road, Section 3 
– R-1C to O-1 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of this application at the May 9, 
2006 Regular meeting.  City Management agrees with the Planning Commission and 
recommends approval of the rezoning application.   
 
 
JUSTIFICATION FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan nor does it meet the 
Location Standards of Section 24.40.00.   
 
However, the application is compatible with existing zoning districts and land uses.  The 
property to the north is an attached condominium development, to the south a retail use 
and a single-family residence.  Across Rochester Road to the east sits a restaurant and 
an attached condominium development.  To the west is a City-owned detention basin.  
Note that the two parcels to the south front on Rochester Road and are used for retail 
and office uses.   
 
The subject parcel is relatively isolated from other single-family homes.  There is not a 
strong relationship between the subject parcel and the existing homes on Lovell.  The 
residences on the south side of Lovell front on Hannah and have driveways on Hannah; 
their back yards abut Lovell.  The detention basin to the west serves as a significant 
buffer between the subject parcel and the houses on the north side of Lovell to the west. 
 
Additionally, the Planning Commission is considering an amendment to the Future Land 
Use Plan that would create a Rochester Road Overlay District and permit a range of 
uses to serve as a transition between Rochester Road and the abutting single-family 
residential neighborhood.  This application appears to be consistent with this direction. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01b



 2

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Franco Mancini. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the northwest corner of Lovell and Rochester Road, in 
Section 3. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 0.994 acres in area.  
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is presently vacant.  
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
O-1 Office Building. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to develop the property as a medical and general office 
building.   
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Sandalwood Condominium. 
South: Retail and single family residential. 
East: Alibi Restaurant and Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck PUD. 
West: Detention basin (City-owned). 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1T One Family Attached. 
South: B-1 Local Business. 
East: B-3 General Business and PUD #1. 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed O-1 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 

Office Buildings for any of the following occupations: executive, administrative; 
professional; accounting; writing; clerical stenographic; drafting; and sales. 



 3

 Medical office, including clinics. 
 

Banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, and similar uses. Such uses 
may include drive-in facilities only as an accessory use. 

 
 Publicly owned buildings, exchanges, and public utility offices. 
 
 Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

Uses customarily supporting or serving the Principal Uses permitted in this District, 
such as pharmacies or drug stores, optical services, copy services, office supplies, 
book stores, art galleries, or restaurants. 

 
Data processing and computer centers, including sales support, service and 
maintenance of electronic data processing equipment.   

 
Technical training uses. 

 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 

Mortuary establishments. 
 
 Private service clubs, fraternal organizations and lodge halls. 
 
 Private ambulance facilities. 
 

Utility sub-stations, transformer stations or gas regulator stations (without 
storage yards). 

 
Mechanical or laboratory research involving testing and evaluation of products, or 
prototype or experimental product or process development. 

 
Child care centers, nursery schools, or day nurseries (not including dormitories).  

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Rochester Road. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are wetlands, woodlands and floodplain 
located on the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Medium Density Residential.  
The Medium Density Residential classification correlates with the R-1T, R-2, R-M and 



 4

R-EC zoning districts.  The application therefore does not comply with the Future Land 
Use Plan.  The parcel has been planned for Medium Density Residential since 1999. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards 
Section 24.40.00 includes Location Standards to apply to rezoning requests: 
 
 24.40.00 LOCATION STANDARDS 
 
 24.40.10 Location Standards: the O-1 (Office Building) District may be applied 

when the application of such a classification is consistent with the 
intent of the Master Land Use Planning and policies related thereto, 
and therefore involves the following types of areas: 

 
 24.40.11 Areas indicated as low-rise office. 
 
 24.40.12 Portions of areas designated as community service centers or 

neighborhood service centers. 
 
 24.40.13 Areas designated for commercial or other non-residential 

development, or higher intensity office development, when one or 
more of the following determinations are made: 

 
   A. When the adjacent area and/or the total community would be 

more effectively served by the application of O-1 zoning than 
by the application of a commercial or other non-residential 
zoning District of a more intense office District. 

 
   B. When development in accordance with O-1 zoning would 

serve as a transitional element and would thus be more 
compatible with adjacent properties than would development 
under commercial or other office classifications. 

 
The application does not meet the Location Standards of Section 24.40.00. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Letter from applicant, dated April 5, 2006. 
3. Letters of opposition (2). 

 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File / Z 717 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-717 Proposed Medical Office Bldg. Sec 3\Announcement CC Public Hearing Z-717 06 05 06.doc 



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

SUBJECT PARCEL



HANNAH

E LOVELL

HARTWIG

ALAMEDA

SANDALWOOD

ALAMEDA

ALAMEDA

A
LA

M
E

D
A

ALAM
ED

A

E
D

G
E

W
ATE

R

ALAMEDA

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED ROCHESTER PROFESSIONAL BLDG.
FROM R-1C TO O-1
NW CORNER OF ROCHESTER RD. & LOVELL
SEC. 3  (Z-717)

SUBJECT PARCEL



HANNAH

E LOVELL

HARTWIG

ALAMEDA

SANDALWOOD

ALAMEDA

ALAMEDA

A
LA

M
E

D
A

ALAM
ED

A

E
D

G
E

W
ATE

R

ALAMEDA

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

CJ-32

(PUD)
Planned Unit
Development

(P-1) Vehicular
Parking
District

(R-1D) One Family
Residential District

(R-1C) One Family
Residential District

(B-3) General
Business
District

(B-1) Local
Business
District

(R-1B) One Family
Residential District

(R-1T) One
Family Attached

Residential District

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED ROCHESTER PROFESSIONAL BLDG.
FROM R-1C TO O-1
NW CORNER OF ROCHESTER RD. & LOVELL
SEC. 3  (Z-717)

SUBJECT PARCEL











campbellld
Text Box
J-01a









LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            APRIL 10, 2006  

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, April 
10, 2006 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Committee member Henry W. Allemon called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Henry W. Allemon 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Kelsey Brunette 
    Sergeant Christopher Stout 
    Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Ehlert, Godlewski, and Ukrainec 
 
Resolution #LC2006-04-001  
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by  Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Ehlert, Godlewski, and 
Ukrainec at the Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of April 10, 2006 BE 
EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  4 
No:  0  
Absent: Ehlert, Godlewski, and Ukrainec 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of December 12, 2006 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2006-04-002 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Allemon 
 

 Page 1 of 3

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            APRIL 10, 2006  

RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the December 12, 2005 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  4 
No:  0  
Absent: Ehlert, Godlewski, and Ukrainec 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
 
1. TROY PARADISE, INC, requests to transfer ownership of 2005 SDD& 

SDM licensed corporation located at 5945 John R, Troy MI, 48085, Oakland 
County by dropping Sadik J. Sadik through transfer of 100 shares of stock 
to new stockholder Louay Joulakh [MLCC REQ # 329089] 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Louay Joulakh and Sadik 
Sadik. 
 
Mr. Joulakh stated that he and Mr. Sadik are brothers-in-law and have been 
working together in this business for approximately seven months.    Mr. Sadik is 
experiencing financial trouble and wants to sell the store.  Mr. Joulakh is interested 
in purchasing the store and wants to improve the business.  They will be the only 
two employees and have both completed TIPS training.   
 
Resolution #LC2006-04-003 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, that TROY PARADISE, INC, be allowed transfer ownership of 2005 
SDD& SDM licensed corporation located at 5945 John R, Troy MI, 48085, 
Oakland County by dropping Sadik J. Sadik through transfer of 100 shares of 
stock to new stockholder Louay Joulakh. 
 
 
 
Yes:   4 
No:  0  
Absent: Ehlert, Godlewski, and Ukrainec 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Page 2 of 3



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            APRIL 10, 2006  

Sergeant Stout advised the Committee that he received notification that Hooters 
plans to move and purchase the liquor license from the Wagon Wheel.  The liquor 
license that Hooters currently holds will be sold.  This information was just 
received and it was unable to be added to this month’s Agenda. 
 
Lori Bluhm, City Attorney, advised the Committee that the responsibilities of this 
Committee would be explained at next month’s meeting in order to educate new 
and current members.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Henry W. Allemon 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 

 Page 3 of 3



campbellld
Text Box
J-01c







 
 
LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD – FINAL  APRIL 13, 2006 
 

 1 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday April 13, 2006 at the 
Office of the Library Director.  Brian Griffen, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 
7:30 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Heather Eisenbacher 
   Lynne Gregory 
   Brian Griffen 
   Nancy Weeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
        
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
    
 
Resolution #LB-2006-4-01 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That Student Representatives Lauren Andreoff and Cheng Chen be 
excused. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gregory, Griffen, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-4-02 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, That Minutes of March 16, 2006 be approved. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gregory, Griffen, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-4-03 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



 
 
LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD – FINAL  APRIL 13, 2006 
 

 2 

Yes: 3—Eisenbacher, Gregory, Griffen, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no postponed items. 
 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS. 
Review of Exhibit Policy.  
The Board reviewed and discussed the Exhibit Policy focusing on whether or not to post 
prices of art works.  It was decided to keep the policy as written, but to have signage 
made for each exhibit venue that would say “The library cannot be involved in the sale 
of items displayed in exhibit areas and no sales from the exhibits can take place on 
library property.  For more information about exhibited art pieces, contact:” followed by 
the exhibitor’s name and contact information. 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
The in-service workshops on April 7th were a huge success according to the attendees 
that included over 100 staff, Library Advisory Board Members and Friends of the Troy 
Public Library Board Members. 
 
Since we now have a wireless connection for patrons with laptops, we are adding a 
number of additional electrical outlets to the Adult Services Department to meet 
demand. 
 
The owners of Steamers, the library café, have not complied with the City’s insurance 
requirements.  If by April 17, 2006 they still do not have the insurance, they will not be 
allowed to open until they do.    
 
Board Member’s Comments 
Zembrzuski suggested that an area be closed in either for quiet study or to control the 
noise of Teens.  Eisenbacher asked that staff be informed about not sneezing into their 
hands and then handling patron’s materials.  
 
Student Representative’s Comments 
There were no comments. 
 
Suburban Library Cooperative. 
The audit was reviewed, as was the investment policy.  The policy that outlines the 
procedures to remove staff users from Sirsi was discussed.  The Shared Technology 
Committee recommended a method to take to identify issues with Sirsi and evaluate 
other vendors. 
 



 
 
LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD – FINAL  APRIL 13, 2006 
 

 3 

Friends of the Troy Public Library. 
The Annual Meeting will be held on May 22, 2006.  Thomas Lynch, one of this year’s 
Michigan Notable Authors, will discuss his newest book:  We Irish and Americans. 
 
 
Gifts. 
One gift of $75.00 was received. 
 
Informational Items. 
April TPL Calendar 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
21 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation.   
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 9:00 P.M. 
 

 
 
 
 
Brian Griffen 
Chair 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT APRIL 25, 2006 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, April 
25, 2006 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:30 pm. 
 
 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 

Cele Dilley Jeff Stewart 
Cheryl Whitton Marilyn Musick 
Bob Berk Berj Alexanian, Student Rep 
Kessie Kaltsounis Bill Hall 
Mike Gonda  
 
City Staff: Cindy Stewart 
 Gerry Scherlinck 
 Bob Matlick 
 Jeff Biegler 
 

 Festival Chairman:   Tom Kaszubski 
 
C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution #TD-2006-04-71 
Moved by Bill Hall  
Seconded by Mike Gonda to approve the March 28, 2006 minutes with 
corrections (add Tom Kaszubski to attendee list; TD-2006-30-60 should read – 
pursue Jay Sanborn as an emcee and investigate the costs; Item #6 – should 
read “only two from the City list expressed interest. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the March meeting minutes are approved with 
corrections. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
D. TREASURER’S REPORT as of 3/31/06 
 

Revenue $172,608.76 (no change) 
 
Changes $100 sick pay allowance 
 
Expenses $141,771.39 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT APRIL 25, 2006 

 
Resolution #TD-2006-04-72 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Bill Hall to accept the Treasurer’s Report of March 28, 2006. 
 
RESOLVED that the Treasurer’s Report of March 28, 2006 is approved. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
E. NEW BUSINESS 
 

No new appointments, no new business, no old business 
 

 
MOTION TO ADJOURN 
Resolution #TD-2006-04-73 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Cheryl Whitton 
 
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee Meeting be adjourned at 
7:35 pm. 
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED    
  
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cele Dilley, Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 

 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT APRIL 25, 2006 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Committee was held Tuesday, April 
25, 2006 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:37 pm. 
  
ROLL CALL 
 
Present:   Mike Gonda   Bob Preston 

Cele Dilley    Anju Brodbine 
Kessie Kaltsounis   Pancho Massaini  
Sandy Macknis  Bob Berk 
Cheryl Whitton  Dan O’Brien  
Tom Kaszubski  Jeff Stewart      

 Berj Alexanian Jeff Super 
 Susan Regina Jim Hatten 
 Karen Hatten Diane Mitchell 
 Alison Miller Shirley Darge 
 Doris Schuchter Kasey Wang 
 Janet Ferstle Marilyn Musick 
 Phil Musick Bill Hall 
 Tom Kaszubski Tom Duszynski 
 Tim McAvoy Jeff Winarski 
 Bob Bishop Bob Preston 
  
 
City Staff Present: Jeff Biegler   Bob Matlick  
   Cindy Stewart  Gerry Scherlinck 
 
 
INTRODUCTIONS 
 

Kasey Wang, Troy High sophomore – appointed as the new Student rep. 
 

GENERAL CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT: 
 
Last City Council meeting, Council voted on the festival hours:  Friday & 
Saturday gates close at 9 p.m.  Festival closes 10 p.m. 

 
This committee will meet April, July, August, October 
 
Festival Committee List – be sure your info is correct 
 
Troy Daze Event Descriptions – need one for all events and need co-chair for all 
events.  Send info to Tom K. 
 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT APRIL 25, 2006 

New Positions 
 

Bob Berk – “Contracted Services” - civil emergency plan, shirt order, misc. 
contracts (pony rides, fire works, Arnolds, petting zoo), Dilley walk. 
 
Bob Preston – “Event Coordinator” -  handle needs for all events (tables, 
chairs, etc) liaison between the chair and operations. 
 
Mike Gonda – “Chief of Operations”  
Bob Bishop – Co-chair of Operations 

 
Open – Decorations - putting flowers out, beautifying park. 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
1.  Rules, policies and procedures will be adopted at May meeting. 

 
2. New code of conduct for all festival attendees to be posted in park and 

given out to all attendees.   
3. Operational changes – 24 operational changes as discussed at last 

meeting to be put into operation. 
 4.  Theme - Family, Friends and Community – the Magic of Troy Daze 
 
Events Chairpersons Reports -  
 

Cele Dilley: Booths - Applications out 1-2 weeks (Pepsi will not be a 
sponsor). 

 
Bill Hall: Information booth – will need volunteers 
 
Cheryl W: Treasurer – Award Request Form need back by June 5 to place 

trophy & ribbon order.  Check Request form also need from 
chairpersons. 

 
Kessie Kaltsounis:  Headquarters   
 
Phil Musick: Co-chair shuttles - need volunteers 
 
Marilyn Musick & Janet Ferstle: Co-chairs for Magic Cauldron - need large 
stuffed animals for the tent. 
 
Sandy Macknis: Student volunteers – has a meeting at Troy High, Athens 
& International Academy – student assemblies.  All chairs email Sandy 
with number of student volunteers needed (bussdiva@aol.com).  Shifts 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT APRIL 25, 2006 

will be four hours.  All student volunteers will receive a t-shirt and told to 
be dropped off at the Northfield Parkway entrance.   
 
Kasey Wang: new student rep to Troy Daze  – 10th grader at Troy High 
 
Anju Brodbine: Co-chair of EthniCity. Poster Contest theme “celebrating 
diversity in education.”  
 
Jeff Stewart: Special needs kids, special needs adults and entertainment 
chair – Hawaiian theme for Special Needs Adult Dance on Thursday night.  
One concern is the drop off area for special needs families who are not 
familiar with Boulan Park.   
 
Co-chair is Charlie Craft.  Jeff is disappointed we had to let go of the teen 
event.  He is listening to teen bands recommended by Nikki Kaptur and 
might book one or two sometime during weekend during the day. 
 
Doris Schuchter: available to help. 
 
Bob Preston: event coordinator and adult volunteers. 
 
Shirley Darge: outdoor stage/ethnic entertainment - co-chair Reuben Ellis. 
 
Diane Mitchell: Talent shows 
 
Tom Duszynski & Tammy Duszynski:  Photo contest  - Contacted Athens 
Photography teacher – he will make the contest an assignment for class. 
All flats will be painted same color. 
 
Allison Miller & Karen Hatten: Cutest Infant & Toddler & New car show - all 
dealers coming back.   Car dealers want to hold special events related to 
car give a-ways if they can have a police presence.  Gerry Scherlinck will 
contact Allison and board will have to approve an event like this. 
 
Tim McAvoy: Opening ceremonies.  Has the flag that flew over capital 
been requested? Yes.  Also service plaques need to be ordered. 
 
Susan Regina: Miss Troy Pageant - applications on website.  She is 
working on prizes for event donors will be listed in program.  No chair for 
younger group of girls yet - if anyone knows someone who would like to 
volunteer, call Tom. K. 
 
Mike Gonda:  Operations - you will get whatever supplies you asked for 
last year unless you let him know.  Also looking for volunteers for 
operations to work the weekend before the festival. 
 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT APRIL 25, 2006 

Berj Alexanian:  retiring student rep/PA announcements -  will pass along 
his information to the new student rep. 
 
Tom K spoke to Jonathan Campian  and he will be organizing the Waffle 
Breakfast on Saturday & Sunday from 9 a.m. – 12 p.m. 
 
Cindy Stewart: Publicity – need information from chairpersons for the 
website and press releases. Naturalization Ceremony -  it will be 
immediately after opening ceremonies and before Miss Troy.   Corporate 
Sponsors to date – Henry Ford Hospital; WideOpenWest ($2500); 
International Transmission ($1000).  
 
Pepsi will donate all pop and water but no cash this year. 
 
Tom Tighe: Knights of Columbus 50-50 raffle all set 
 
Motion by Bill Hall, seconded by Cheryl Whitton to adjourn the meeting at 
8:26 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   April 26, 2006 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on April 26, 2006 at  
7:00 PM at the Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois.  Jia Luo and Joseph Niemiec 
called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski (Secretary) 

Andrew Corey 
Maxine D’Amico  
Jessica Kraft 
Jia (Lisa) Luo (Co-chair) 
Anupama Prasad 
Joseph Niemiec (Co-chair) 
Kristin Randall  
Katie Thoenes 
Nicole Vitale  

MEMBERS ABSENT: Rishi Joshi 
Karen Wullaert,  
Neil Shaw   

VISITORS: Troy Daze Committee Representatives  
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2006-04-04 
  Moved by Bozimowski 
  Seconded by Thoenes 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of March 29, 2006 be approved. 

   
  Yes: All – 10 
            No:      None  
  Absent: 3  - Joshi, Wullaert, Shaw 

 
3. Attendance Report: Updated through April meeting - To note and file 
     
4. Visitor: Troy Daze Committee Representatives 

(Tom Kaszubski, Jeff Stewart, Cele Dilley, Sgt. Gary Mayer,         
Lt. Gerry Sherlink, Cindy Stewart) 
-Discussion between Committee and Council, some issues 
included: 
-Committee discussed current status of event and what is changed 
for 2006.  City Council approved closing time change to 10:00pm 
with parking closing at 9:00pm on Friday and Saturday. 
-Review of some problems that took place in 2005 leading to the 
time changes and cleared up information that came out in the 
March 29 Youth Council Meeting. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   April 26, 2006 
 
 

 2

-Police staff expressed that the problems are not a teen issue but a 
time issue.  Also suggested that Youth Council research the 
possibilities of a teen event at Troy Daze for Troy residents. 
-Youth Council members inquired if times for 2007 event had been 
set?  Mr. Kaszubski informed Council that no issues for 2007 had 
been set and that everything would be reviewed after 2006 event. 
-Youth Council suggested that vendors not be allowed to give away 
prizes that would lead to problems.  Troy Daze Committee agreed 
and stated that they had already informed vendor of such and 
would require final approval of prizes. 
 

5. Futures Process 
Review tabled until May meeting. 

  
 

6. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2006-04-05 

  Moved by  D’Amico 
  Seconded by  Vitale 

  
 RESOLVED that Rishi Joshi, Neil Shaw and Karen Wullaert are excused. 

   
  Yes: All – 10 
            No:      None  
  Absent: 3 – Joshi, Shaw and Wullaert.  
 
7. Youth Council Comments – None 
 
8. Public Comments - None 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:23 P.M.   
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jia Luo, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
 
 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: May 24 at 7:00 P.M. @ Troy Community Center 

 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   April 26, 2006 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on April 26, 2006 at  
7:00 PM at the Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois.  Jia Luo and Joseph Niemiec 
called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski (Secretary) 

Andrew Corey 
Maxine D’Amico  
Jessica Kraft 
Jia (Lisa) Luo (Co-chair) 
Anupama Prasad 
Joseph Niemiec (Co-chair) 
Kristin Randall  
Katie Thoenes 
Nicole Vitale  

MEMBERS ABSENT: Rishi Joshi 
Karen Wullaert,  
Neil Shaw   

VISITORS: Troy Daze Committee Representatives  
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2006-04-04 
  Moved by Bozimowski 
  Seconded by Thoenes 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of March 29, 2006 be approved. 

   
  Yes: All – 10 
            No:      None  
  Absent: 3  - Joshi, Wullaert, Shaw 

 
3. Attendance Report: Updated through April meeting - To note and file 
     
4. Visitor: Troy Daze Committee Representatives 

(Tom Kaszubski, Jeff Stewart, Cele Dilley, Sgt. Gary Mayer,         
Lt. Gerry Sherlink, Cindy Stewart) 
-Discussion between Committee and Council, some issues 
included: 
-Committee discussed current status of event and what is changed 
for 2006.  City Council approved closing time change to 10:00pm 
with parking closing at 9:00pm on Friday and Saturday. 
-Review of some problems that took place in 2005 leading to the 
time changes and cleared up information that came out in the 
March 29 Youth Council Meeting. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   April 26, 2006 
 
 

 2

-Police staff expressed that the problems are not a teen issue but a 
time issue.  Also suggested that Youth Council research the 
possibilities of a teen event at Troy Daze for Troy residents. 
-Youth Council members inquired if times for 2007 event had been 
set?  Mr. Kaszubski informed Council that no issues for 2007 had 
been set and that everything would be reviewed after 2006 event. 
-Youth Council suggested that vendors not be allowed to give away 
prizes that would lead to problems.  Troy Daze Committee agreed 
and stated that they had already informed vendor of such and 
would require final approval of prizes. 
 

5. Futures Process 
Review tabled until May meeting. 

  
 

6. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2006-04-05 

  Moved by  D’Amico 
  Seconded by  Vitale 

  
 RESOLVED that Rishi Joshi, Neil Shaw and Karen Wullaert are excused. 

   
  Yes: All – 10 
            No:      None  
  Absent: 3 – Joshi, Shaw and Wullaert.  
 
7. Youth Council Comments – None 
 
8. Public Comments - None 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:23 P.M.   
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jia Luo, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
 
 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: May 24 at 7:00 P.M. @ Troy Community Center 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 2, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:32 p.m. on May 2, 2006 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts  Lawrence Littman 
Mary Kerwin Wayne Wright 
Fazal Khan 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-070 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Wright and Littman are excused from attendance at 
this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
It was suggested by Mr. Schultz to add ZOTA 219 Conditional Rezoning to discuss 
requiring a site plan as part of a conditional rezoning application.  It was generally 
agreed to add ZOTA 219 as Item #6. 

 
 
3. MINUTES 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-05-071 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the April 25, 2006 Special/Study Meeting be 
approved as printed. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 2, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Waller 
No: None 
Abstain: Vleck 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. MASTER / COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – Presentation by Carlisle/Wortman 

Associates, Inc. 
 
Richard Carlisle and Zack Branigan of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. presented 
their credentials and experience and outlined a general project scope for a new City 
of Troy Master Plan.  
 
General discussion followed. 

 
 
6. ZOTA 219 – Conditional Rezoning  

 
Mr. Schultz requested that the Planning Commission discuss this item to reaffirm 
that Site Plan Approval and/or Special Use Approval may be approved by City 
Council at the same time as the Conditional Rezoning Agreement, following a 
recommendation by the Planning Commission.  The Planning Commission 
generally agreed to add a provision requiring if City Council requires any changes, 
the site plan shall be remanded back to the Planning Commission for consideration 
and recommendation.  The draft ZOTA will be amended to reflect this change. 

 
 
7. SUB-COMMITTEE PROGRESS REPORTS AND DISCUSSION 
 

A. Tracking of Planning and Zoning Projects – Schultz 
 
Mr. Schultz reported that a copy of the draft project tracking sheet was 
forwarded to the Planning Department who will review and provide feedback to 
the Sub-Committee. 

 
B. By-Laws - Kerwin / Waller 

 
Ms. Kerwin stated the Sub-Committee will meet in the future to discuss By-Laws. 
 
Ms. Kerwin made a presentation of her experience of attending the American 
Planning Association National Conference in San Antonio, Texas. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 2, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

C. Complete Update of Ordinance - Time Line and Milestones - Mark Miller 
 
Mr. Miller stated that a general Zoning Ordinance timeline shall be provided to 
the Planning Commission at a future meeting.  

 
D. Sustainable Development Standards - Khan / Waller 

 
Mr. Khan said the Sub-Committee is making progress on this item. 

 
E. Design Standards and Examples - Khan / Waller 

 
Mr. Khan reported that work on Design Standards will begin following completion 
of Sustainable Development Standards. 

 
F. Promotion of Ingenuity - Mark Miller 

 
Mr. Miller stated that work on this item is ongoing. 

 
G. Educational - Speakers and Presentations to Planning Commission - Strat 

 
LSL Planning will make a presentation on Form Based Codes to the Planning 
Commission on June 6, 2006. 

 
 
8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10.15 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Draft\05-02-06 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 2, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:32 p.m. on May 2, 2006 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts  Lawrence Littman 
Mary Kerwin Wayne Wright 
Fazal Khan 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-070 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Wright and Littman are excused from attendance at 
this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
It was suggested by Mr. Schultz to add ZOTA 219 Conditional Rezoning to discuss 
requiring a site plan as part of a conditional rezoning application.  It was generally 
agreed to add ZOTA 219 as Item #6. 

 
 
3. MINUTES 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-05-071 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the April 25, 2006 Special/Study Meeting be 
approved as printed. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 2, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Waller 
No: None 
Abstain: Vleck 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. MASTER / COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – Presentation by Carlisle/Wortman 

Associates, Inc. 
 
Richard Carlisle and Zack Branigan of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. presented 
their credentials and experience and outlined a general project scope for a new City 
of Troy Master Plan.  
 
General discussion followed. 

 
 
6. ZOTA 219 – Conditional Rezoning  

 
Mr. Schultz requested that the Planning Commission discuss this item to reaffirm 
that Site Plan Approval and/or Special Use Approval may be approved by City 
Council at the same time as the Conditional Rezoning Agreement, following a 
recommendation by the Planning Commission.  The Planning Commission 
generally agreed to add a provision requiring if City Council requires any changes, 
the site plan shall be remanded back to the Planning Commission for consideration 
and recommendation.  The draft ZOTA will be amended to reflect this change. 

 
 
7. SUB-COMMITTEE PROGRESS REPORTS AND DISCUSSION 
 

A. Tracking of Planning and Zoning Projects – Schultz 
 
Mr. Schultz reported that a copy of the draft project tracking sheet was 
forwarded to the Planning Department who will review and provide feedback to 
the Sub-Committee. 

 
B. By-Laws - Kerwin / Waller 

 
Ms. Kerwin stated the Sub-Committee will meet in the future to discuss By-Laws. 
 
Ms. Kerwin made a presentation of her experience of attending the American 
Planning Association National Conference in San Antonio, Texas. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 2, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

C. Complete Update of Ordinance - Time Line and Milestones - Mark Miller 
 
Mr. Miller stated that a general Zoning Ordinance timeline shall be provided to 
the Planning Commission at a future meeting.  

 
D. Sustainable Development Standards - Khan / Waller 

 
Mr. Khan said the Sub-Committee is making progress on this item. 

 
E. Design Standards and Examples - Khan / Waller 

 
Mr. Khan reported that work on Design Standards will begin following completion 
of Sustainable Development Standards. 

 
F. Promotion of Ingenuity - Mark Miller 

 
Mr. Miller stated that work on this item is ongoing. 

 
G. Educational - Speakers and Presentations to Planning Commission - Strat 

 
LSL Planning will make a presentation on Form Based Codes to the Planning 
Commission on June 6, 2006. 

 
 
8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10.15 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Final\05-02-06 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 



Joint Local Development Finance Authority –Troy Subcommittee  - DRAFT MINUTES May 8, 2006 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Joint Local Development Finance Authority – Troy Subcommittee (LDFA) 
was held on Monday, May 8, 2006 at 3:00 P.M., at City Hall in the Council Board Room.   
Beltramini called the meeting to order at 3:06 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: Robin Beltramini, Chair 

Mike Adamczyk (arrived 3:20 p.m.) 
Keith Pretty 
Dennis Toffolo 

 Doug Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 

  
ALSO PRESENT: Lori Grigg-Bluhm, City Attorney 
 Wade Fleming, Councilman (alternate) 

 
 
 
 
VOTE TO APPROVE OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
Resolution # LD-2006-05-001 
Moved by Pretty  
Seconded by Toffolo 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of January 30, 2006 be approved. 
 
Yes:   All – 5 
No:   None 
Absent: Adamczyk 
 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

 
A. Expanding the CTP Boundaries:    

      After a brief discussion, the following resolution was made:   
 
Resolution # LD-2006-05-002 
 
Moved by Toffolo  
Seconded by Pretty 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy LDFA will review the steps necessary to accomplish an expansion of 
the CTP boundaries to include what is currently the SmartZone boundaries.  This item would be 
anticipated for the July meeting.   
 
Yes:   All - 5 
No:   None 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



Joint Local Development Finance Authority –Troy Subcommittee  - DRAFT MINUTES May 8, 2006 
 
 

 2

Absent: Adamczyk 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  
 

A. 2006/07 Budget Approval:  Budget explanation by Doug Smith 
 

Resolution # LD-2006-05-003 
 
Moved by Murphy 
Seconded by Pretty 
 
RESOLVED, That the 2006/07 budget is approved and will be submitted to City Council for final 
approval. 
 
Yes:  All – 6 
No:  None 
Absent None 
 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:30 p.m. 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Robin Beltramini, Meeting Chair 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:34 p.m. on May 9, 2006, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Wayne Wright 
Mary Kerwin 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-072 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Wright is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-073 
Moved by:  Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as presented. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

Chair Strat announced that five (5) affirmative votes are required for approval and 
recommending actions, and the petitioner has the option to postpone the item prior to the 
presentation to the Planning Commission.   

 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
 

4. STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 134-B) – Cherry Street east of Livernois, 
approximately 173 feet abutting Lots 6 and 7, Greenough Heights Subdivision, East 
of Livernois, South of I-75, Section 27 – Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) and R-1E 
(One Family Residential) Districts (the abutting parcels) 
 
Mr. Miller reported the petitioners request a postponement of the item to allow time 
to determine what action they wish to pursue.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-074 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item to the July 
2006 Regular meeting of the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 632-B) – Proposed Condominium 
Development, West side of Rochester Road, North of Wattles, Section 15 – From 
CR-1 (One Family Residential Cluster) to R-1T (One Family Attached Residential) 
District 
 
Mr. Miller said the petitioner informed the Planning Department that the vacant 
parcel to the south has been acquired, and they are in the process of combining the 
parcels.  It is the recommendation of the Planning Department to postpone the item 
to allow for appropriate public hearing notification on the combined parcel.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-075 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this rezoning 
application and continue the Public Hearing to the June 2006 Regular meeting, to 
allow for appropriate public hearing notification on the combined parcel.     
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 335) – Proposed 
Daycare Center, Southeast corner of New King and New King, Section 8, Zoned R-C 
(Research Center) District 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review of the special use request and revised site plan 
application.   
 
Steven Vanden Bossche, 550 Hulet Drive, Bloomfield Hills, was present to 
represent the petitioner and owner.  Mr. Vanden Bossche distributed colored 
elevations and material samples.  He summarized the revisions to the site plan as 
relates to the roof, windows, concrete block, color scheme and landscaping in an 
effort to accommodate the Commission’s wishes that the building appear less 
residential.  He noted The Gale Group is in full agreement with the changes made 
and a letter to that effect is forthcoming.  Mr. Vanden Bossche noted the original set 
of plans were sealed by a registered architect and apologized that the revised plans 
were inadvertently not sealed as required.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Chair Strat addressed the proposed landscaping in terms of quality.  It is his opinion 
that the revisions to the site plan have not changed the appearance of the building.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Schultz said letters from surrounding properties not owned by The Gale Group 
would have been more important.  Mr. Schultz said the revisions to the site plan 
have not changed the appearance of the building other than by color.  He would 
prefer the building to be locationally placed on the site so that the mature trees and 
berm would be saved.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-076 
Moved by: Drake-Batts 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a total of 27 
landbanked parking spaces on the abutting office property.  This permits the 
provision of two hundred seventy eight (278) spaces when three hundred five (305) 
spaces are required on the site based on the off-street parking space requirements 
for offices, as per Article XL.  The landbanked spaces meet the standards of Article 
40.20.13 and will assist the applicant in minimizing the amount of storm water runoff 
on the site.  These spaces shall be constructed should additional parking spaces be 
required.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Special Land Use and Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 26.30.05 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed daycare center, located on the southeast corner of New King and New 
King, Section 8, within the R-C Zoning District, be granted.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman asked if denial of the special use request could be based on the 
concept of saving trees.   
 
Mr. Motzny said the Commission has authority to impose conditions on a Special 
Use Approval that relate to the land.  In this case, the Commission has the authority 
to impose conditions with regard to the trees and what trees may or may not be 
removed.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Khan, Vleck, Waller 
No: Littman, Schultz, Strat 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Littman said the project could have been designed to save trees without causing 
any hardship to the owner.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Schultz said a better product could have been brought forward with respect to 
neighborhood compatibility and landscaping.   
 
Chair Strat agreed with the comments of Messrs. Schultz and Littman.  He believes 
the project will adversely impact the adjacent properties. 
 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 336) – Proposed 
Restaurant, Southeast corner of Livernois and Big Beaver, Section 27, Zoned O-S-C 
(Office Service Commercial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
special use request and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the Special Use Request and Site Plan as submitted.   
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed a potential traffic concern in relation to the proposed 
development’s proximity to the U.S. Post Office.  She noted there were no 
comments from the Transportation Engineer to this regard, and asked what impact 
the proposed development might have in terms of traffic safety.   
 
Mr. Miller said the layout of the U.S. Post Office is a problem in terms of traffic 
safety, and it is his opinion the proposed development would make the traffic 
circulation better.  He noted the proposed development provides a number of 
reasonable and safe driveways.   
 
Tysen McCarthy of Redico, One Towne Square, Southfield, was present.  Mr. 
McCarthy said the revised site plan best serves the needs of the restaurant 
customers and contributes to the long-term viability of the restaurant and long-term 
commitment to the City.  He said they diligently worked with the Planning 
Department to assure all Zoning Ordinance requirements were met.  Mr. McCarthy 
said the plan offers extensive landscaping and is consistent with the surrounding 
environment.  He requested the Commission’s favorable approval.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the landscaping in detail with the petitioner and indicated the 
landscaping is a major concern of his.   
 
Mr. Littman addressed the safety of the southern driveway and asked the petitioner 
if any consideration was given to discourage vehicular traffic from turning 
southbound onto Livernois.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Mr. McCarthy stated an existing traffic sign at the southern driveway designates 
right-hand turn only.   
 
Chris Lavoie, chief engineer and planning consultant for Kona Grill, 4941 Forest 
Avenue, Downers Grove, Illinois, was present.  Mr. Lavoie said they worked with 
City staff and indicated their willingness to incorporate a design to address the 
traffic concern, but there has been no clear direction from the City or any formal 
comments provided from the City’s Traffic Engineer.   
 
Chair Strat expressed concerns with the proposed landscaping and the safety of 
vehicular and pedestrian traffic at the southern driveway.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-077 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
total number of required restaurant parking spaces to one hundred forty five (145) 
when a total of one hundred seventy three (173) spaces are required on the site 
based on the off-street parking space requirements for restaurants, as per Article 
XL.  The Planning Commission also approves a reduction in the number of total 
required parking spaces for the office building and restaurant to one thousand two 
hundred twenty three (1,223) when a total of one thousand four hundred forty one 
(1,441) spaces are required on the site based on the off-street parking space 
requirements for offices and restaurants, as per Article XL.  This reduction meets 
the standards of Article 40.20.12 and will assist the applicant in minimizing the 
amount of storm water runoff on the site. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval and Site Plan 
Approval, pursuant to Section 26.30.05 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for 
the proposed restaurant, located on the southeast corner of Big Beaver and 
Livernois, Section 27, within the O-S-C Zoning District, be granted: 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Khan, Waller 
No: Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION DENIED 
 
Mr. Schultz would prefer the development up against the minimum setback line.  He 
indicated the petitioner only had to agree to place the additional 9 trees to win his 
vote.  With no such offer from the petitioner, Mr. Schultz is opposed to the site plan.   
 
Mr. Vleck said the development’s ingress/egress onto the main road is contrary to 
public safety and poses a dangerous situation.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Littman said the Commission’s responsibility is to protect the health, safety and 
welfare of citizens.  He said the driveway location on Livernois is currently 
dangerous and the proposed development would make it more dangerous.   
 
Chair Strat concurred with the comments. 
 
Mr. McCarthy offered to provide the additional 9 trees suggested by Mr. Schultz.  
He was not aware the procedural format would allow him the opportunity to do so at 
this time.   
 
A motion to reconsider the item was briefly entertained, but not acted upon.   
 
Refer to page 15 for additional action taken on this item.   
 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 714) – Proposed Senior Housing 

Development, North of Long Lake, East side of I-75, Section 9 – From R-1B (One 
Family Residential) to R-EC (Residential Elder Care) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning request and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
deny the request.  There were five letters of opposition distributed to the members 
prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.   
 
David Donnellon of Design Resources, 755 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, was present 
to represent the petitioner (purchaser of subject property) and Kamax (seller of 
subject property).  Mr. Donnellon said both purchaser and seller understand the 
needs of the neighborhood.  He addressed (1) transitional zoning/use; (2) traffic; 
i.e., construction and delivery service through Kamax off of Long Lake Road; (3) 
density; (4) wetlands; and (5) development phases of the project.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts asked if Kamax is the owner or tenant of the building, if the right of 
first refusal to Choice Development Corporation is in writing and if the petitioner met 
with the neighbors to discuss the proposed development.   
 
Mr. Donnellon replied that Kamax owns the building and the right of first refusal is in 
writing.  Mr. Donnellon said there have been conversations with the neighbors, but 
no meetings have been held.   
 
Mr. Waller asked when the agreement with Kamax on the through-traffic was 
achieved.   
 
Mr. Donnellon said the agreement was recently reached and had not been shared 
with the Planning Department prior to tonight’s meeting.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Motzny confirmed the Commission’s responsibility this evening is to act upon the 
rezoning request, and no consideration should be given to the proposed site plan.  He 
noted the Commission has no authority to impose any conditions on the rezoning 
request. 
 
Prior to opening the Public Hearing, Chair Strat asked that comments be limited to 
three minutes per speaker and not be repetitive in content. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Jennifer Gasiecki of 196 Stalwart, Troy, was present.  Ms. Gasiecki spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning.  She expressed concerns with traffic, 
preservation of trees, safety and noise.   
 
J. Mark Brown of 467 McKinley, Troy, was present.  Mr. Brown distributed copies of 
a letter in opposition of the proposed rezoning.  He said the proposed development 
does not comply with the City’s future land use plan and would have a negative 
impact on the neighborhood.   
 
Charles Jackson of 405 West Square Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Jackson 
spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning.  He addressed safety of children, cut-
through traffic and density.   
 
P. J. Cumming of 5375 Daniels Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Cumming spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning.  Ms. Cumming is a commercial interior 
designer who specializes in senior and elderly care.  She expressed a strong 
concern with ambulance traffic on a round-the-clock basis.  Ms. Cumming also 
addressed the wildlife in the area.   
 
Vince Pangle of 5235 Wright Street, Troy, was present.  Mr. Pangle spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning.  He addressed land use, transitional zoning, 
density, traffic, and future development should the senior facility close.  Mr. Pangle 
questioned the petitioner’s qualifications to run a senior facility and suggested the 
land be bought and developed as a platted subdivision. 
 
Blaine Dixon of 80 Stalwart, Troy, was present.  Ms. Dixon spoke in opposition of 
the proposed rezoning.  She expressed concerns with neighborhood compatibility 
and characteristics, safety, traffic and wildlife. 
 
Roy Bray of 5580 Houghten, Troy, was present.  Mr. Bray spoke in opposition of the 
proposed rezoning.  He addressed city services and the potential disruption of those 
services to the existing neighborhood. 
 
Ron Marceau of 5600 Houghten, Troy, was present.  Mr. Marceau spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning.  He expressed concerns with construction 
noise, parking and density.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Donnellon requested that the item be tabled to the next meeting to provide an 
opportunity to address concerns expressed tonight by the neighbors.  
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-078 
Moved by: Drake-Batts 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the rezoning request to the June 2006 Regular meeting 
so the petitioner can meet with residents and figure out if there is a good solution for 
everybody.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Kerwin, Littman 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Kerwin said her concern is the disturbance and noise from emergency vehicular 
traffic (ambulance, fire and EMS). 
 
Mr. Littman said discussions with the neighbors would be on issues that are not 
related to the consideration of the rezoning request.   
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:55 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:06 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 717) – Proposed 
Medical/General Office Building, Northwest corner of Lovell and Rochester Road, 
Section 3 – From R-1C (One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
rezoning application.   
 
The petitioner, Franco Mancini of 47858 Van Dyke, Shelby Township, was present.  
Mr. Mancini addressed the proposed medical use and its transition to the residential 
environment.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was brief discussion on the number of building stories allowed in the O-1 
zoning district. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-079 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Lovell and Rochester Road, within Section 3, being approximately 1 acre in size, be 
granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 718) – Proposed Curves Weight 
Management and Work Out Facility, North of Maple, West side of Livernois (1631 
Livernois), Section 28 – From O-1 (Low Rise Office) to B-3 (General Business) 
District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
rezoning application.   
 
Mr. Savidant pointed out that a letter from John Gonway addressing the rezoning 
request was distributed to the members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting. 
 
The petitioner, Beth Anne Beattie of 37756 Gregory Drive, Sterling Heights, was 
present.  Ms. Beattie said there would be no alternations to the existing property; 
the property would stay as-is.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-05-080 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the O-1 to B-3 rezoning request, located north of Maple, on the west 
side of Livernois, within Section 28, being approximately 14,250 square feet in size, 
be granted.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT REQUEST 
(ZOTA 219) – Articles II and III, Conditional Rezoning 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the recent revisions incorporated in the proposed zoning 
ordinance language and provided an overall summary of the conditional rezoning 
concept for the benefit of the audience.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05 – 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles II and III of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, pertaining to 
Conditional Rezoning, be amended as printed on the Proposed Zoning Ordinance 
Text Amendment, Planning Commission Public Hearing Draft, dated May 2, 2006.  
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
There was discussion on Section 03.24.02 (B), Standards for Approval.   
 
Mr. Savidant introduced incorporation of the following language:  “The conditions of 
the proposed development and/or proposed use are not in material conflict with the 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Future Land Use Plan or are made conflicting due to a change in conditions, a change 
in City policy, or a mistake in the Future Land Use Plan.” 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-081 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item to the next Special/Study meeting scheduled on 
the last Tuesday of May, to allow time to revise the document and on which a vote can 
be taken at that time.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

STREET VACATION 
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 186) – Deinmore 
Avenue abutting lots 95 to 102 and 105 to 112 of Beaver Hills Subdivision and 
Stalwart Avenue abutting lots 97 and 99 and 109 and 110 of Beaver Hills 
Subdivision, Section 9 – Currently Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts 
(the abutting parcels) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed street vacation request and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to postpone the street vacation request until such time that the 
property is consolidated into one future development.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Vince Pangle of 5235 Wright Street, Troy, was present.  Mr. Pangle spoke in 
opposition of the street vacation request.  He addressed the platting process of site 
condominium and subdivision developments.   
 
Mr. Motzny addressed Mr. Pangle’s comments relating to the platting process.  Mr. 
Motzny explained a recent court decision upheld a site condominium development 
could be placed over a plat without the necessity to vacate the plat; however, to 
vacate a plat still requires Circuit Court action.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-05-082 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the street vacation (SV 186) request is hereby postponed until 
such time that the property is consolidated into one future development.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

13. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 348-B) – Proposed Retail Plaza, North of Big Beaver, 
West side of Rochester Road (3385 Rochester Road – Former Taco Bell Site), 
Section 22, B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed retail plaza and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted.   
 
Elias Madi of DeMattia Associates Architects, 5608 Perry Tower Drive, West 
Bloomfield, was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Madi said the proposed 
development meets all City requirements and would be a nice addition to the area.  
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-083 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Retail Plaza, located on the west side of Rochester Road, north of Big Beaver, 
located in Section 22, on approximately 0.53 acres, within the B-3 zoning district, is 
hereby granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

14. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 689-B) – Proposed Addition to Behr America, South of 
Big Beaver, East and West sides of Daley (2700-2852 Daley), Section 26, M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed addition to Behr America and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the site plan as submitted.   
 
Phil Tocco of 5645 Winslow Court, Ypsilanti, was present to represent Behr 
America.  Mr. Tocco is an employee of Behr America in Troy.  He provided a brief 
overview of the proposed addition and addressed environmentally friendly 
recommendations of the City’s Environmental Specialist.   
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the proposed landscape plan in relation to providing a pocket 
park along Big Beaver Road.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-084 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Addition to Behr America, located south of Big Beaver, on the east and west sides 
of Daley, located in Section 26, on approximately 11.7 acres, within the M-1 zoning 
district, is hereby granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

15. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts asked a favor of Mr. Motzny and City Attorney Lori Bluhm in assisting the 
Chair in the correct pronunciation of her name.   
 
Mr. Miller provided information on the Maple Road presentation by Lawrence 
Technological University students.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

Ms. Kerwin addressed a novel approach of inside parking she observed in San Antonio.   
 
Mr. Schultz commended the Handleman Company on planting replacement trees for the 
emerald ash trees that were removed.   
 
Mr. Schultz addressed agenda item #7, Special Use Request (SU 336), for the Kona Grill 
restaurant located on the southeast corner of Livernois and Big Beaver. 

___________ 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-085 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, To reconsider agenda item #7 special use request on tonight’s meeting for 
Kona Grill located on the southeast corner of Livernois and Big Beaver.   
 
Yes: Kerwin, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Waller 
No: Drake-Batts, Littman, Vleck 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-086 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required restaurant parking spaces to one hundred forty five (145) when a 
total of one hundred seventy three (173) spaces are required on the site based on the 
off-street parking space requirements for restaurants, as per Article XL.  The Planning 
Commission also approves a reduction in the number of total required parking spaces 
for the office building and restaurant to one thousand two hundred twenty three (1,223) 
when a total of one thousand four hundred forty one (1,441) spaces are required on the 
site based on the off-street parking space requirements for offices and restaurants, as 
per Article XL.  This reduction meets the standards of Article 40.20.12 and will assist 
the applicant in minimizing the amount of storm water runoff on the site. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval and Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 26.30.05 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed 
restaurant, located on the southeast corner of Big Beaver and Livernois, Section 27, 
within the O-S-C Zoning District, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The addition of a minimum of nine (9) trees of an appropriate species along the 

north side of the south driveway and in the triangularly-shaped island along the east 
boundary edge of the restaurant’s parking lot. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

Discussion on the substitute motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Schultz provided an explanation for bringing the agenda item back on the floor. 
 
Mr. Motzny outlined the procedure to follow for a substitute motion.   
 
Mr. Littman offered the following amendment to the substitute motion on the floor. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-087 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the southern driveway be designed with some type of impediment to 
making turns onto southbound Livernois from that driveway. 
 
Discussion on the amendment to the substitute motion on the floor. 
 
Discussion followed on the purview of traffic control devices and the enforcement of 
related conditions placed on special use approvals.   
 
 
Vote on the amendment to the substitute motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Khan 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Vote to approve motion on the floor, as amended, as substitute motion. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Vleck, Waller 
No: Khan, Strat 
Absent: Wright 
 
 
Vote on the amended substitute motion. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Vleck, Waller 
No: Khan, Strat 
Absent: Wright 
 

___________ 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

Good of the Order (continued) 
 
Mr. Littman requested from the City Attorney’s office clarification between postponing and 
tabling actions.   
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief report on City Council agenda items:  (1) ZOTA 215-A 
Accessory Buildings and (2) PUD 5 Caswell Town Center.  
 
Mr. Motzny addressed the difference between a tabling action and a postponing action.   
 
Mr. Khan said he voted no on the Kona Grill agenda item because the petitioner was not 
present for the discussion and action by the Planning Commission.   
 
Chair Strat agreed the petitioner should be present.   
 
 
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:33 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Draft\05-09-06 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:34 p.m. on May 9, 2006, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Wayne Wright 
Mary Kerwin 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-072 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Wright is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-073 
Moved by:  Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as presented. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

Chair Strat announced that five (5) affirmative votes are required for approval and 
recommending actions, and the petitioner has the option to postpone the item prior to the 
presentation to the Planning Commission.   

 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
 

4. STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 134-B) – Cherry Street east of Livernois, 
approximately 173 feet abutting Lots 6 and 7, Greenough Heights Subdivision, East 
of Livernois, South of I-75, Section 27 – Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) and R-1E 
(One Family Residential) Districts (the abutting parcels) 
 
Mr. Miller reported the petitioners request a postponement of the item to allow time 
to determine what action they wish to pursue.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-074 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item to the July 
2006 Regular meeting of the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 632-B) – Proposed Condominium 
Development, West side of Rochester Road, North of Wattles, Section 15 – From 
CR-1 (One Family Residential Cluster) to R-1T (One Family Attached Residential) 
District 
 
Mr. Miller said the petitioner informed the Planning Department that the vacant 
parcel to the south has been acquired, and they are in the process of combining the 
parcels.  It is the recommendation of the Planning Department to postpone the item 
to allow for appropriate public hearing notification on the combined parcel.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-075 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this rezoning 
application and continue the Public Hearing to the June 2006 Regular meeting, to 
allow for appropriate public hearing notification on the combined parcel.     
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 335) – Proposed 
Daycare Center, Southeast corner of New King and New King, Section 8, Zoned R-C 
(Research Center) District 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review of the special use request and revised site plan 
application.   
 
Steven Vanden Bossche, 550 Hulet Drive, Bloomfield Hills, was present to 
represent the petitioner and owner.  Mr. Vanden Bossche distributed colored 
elevations and material samples.  He summarized the revisions to the site plan as 
relates to the roof, windows, concrete block, color scheme and landscaping in an 
effort to accommodate the Commission’s wishes that the building appear less 
residential.  He noted The Gale Group is in full agreement with the changes made 
and a letter to that effect is forthcoming.  Mr. Vanden Bossche noted the original set 
of plans were sealed by a registered architect and apologized that the revised plans 
were inadvertently not sealed as required.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Chair Strat addressed the proposed landscaping in terms of quality.  It is his opinion 
that the revisions to the site plan have not changed the appearance of the building.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Schultz said letters from surrounding properties not owned by The Gale Group 
would have been more important.  Mr. Schultz said the revisions to the site plan 
have not changed the appearance of the building other than by color.  He would 
prefer the building to be locationally placed on the site so that the mature trees and 
berm would be saved.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-076 
Moved by: Drake-Batts 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a total of 27 
landbanked parking spaces on the abutting office property.  This permits the 
provision of two hundred seventy eight (278) spaces when three hundred five (305) 
spaces are required on the site based on the off-street parking space requirements 
for offices, as per Article XL.  The landbanked spaces meet the standards of Article 
40.20.13 and will assist the applicant in minimizing the amount of storm water runoff 
on the site.  These spaces shall be constructed should additional parking spaces be 
required.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Special Land Use and Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 26.30.05 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed daycare center, located on the southeast corner of New King and New 
King, Section 8, within the R-C Zoning District, be granted.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman asked if denial of the special use request could be based on the 
concept of saving trees.   
 
Mr. Motzny said the Commission has authority to impose conditions on a Special 
Use Approval that relate to the land.  In this case, the Commission has the authority 
to impose conditions with regard to the trees and what trees may or may not be 
removed.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Khan, Vleck, Waller 
No: Littman, Schultz, Strat 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Littman said the project could have been designed to save trees without causing 
any hardship to the owner.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Schultz said a better product could have been brought forward with respect to 
neighborhood compatibility and landscaping.   
 
Chair Strat agreed with the comments of Messrs. Schultz and Littman.  He believes 
the project will adversely impact the adjacent properties. 
 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 336) – Proposed 
Restaurant, Southeast corner of Livernois and Big Beaver, Section 27, Zoned O-S-C 
(Office Service Commercial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
special use request and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the Special Use Request and Site Plan as submitted.   
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed a potential traffic concern in relation to the proposed 
development’s proximity to the U.S. Post Office.  She noted there were no 
comments from the Transportation Engineer to this regard, and asked what impact 
the proposed development might have in terms of traffic safety.   
 
Mr. Miller said the layout of the U.S. Post Office is a problem in terms of traffic 
safety, and it is his opinion the proposed development would make the traffic 
circulation better.  He noted the proposed development provides a number of 
reasonable and safe driveways.   
 
Tysen McCarthy of Redico, One Towne Square, Southfield, was present.  Mr. 
McCarthy said the revised site plan best serves the needs of the restaurant 
customers and contributes to the long-term viability of the restaurant and long-term 
commitment to the City.  He said they diligently worked with the Planning 
Department to assure all Zoning Ordinance requirements were met.  Mr. McCarthy 
said the plan offers extensive landscaping and is consistent with the surrounding 
environment.  He requested the Commission’s favorable approval.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the landscaping in detail with the petitioner and indicated the 
landscaping is a major concern of his.   
 
Mr. Littman addressed the safety of the southern driveway and asked the petitioner 
if any consideration was given to discourage vehicular traffic from turning 
southbound onto Livernois.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Mr. McCarthy stated an existing traffic sign at the southern driveway designates 
right-hand turn only.   
 
Chris Lavoie, chief engineer and planning consultant for Kona Grill, 4941 Forest 
Avenue, Downers Grove, Illinois, was present.  Mr. Lavoie said they worked with 
City staff and indicated their willingness to incorporate a design to address the 
traffic concern, but there has been no clear direction from the City or any formal 
comments provided from the City’s Traffic Engineer.   
 
Chair Strat expressed concerns with the proposed landscaping and the safety of 
vehicular and pedestrian traffic at the southern driveway.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-077 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
total number of required restaurant parking spaces to one hundred forty five (145) 
when a total of one hundred seventy three (173) spaces are required on the site 
based on the off-street parking space requirements for restaurants, as per Article 
XL.  The Planning Commission also approves a reduction in the number of total 
required parking spaces for the office building and restaurant to one thousand two 
hundred twenty three (1,223) when a total of one thousand four hundred forty one 
(1,441) spaces are required on the site based on the off-street parking space 
requirements for offices and restaurants, as per Article XL.  This reduction meets 
the standards of Article 40.20.12 and will assist the applicant in minimizing the 
amount of storm water runoff on the site. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval and Site Plan 
Approval, pursuant to Section 26.30.05 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for 
the proposed restaurant, located on the southeast corner of Big Beaver and 
Livernois, Section 27, within the O-S-C Zoning District, be granted: 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Khan, Waller 
No: Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION DENIED 
 
Mr. Schultz would prefer the development up against the minimum setback line.  He 
indicated the petitioner only had to agree to place the additional 9 trees to win his 
vote.  With no such offer from the petitioner, Mr. Schultz is opposed to the site plan.   
 
Mr. Vleck said the development’s ingress/egress onto the main road is contrary to 
public safety and poses a dangerous situation.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Littman said the Commission’s responsibility is to protect the health, safety and 
welfare of citizens.  He said the driveway location on Livernois is currently 
dangerous and the proposed development would make it more dangerous.   
 
Chair Strat concurred with the comments. 
 
Mr. McCarthy offered to provide the additional 9 trees suggested by Mr. Schultz.  
He was not aware the procedural format would allow him the opportunity to do so at 
this time.   
 
A motion to reconsider the item was briefly entertained, but not acted upon.   
 
Refer to page 15 for additional action taken on this item.   
 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 714) – Proposed Senior Housing 

Development, North of Long Lake, East side of I-75, Section 9 – From R-1B (One 
Family Residential) to R-EC (Residential Elder Care) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning request and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
deny the request.  There were five letters of opposition distributed to the members 
prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.   
 
David Donnellon of Design Resources, 755 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, was present 
to represent the petitioner (purchaser of subject property) and Kamax (seller of 
subject property).  Mr. Donnellon said both purchaser and seller understand the 
needs of the neighborhood.  He addressed (1) transitional zoning/use; (2) traffic; 
i.e., construction and delivery service through Kamax off of Long Lake Road; (3) 
density; (4) wetlands; and (5) development phases of the project.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts asked if Kamax is the owner or tenant of the building, if the right of 
first refusal to Choice Development Corporation is in writing and if the petitioner met 
with the neighbors to discuss the proposed development.   
 
Mr. Donnellon replied that Kamax owns the building and the right of first refusal is in 
writing.  Mr. Donnellon said there have been conversations with the neighbors, but 
no meetings have been held.   
 
Mr. Waller asked when the agreement with Kamax on the through-traffic was 
achieved.   
 
Mr. Donnellon said the agreement was recently reached and had not been shared 
with the Planning Department prior to tonight’s meeting.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Motzny confirmed the Commission’s responsibility this evening is to act upon the 
rezoning request, and no consideration should be given to the proposed site plan.  He 
noted the Commission has no authority to impose any conditions on the rezoning 
request. 
 
Prior to opening the Public Hearing, Chair Strat asked that comments be limited to 
three minutes per speaker and not be repetitive in content. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Jennifer Gasiecki of 196 Stalwart, Troy, was present.  Ms. Gasiecki spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning.  She expressed concerns with traffic, 
preservation of trees, safety and noise.   
 
J. Mark Brown of 467 McKinley, Troy, was present.  Mr. Brown distributed copies of 
a letter in opposition of the proposed rezoning.  He said the proposed development 
does not comply with the City’s future land use plan and would have a negative 
impact on the neighborhood.   
 
Charles Jackson of 405 West Square Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Jackson 
spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning.  He addressed safety of children, cut-
through traffic and density.   
 
P. J. Cumming of 5375 Daniels Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Cumming spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning.  Ms. Cumming is a commercial interior 
designer who specializes in senior and elderly care.  She expressed a strong 
concern with ambulance traffic on a round-the-clock basis.  Ms. Cumming also 
addressed the wildlife in the area.   
 
Vince Pangle of 5235 Wright Street, Troy, was present.  Mr. Pangle spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning.  He addressed land use, transitional zoning, 
density, traffic, and future development should the senior facility close.  Mr. Pangle 
questioned the petitioner’s qualifications to run a senior facility and suggested the 
land be bought and developed as a platted subdivision. 
 
Blaine Dixon of 80 Stalwart, Troy, was present.  Ms. Dixon spoke in opposition of 
the proposed rezoning.  She expressed concerns with neighborhood compatibility 
and characteristics, safety, traffic and wildlife. 
 
Roy Bray of 5580 Houghten, Troy, was present.  Mr. Bray spoke in opposition of the 
proposed rezoning.  He addressed city services and the potential disruption of those 
services to the existing neighborhood. 
 
Ron Marceau of 5600 Houghten, Troy, was present.  Mr. Marceau spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning.  He expressed concerns with construction 
noise, parking and density.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Donnellon requested that the item be tabled to the next meeting to provide an 
opportunity to address concerns expressed tonight by the neighbors.  
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-078 
Moved by: Drake-Batts 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the rezoning request to the June 2006 Regular meeting 
so the petitioner can meet with residents and figure out if there is a good solution for 
everybody.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Kerwin, Littman 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Kerwin said her concern is the disturbance and noise from emergency vehicular 
traffic (ambulance, fire and EMS). 
 
Mr. Littman said discussions with the neighbors would be on issues that are not 
related to the consideration of the rezoning request.   
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:55 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:06 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 717) – Proposed 
Medical/General Office Building, Northwest corner of Lovell and Rochester Road, 
Section 3 – From R-1C (One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
rezoning application.   
 
The petitioner, Franco Mancini of 47858 Van Dyke, Shelby Township, was present.  
Mr. Mancini addressed the proposed medical use and its transition to the residential 
environment.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was brief discussion on the number of building stories allowed in the O-1 
zoning district. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-079 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Lovell and Rochester Road, within Section 3, being approximately 1 acre in size, be 
granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 718) – Proposed Curves Weight 
Management and Work Out Facility, North of Maple, West side of Livernois (1631 
Livernois), Section 28 – From O-1 (Low Rise Office) to B-3 (General Business) 
District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
rezoning application.   
 
Mr. Savidant pointed out that a letter from John Gonway addressing the rezoning 
request was distributed to the members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting. 
 
The petitioner, Beth Anne Beattie of 37756 Gregory Drive, Sterling Heights, was 
present.  Ms. Beattie said there would be no alternations to the existing property; 
the property would stay as-is.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-05-080 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the O-1 to B-3 rezoning request, located north of Maple, on the west 
side of Livernois, within Section 28, being approximately 14,250 square feet in size, 
be granted.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT REQUEST 
(ZOTA 219) – Articles II and III, Conditional Rezoning 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the recent revisions incorporated in the proposed zoning 
ordinance language and provided an overall summary of the conditional rezoning 
concept for the benefit of the audience.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05 – 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles II and III of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, pertaining to 
Conditional Rezoning, be amended as printed on the Proposed Zoning Ordinance 
Text Amendment, Planning Commission Public Hearing Draft, dated May 2, 2006.  
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
There was discussion on Section 03.24.02 (B), Standards for Approval.   
 
Mr. Savidant introduced incorporation of the following language:  “The conditions of 
the proposed development and/or proposed use are not in material conflict with the 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Future Land Use Plan or are made conflicting due to a change in conditions, a change 
in City policy, or a mistake in the Future Land Use Plan.” 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-081 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item to the next Special/Study meeting scheduled on 
the last Tuesday of May, to allow time to revise the document and on which a vote can 
be taken at that time.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

STREET VACATION 
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 186) – Deinmore 
Avenue abutting lots 95 to 102 and 105 to 112 of Beaver Hills Subdivision and 
Stalwart Avenue abutting lots 97 and 99 and 109 and 110 of Beaver Hills 
Subdivision, Section 9 – Currently Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts 
(the abutting parcels) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed street vacation request and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to postpone the street vacation request until such time that the 
property is consolidated into one future development.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Vince Pangle of 5235 Wright Street, Troy, was present.  Mr. Pangle spoke in 
opposition of the street vacation request.  He addressed the platting process of site 
condominium and subdivision developments.   
 
Mr. Motzny addressed Mr. Pangle’s comments relating to the platting process.  Mr. 
Motzny explained a recent court decision upheld a site condominium development 
could be placed over a plat without the necessity to vacate the plat; however, to 
vacate a plat still requires Circuit Court action.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-05-082 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the street vacation (SV 186) request is hereby postponed until 
such time that the property is consolidated into one future development.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

13. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 348-B) – Proposed Retail Plaza, North of Big Beaver, 
West side of Rochester Road (3385 Rochester Road – Former Taco Bell Site), 
Section 22, B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed retail plaza and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted.   
 
Elias Madi of DeMattia Associates Architects, 5608 Perry Tower Drive, West 
Bloomfield, was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Madi said the proposed 
development meets all City requirements and would be a nice addition to the area.  
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-083 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Retail Plaza, located on the west side of Rochester Road, north of Big Beaver, 
located in Section 22, on approximately 0.53 acres, within the B-3 zoning district, is 
hereby granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

14. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 689-B) – Proposed Addition to Behr America, South of 
Big Beaver, East and West sides of Daley (2700-2852 Daley), Section 26, M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed addition to Behr America and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the site plan as submitted.   
 
Phil Tocco of 5645 Winslow Court, Ypsilanti, was present to represent Behr 
America.  Mr. Tocco is an employee of Behr America in Troy.  He provided a brief 
overview of the proposed addition and addressed environmentally friendly 
recommendations of the City’s Environmental Specialist.   
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the proposed landscape plan in relation to providing a pocket 
park along Big Beaver Road.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-084 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Addition to Behr America, located south of Big Beaver, on the east and west sides 
of Daley, located in Section 26, on approximately 11.7 acres, within the M-1 zoning 
district, is hereby granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

15. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts asked a favor of Mr. Motzny and City Attorney Lori Bluhm in assisting the 
Chair in the correct pronunciation of her name.   
 
Mr. Miller provided information on the Maple Road presentation by Lawrence 
Technological University students.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

Ms. Kerwin addressed a novel approach of inside parking she observed in San Antonio.   
 
Mr. Schultz commended the Handleman Company on planting replacement trees for the 
emerald ash trees that were removed.   
 
Mr. Schultz addressed agenda item #7, Special Use Request (SU 336), for the Kona Grill 
restaurant located on the southeast corner of Livernois and Big Beaver. 

___________ 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-085 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, To reconsider agenda item #7 special use request on tonight’s meeting for 
Kona Grill located on the southeast corner of Livernois and Big Beaver.   
 
Yes: Kerwin, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Waller 
No: Drake-Batts, Littman, Vleck 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-086 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required restaurant parking spaces to one hundred forty five (145) when a 
total of one hundred seventy three (173) spaces are required on the site based on the 
off-street parking space requirements for restaurants, as per Article XL.  The Planning 
Commission also approves a reduction in the number of total required parking spaces 
for the office building and restaurant to one thousand two hundred twenty three (1,223) 
when a total of one thousand four hundred forty one (1,441) spaces are required on the 
site based on the off-street parking space requirements for offices and restaurants, as 
per Article XL.  This reduction meets the standards of Article 40.20.12 and will assist 
the applicant in minimizing the amount of storm water runoff on the site. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval and Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 26.30.05 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed 
restaurant, located on the southeast corner of Big Beaver and Livernois, Section 27, 
within the O-S-C Zoning District, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The addition of a minimum of nine (9) trees of an appropriate species along the 

north side of the south driveway and in the triangularly-shaped island along the east 
boundary edge of the restaurant’s parking lot. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

Discussion on the substitute motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Schultz provided an explanation for bringing the agenda item back on the floor. 
 
Mr. Motzny outlined the procedure to follow for a substitute motion.   
 
Mr. Littman offered the following amendment to the substitute motion on the floor. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-087 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the southern driveway be designed with some type of impediment to 
making turns onto southbound Livernois from that driveway. 
 
Discussion on the amendment to the substitute motion on the floor. 
 
Discussion followed on the purview of traffic control devices and the enforcement of 
related conditions placed on special use approvals.   
 
 
Vote on the amendment to the substitute motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Khan 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Vote to approve motion on the floor, as amended, as substitute motion. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Vleck, Waller 
No: Khan, Strat 
Absent: Wright 
 
 
Vote on the amended substitute motion. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Vleck, Waller 
No: Khan, Strat 
Absent: Wright 
 

___________ 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 9, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

Good of the Order (continued) 
 
Mr. Littman requested from the City Attorney’s office clarification between postponing and 
tabling actions.   
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief report on City Council agenda items:  (1) ZOTA 215-A 
Accessory Buildings and (2) PUD 5 Caswell Town Center.  
 
Mr. Motzny addressed the difference between a tabling action and a postponing action.   
 
Mr. Khan said he voted no on the Kona Grill agenda item because the petitioner was not 
present for the discussion and action by the Planning Commission.   
 
Chair Strat agreed the petitioner should be present.   
 
 
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:33 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Final\05-09-06 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft May 10, 2006 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, May 10, 2006, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:13 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice   
 Michael Geise 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need (Ex-Officio) 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 Louise Schilling  
   
 
ALSO PRESENT: Steve Gasper, UBS Financial Services   
 
 
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2006 – 05 - 017 
Moved by Pallotta   
Seconded by Schilling 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the April 12, 2006 meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All  6 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – RETIREMENT REQUESTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2006 – 05 - 018 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Houghton 
 
RESOLVED, That the board approve the following retirement request(s): 
 
John P. Schroeder, DB, 6/3/06, Engineering, 35 years, 3 months  
 
Yeas:  All 6 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – DECEMBER 31, 2005 INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
Steve Gasper of UBS reviewed the performance results as of December 31, 2005. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft May 10, 2006 
 
 

 2

INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2006 – 05 - 019 
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board sell the following securities:   
 
Sell:   Independent Bank Corp.; 13,000 shares of DR Horton; MASCO; Maxim 

Integrated Products and Methode Electronics 
 
Yeas:  All  6 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – CANCELLATION OF THE JUNE 14TH MEETING 
 
Resolution # ER – 2006 – 05 - 020 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That the June 14th, 2006 meeting be canceled and rescheduled for June 13th, 
2006. 
 
Yeas:  All 6  
 
 
 
 
 
 
The next meeting is June 13, 2006 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:15 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2006\5-10-06 Minutes_Draft.doc 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   May 24, 2006 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on May 24, 2006 at 7:00 PM at the 
Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois.  Katie Thoenes and Nicole Vitale called the 
meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski  

Andrew Corey 
Maxine D’Amico  
Rishi Joshi 
Jia (Lisa) Luo  
Anupama Prasad (Secretary) 
Joseph Niemiec  
Kristin Randall  
Neil Shaw 
Katie Thoenes (Co-chair) 
Nicole Vitale(Co-chair) 
Karen Wullaert , Late  

MEMBERS ABSENT: Jessica Kraft    
VISITORS: Troy Youth Council Applicants 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2006-05-06 
  Moved by   Bozimowski 
  Seconded by  Corey 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of April 26, 2006 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 11 
            No:       None  
  Absent:  2  - Kraft, Wullaert 
 
3.   Report: Updated through April meeting - To note and file 
 
4. Interviews: Applicants to the TYC 

4 candidates were interviewed.  6 applicants were on file.  All applicants were 
considered, including those who were not present at the interviews.  Interviews lasted 
approximately three minutes each.  The list of applicants is below.   
 
*Highlighted names denote absence from the interviews. 

 
Last  Name First Name Grade High School 

Desai Nikita 9 Troy High 
DeSantis Adam 11 Athens High 
Gabriel Alex 11 U of D Jesuit High 
Krishna Arthi 10 International Academy High 
Serkh Kirill  11 International Academy High 
Subramanian Shruthi 9 Troy High 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   May 24, 2006 
 
 

 2

5. Resolution to Recommend 1 Applicant for Seat on the Troy Youth Council 
 Resolution # TY-2006-05-07 

  Moved by   Niemiec 
  Seconded by  Bozimowski 

 
RESOLVED, That Alex Gabriel is recommended for appointment to fill the 
vacant seat on the Troy Youth Council. 

  Yes:  12  
  No:  0  
  Absent: 1 - Kraft 
 
  Resolution # TY-2006-05-08 
  Moved by   Bozimowski 
  Seconded by  Niemiec 

 
RESOLVED, That Arthi Krishna is recommended as alternate for appointment 
to fill the vacant seat on the Troy Youth Council.  This recommendation will be 
used should the applicant in the previous resolution not fulfill committment. 

  Yes:  12 
  No:  0 
  Absent: 1 - Kraft 

 
6. Futures Process 

Committee representatives reported the end results of each committee and 
plan on attending the final meeting scheduled for June 8 at the Community  
Center.  

 
7.  Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2006-05-09 

  Moved by  Corey 
  Seconded by  Niemiec 

  
 RESOLVED that Jessica Kraft is excused. 

  Yes:  12 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  1 – Kraft  
 
8.  Troy Daze Festival Update –  

-Corey reported that Officer Kaptur contacted him requesting that he join her 
during the final hour on Friday or Saturday to get a better understanding of 
Police duties during the festival and reasons for the changes in 2006.   
-Youth Council members are asked to volunteer during the Troy Daze Festival 
again this year.  Detailed information will come in August. 

 
9. Youth Council Comments –  

Lisa Luo thanked the members of Youth Council and expressed her enjoyment 
over the past year.  Lisa will be attending the University of Michigan in the fall.  
Council members thanked Lisa and wished her luck. 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   May 24, 2006 
 
 

 3

 
10. Public Comments - None 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:55 P.M.   
 
_______________________________________ 
Katie Thoenes, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

Reminder Next Meeting: August 30 at 7:00 P.M. @ Troy Community Center 



campbellld
Text Box
J-02a

























campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-04a



campbellld
Text Box
J-04b







campbellld
Text Box
J-04c



mccombca
Text Box
J-05







campbellld
Text Box
J-06





campbellld
Text Box
J-07

















































































May 22, 2006 
 
 
To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item:  Fee Waiver Policy for Military Personnel on Leave 
 
Recommendation 
The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommends the City Council adopt 
the Fee Waiver Policy for Active Military Personnel on Leave as outlined below. 
 
Background 
Eligibility:  Troy residents who are active members of the U.S. Armed Forces, 
Reserve, or National Guard.  “Active Service” shall mean full-time or part-time 
status in one of the branches of the U.S. military forces.  Inactive status does not 
qualify.   
 
Active members of the Armed Services, Reserve or National Guard who have 
returned to Troy for no longer than 30 days for either leave or furlough are 
eligible for fee waivers of the following: 
 

• Community Center Fitness Areas 
• Troy Family Aquatic Center 
• Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses (no more than eight free 

rounds) 
 
Proof required: 

1) U.S. Armed Forces Identification Card showing active status 
AND 

2) Authorized leave or furlough orders 
 
Resolution # PR–2006–05–010 
Moved by Hauff 
Seconded by Dixon 
 
Resolved, That in a show of support for active military residents, the Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Board recommends the waiver of fees for the Community 
Center, Troy Family Aquatic Center, Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake golf 
courses.   
 
Yes:  All 
No  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-08



 
 
 
 
TO:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 
DATE:  May 23, 2006 
 
RE:  Agenda Item: Request to Enter into Agreement to Place a  

Cell Tower at Station 6 
 
 
 
Attached please find a letter from ETENCER, representing T-Mobile.  T-Mobile is 
interested in placing an 80’ to 85’ cell tower at Station 6, and entering into a land lease 
agreement with the City of Troy. 
 
Staff has reviewed the proposed tower to tentatively determine if the request would 
impede our use of the property, and would meet with the limits of the City ordinance.  
The suggested location, as presented in the attached documents, does not appear to 
impede with our current or future use of the property.  It also appears that the request 
could meet the height-setback restrictions as outlined in Chapter 39.  Additional 
information will be required of the requestor to make a final determination. 
 
Absent any concerns from Council, City management will pursue an agreement for the 
placement of a cell tower at this location, provided that the request meets with the 
applicable conditions of Chapter 39. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEMS\2006\06.05.06 - Request to Enter into an Agreement to Place a Cell Tower at Station 6 

campbellld
Text Box
J-09









campbellld
Text Box
J-10



campbellld
Text Box
K-01



























STANDARD RESOLUTION 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM – RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE SALE OF CITY OWNED 
REMNANT PARCEL HAVING SIDWELL # _________ LOCATED IN 
SECTION__, AT THE (LOCATION) - LOT __, SUPERVISORS PLAT #__ 
 
 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of 
certain parcels will best serve the public interest;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be 
served without obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council finds that the 
public interest will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance 
with Resolution 85-254 Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City owned 
property and approve the sale of the remnant parcel having Sidwell #____, 
described in Attachment “A” attached hereto, to_____, the appraised value as 
outlined in the Offer to Purchase, with conditions, plus closing costs;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That closing will take place when all conditions 
have been met; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED 
TO EXECUTE the Agreement to Purchase and the Warranty Deed, on behalf of 
the City; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO 
RECORD said documents, including all attachments, at the Oakland County 
Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to and made a part of 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	AGENDA:  June 5, 2006
	GOALS
	AGENDA:  Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET:  Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	a\) Proclamation to Honor Joseph Haddad �
	b\) Proclamation to Honor Sherry LeVeque�
	c\) Proclamation to Honor Daryl Klinko –�
	d\) Presentation of Check to the City of�


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal Renewal – 6881 Westaway
	C-2 Rezoning Application (Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, S
	C-2a   Addendum Protest Petition

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Adoption of City Ordinance, Chapter 28 – Tree Ordinance 

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	a\) Joseph Haddad – 2005 Police Officer �
	b\) Sherry  LeVeque – 2005 Non-Sworn Pol�
	c\) Daryl Klinko – 2006 Fire Fighter of �

	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Ex�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: T�
	e\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Pr�
	f\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Be�
	g\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Co�

	E-5 Medi-Go Service Agreement
	E-6 Private Agreement for People’s State Bank – Project No. 
	E-7 State of Michigan Election Equipment Grant Application A
	E-8 Request for Acceptance of Sanitary Sewer Easement Agreem
	E-9 Request for Approval of Proposed Quit Claim Deed for Rig
	E-10 Private Agreement for TCF Bank – Project No. 05.944.3
	E-11 Request for Temporary Sales Trailer, Cedar Pines Estate
	E-12 Approval of Funding Agreement:  Boys and Girls Club
	E-13 Sale of Rochester Road Remnant Parcel #20-22-426-057, S

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Adviso
	F-2 Appointment of Representative and Alternate – Southeaste
	F-3 Amendment #2 – Concrete Pavement Repair Program
	F-4 Revisions to Troy City Code Chapter 18 (City Water Utili
	F-5 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufac
	F-6 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Adams Road Site 
	F-7 Extension of Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Oak
	F-8 Extension of Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Oak
	F-9 Rescind Award and Re-Award for Barn Repair
	F-10 Approval of Fee Revisions
	a) Revisions to Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Fees, Section I of the City of Troy Development Standards
	b\) Revisions to Chapter 60 – Increase i�
	c\) Fee Increases – Museum

	F-11 Scheduling of Special Meetings – Interview of Applicant
	F-12 Policy Adoption – Display of Signs on City Hall Site fo

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a\) Rezoning Application \(Z 718\) – P
	b\) Rezoning Application \(Z 717\) – P

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Joint Local Development Finance Authority – Troy Subcommitte
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – April 10, 2006
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – April
	Library Advisory Board/Final – April 13, 2006
	Troy Daze Advisory/Festival Committee/Draft – April 25, 2006
	Troy Youth Council/Draft – April 26, 2006
	Troy Youth Council/Final – April 26, 2006
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 2, 2006
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 2, 2006
	Joint Local Development Finance Authority – Troy Subcommitte
	Planning Commission/Draft – May 9, 2006
	Planning Commission/Final – May 9, 2006
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – May 1
	Troy Youth Council/Draft – May 24, 2006

	J-2 Department Reports:
	a\) City of Troy Monthly Financial Repor�

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	a) Letter to Tonni Bartholomew from the Planning Commission In Appreciation of the Special Efforts on Election Night
	b) Letter of Thanks to Lt. Scherlinck and Sgt. Kowalski from Kim Streich Regarding the Support and Traffic Assistance During the March of Dimes WalkAmerica

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	Resolution from the City of Royal Oak – Reconstruction of I-
	Resolution from the City of Ferndale – Consideration of Cons
	Resolution from the City of Ferndale – June, 2006 – Gay Prid

	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from Michigan Municipal League Regarding 
	J-7  Communication from City Engineer Steven Vandette Regard
	J-8  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol 
	J-9  Communication from Assistant City Manager/Services Bria
	J-10  Communication from the City Engineer Steven Vandette R

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 Disposal/Sale of Excess Property

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



